
Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

June 20, 2025

NOTICE
The Board of Directors of the Kaweah Delta Health Care District will meet in the City of Visalia City Council 
Chambers {707 W. Acequia, Visalia, CA} on Wednesday, June 25, 2025:  

4:00PM Open meeting to approve the closed agenda.

4:01PM Closed meeting pursuant to Government Code 54956.8, Government Code 54956.9(d)(1), 
Government Code 54956.9(d)(2), Health and Safety Code 1461 and 32155.

4:30PM Open meeting.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate at this meeting, 
please contact the Board Clerk (559) 624-2330. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to 
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors 
meeting.

All Kaweah Delta Health Care District regular board meeting and committee meeting notices and agendas are posted 
72 hours prior to meetings (special meetings are posted 24 hours prior to meetings) in the Kaweah Health Medical 
Center, Mineral King Wing near the Mineral King entrance.  

The disclosable public records related to agendas can be obtained by contacting the Board Clerk at Kaweah Health 
Medical Center Acequia Wing, Executive Offices (Administration Department/Executive Offices) {1st floor}, 400 
West Mineral King Avenue, Visalia, CA via phone 559-624-2330 or email: kedavis@kaweahhealth.org, or on the
Kaweah Delta Health Care District web page http://www.kaweahhealth.org.

KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
David Francis, Secretary/Treasurer

Kelsie Davis 
Board Clerk / Executive Assistant to CEO

DISTRIBUTION:
Governing Board, Legal Counsel, Executive Team, Chief of Staff, www.kaweahhealth.org

1/465



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

City of Visalia City Council Chambers
707 W. Acequia, Visalia, CA

Wednesday June 25, 2025 {Regular Meeting}

OPEN MEETING AGENDA {4:00PM}
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION Members of the public may comment on agenda items before action 

is taken and after it is discussed by the Board. Each speaker will be allowed five minutes. 
Members of the public wishing to address the Board concerning items not on the agenda and 
within the jurisdiction of the Board are requested to identify themselves at this time.

3. ADJOURN

CLOSED MEETING AGENDA {4:01PM}
1. CALL TO ORDER

2/465



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

4. CREDENTIALING - Medical Executive Committee (MEC) requests that the appointment,
reappointment and other credentialing activity regarding clinical privileges and staff
membership recommended by the respective department chiefs, the credentials committee
and the MEC be reviewed for approval pursuant to Health and Safety Code 1461 and 32155. 

Daniel Hightower, MD, Chief of Staff

5. QUALITY ASSURANCE pursuant to Health and Safety Code 32155 and 1461, report of quality 
assurance committee.

Daniel Hightower, MD Chief of Staff

6. APPROVAL OF THE CLOSED MEETING MINUTES May 20, 2025, and May 28, 2025, closed
meeting minutes.

7. ADJOURN

OPEN MEETING AGENDA {4:30PM} 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL 
3. FLAG SALUTE
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION Members of the public may comment on agenda items before action 

is taken and after it is discussed by the Board. Each speaker will be allowed five minutes. 

3/465



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

Members of the public wishing to address the Board concerning items not on the agenda and 
within the jurisdiction of the Board are requested to identify themselves at this time.

5. CLOSED SESSION ACTION TAKEN Report on action(s) taken in closed session.
6. RECOGNITIONS

6.1. Presentation of Resolution 2258 to Albert Pena in recognition as the Kaweah Health 
World Class Employee of the month June 2025.

6.2. Presentation of Resolution 2259 to Emma Camerena in recognition for years and 
service   and retirement after 34 years. 

6.3.    Presentation of Resolution 2260 to Daniel Hightower Chief of Staff from 2023-2025.
6.4.   Team of the Month Pediatrics 

8. CREDENTIALS - Medical Executive Committee requests that the appointment, reappointment 
and other credentialing activity regarding clinical privileges and staff membership 
recommended by the respective department chiefs, the credentials committee and the 
Medical Executive Committee be reviewed for approval.
Daniel Hightower, MD, Chief of Staff
Public Participation Members of the public may comment on agenda items before action is
taken and after the item has been discussed by the Board.
Action Requested Approval of the June 25, 2025, medical staff credentials report.

9. CHIEF OF STAFF REPORT Report relative to current Medical Staff events and issues.
Daniel Hightower, MD, Chief of Staff  

10. CONSENT CALENDAR - All matters under the Consent Calendar will be approved by one 
motion, unless a Board member requests separate action on a specific item.
Public Participation Members of the public may comment on agenda items before action is
taken and after the item has been discussed by the Board.
Action Requested Approval of the June 25, 2025, Consent Calendar.

10.1. REPORTS

4/465



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

A. Physician Recruitment
B. FY25 Strategic Plan
C. Monthly Throughput
D. Rehab Services
E. Wound Care

10.2. BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MINTUES 
A. Marketing and Community Relations Committee June 4, 2025
B. Information Systems Committee June 10, 2025
C. Human Resource Committee June 11, 2025
D. Finance Property Services and Acquisition Committee June 18, 2025
E. Quality Council Committee June 19, 2025
F. Special Open Board Meeting Minutes from May 20, 2025
G. Regular Open Board Meeting Minutes from May 28, 2025

10.3.  POLICIES
A.  Administrative Policies
      A.1. AP19 Travel, Per Diem and Other Reimbursement- Revised
      A.2. AP46 Procurement Card (FKA Commercial Card Expense Reporting) - Revised
      A.3. AP84 Mileage Reimbursement- Revised
      A.4. AP116 California Public Information Request Policy- Revised
B. Board Policies
      B.1. BOD1 Orientation of a New Board Member- Reviewed
      B.2. BOD2 Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Transition- Revised
      B.3. BOD3 Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Criteria- Revised
      B.4. BOD4 Executive Compensation- Revised
    B.5. BOD5 Conflict of Interest - Revised
    B.6. BOD6 Board Reimbursement for Travel and Service Clubs- Reviewed
      B.7. BOD7 Presentation of Claims and Service Process- Revised
    B.8. BOD8 Promulgation of Kaweah Delta Health Care District Procedures- Revised
    B.9. BOD9 Board Compensation- New
C.  Human Resource Policies

C.1. EHS06 - Revised
C.2. HR47 Professional Licensure and Certification- Revised

5/465



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

C.3. HR72 Standby and Callback Pay- Revised
C.4. HR80 Docking Staff- Revised
C.5. HR145 Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)/California Family Rights Act (CFRA) 

Leave of Absence- Revised
C.6. HR173 Employee Emergency Relief- Revised
C.7. HR197 Dress Code- Professional Appearance Guidelines- Revised
C.8. HR234 PTO, EIB, and Healthyworkplace, Healthy Families Act of 2014- Revised

                     C.9. HR.243 Leave of Absences- Reviewed
C.10. HR245 Event Participation Pay- Reviewed

-

10.4. MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
       A. Emergency Medicine Privileges- Revised

10.5. LEGAL 
A. Rejection of Claim Letter to Juan Carlos Velasquez
B. Rejection of Claim Letter to Sophia Genesis Velasquez

  C. Rejection of Claim Letter to Andrea Tafolla

10.6. DISTRICT

A. Approval/Adoption of Amended Board Bylaws Resolution 2262.
B. Approval/Adoption of Board compensation Resolution 2261. 
C. Approval/Adoption of Board Resolution 2263 for Government Claim Recipient 
D. Approval/Adoption of Board Resolution 2264 for Government Claim Backup Alternate 

Designation

11. STRATEGIC PLANNING INITATIVE OUTSTANDING HEALTH OUTCOMES Detailed review of 
Strategic Plan Initiative. 

Sandy Volchko, Director of Quality and Patient Safety and Paul Stefanacci, MD, Chief Medical 
and Quality Officer 

12. FINANCIALS    Review of the most current fiscal year financial results.  
Malinda Tupper Chief Financial Officer   

6/465



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

13. ANNUAL OPERATING & CAPITAL BUDGET A review of the final annual operating and capital 
budget for fiscal year 2026.  - Malinda Tupper Chief Financial Officer   
Public Participation Members of the public may comment on agenda items before action is
taken and after the item has been discussed by the Board.
Action Requested Approval of the fiscal year 2026 budget as presented.

14. REPORTS  
14.1.  Chief Executive Officer Report - Report on current events and issues.  
            Gary Herbst, Chief Executive Officer
14.2.  Board President - Report on current events and issues.  

                     Mike Olmos, Board President

CLOSED MEETING AGENDA
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE OPEN SESSION

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. CEO EVALUATION Discussion with the Board and the Chief Executive Officer relative to the 
evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Government Code 54957(b)(1).
Gary Herbst, Chief Executive Officer and Rachele Berglund, Legal Counsel

3. ADJOURN

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate at this meeting, please contact the Board 
Clerk (559) 624-2330. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to the Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors meeting.  

All Kaweah Delta Health Care District regular board meeting and committee meeting notices and agendas are posted 72 hours prior to 
meetings (special meetings are posted 24 hours prior to meetings) in the Kaweah Health Medical Center, Mineral King Wing near the Mineral 
King entrance. The disclosable public records related to agendas can be obtained by contacting the Board Clerk at Kaweah Health Medical 
Center Acequia Wing, Executive Offices (Administration Department/Executive Offices) {1st floor}, 400 West Mineral King Avenue, Visalia, 
CA via phone 559-624-2330 or email: kedavis@kaweahhealth.org, or on the Kaweah Delta Health Care District web page 
http://www.kaweahhealth.org.

7/465



Agenda item intentionally omitted

[8-66]/465



Separator Page

Resolution 2258

67/465



WHEREAS, the Department Heads of the KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH 
CARE DISTRICT dba KAWEAH HEALTH are recognizing Albert Pena with the 
World Class Service Excellence Award for the Month of June 2025, for 
consistent outstanding performance, and,

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH 
CARE DISTRICT is aware of his excellence in caring and service,

68/465



Separator Page

Resolution 2259

69/465



70/465



Separator Page

Resolution 2260

71/465



RESOLUTION 2260

WHEREAS, Daniel Hightower, M.D., has served as the Chief of the 
Medical Staff of Kaweah Delta Health Care District dba Kaweah Health
from 2023-2025 and;

WHEREAS, in that capacity Dr. Hightower has provided excellent
leadership for the Medical Staff and supported the mission of the 
hospital through two years of great achievements and growth, and;

WHEREAS, Dr. Hightower has always been available, attentive 
and responsive to the Board, Medical Staff, and Executive Team of the 
Kaweah Health in carrying out the duties of her position, and;

WHEREAS, Dr. Hightower has been an effective leader of the 
Medical Staff in areas of accreditation, self-governance, peer review,
and improvement of patient care.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors 
of the Kaweah Delta Health Care District on behalf of themselves, the 
Hospital Staff, and the Community they represent, hereby extend their 
appreciation to Daniel Hightower, M.D., and in recognition thereof, 
have caused this resolution to be spread upon the minutes of this 
meeting.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by unanimous vote of those present at a 
regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Kaweah Delta Health 
Care District on the 25th day of June 2025.

_______________________________________
President, Kaweah Delta Health Care District

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Secretary/Treasurer, Kaweah Delta Health Care
District and of the Board of Directors thereof

72/465



Separator Page

Physician Recruitment

73/465



74/465



Page 1 of 2Exported on June 11, 2025 4:34:26 PM PDT

75/465



Page 2 of 2Exported on June 11, 2025 4:34:26 PM PDT

76/465



Separator Page

FY25 Strategic Plan

77/465



FY 20 Strategic Plan

2 , 2025

78/465



79/465



80/465



81/465



82/465



83/465



84/465



Separator Page

Monthly Throughput

85/465



Patient 
Throughput 
Committee

86/465



Average Length of Stay versus National Average
(GMLOS)

87/465



88/465



89/465



90/465



91/465



92/465



93/465



94/465



First, it has been a great month in terms of admit holds, averaging only 10 per day! This significant 
improvement wouldn't be possible without the incredible hard work of our Case Managers, Bed 
Coordinators, and Inpatient Clinician partners. A huge thank you to them! The impact is clear: our 
median door-to-inpatient status time for admitted patients dropped dramatically to 323 
minutes for April, compared to 672 minutes back in January.

Patient Volume: Total volume for the 30-day month was 8,211 visits, averaging nearly 274 
patients per day.

Admission Rate: Holding steady at 21%, indicating consistent acuity levels overall, although our 
monthly trauma volume was slightly lower compared to last April (197 vs. 216).

LWBS Rate: We hit a record low of 0.6% for the month! There were many days we achieved 0% 
LWBS, averaging out to less than 1.6 patients leaving per day. This shows we're getting patients 
seen and evaluated by providers exceptionally quickly.

Median Door-to-Discharge Time: Improved again, down to 245 minutes for the month! We are 
incredibly close to hitting our benchmark of 240 minutes, and looking at the last week of April, we 
even had days where this time dipped below 200 minutes. For the first time ever, the team was 
able to clear out the waiting room on a swing shift (the busiest of all the shifts by far)

Beyond our core metrics, other indicators also showed fantastic progress:
Left During Treatment (LDT) / AMA Rates: These also decreased to an all-time low of only 3% 
and 1%, respectively. While these aren't nationally benchmarked, reducing them is significant 
because these situations often require considerable nursing and provider time for discussion 
and documentation. Great work engaging with our patients!
Mental Health LOS: One area that continued to challenge us was the time required to place 
mental health patients, with the average ED length of stay reaching 1509 minutes (up from 
1177 in Jan and 1087 in Feb). These patients often require significant resources (private rooms, 
PFS support, sometimes 1:1 sitters), impacting flow. Encouragingly, the renovated Kaweah 
Mental Health Hospital should be coming online shortly, which we anticipate will significantly 
help with this challenge.
Patient Experience (NPS): We ended the month on a high note, hitting a new record Net 
Promoter Score of 43.2! Crucially, this is the first time we have finished the month above our 
benchmark of 40. This is a direct result of the excellent, compassionate care you provide every 
day.

Continue to advocate for returning to Zone coverage and adding in multi-discipline 
participation.
Post Acute Care Partners-PACPs meetings more meaningful. Expectations set for Ensocare
response times and auth times. We are weeding through Payers and average auth times 
for them for baseline data to use for goals to improve.
Action for Improvement of auth time is to have our own dedicated Auth Nurse.
Work through processes with Kaweah Rehab for referrals and acceptance times. Rehab had 
118 DC in one quarter and had an average LOS of 11 days. LOS dropped to 8.7. Starting 
work with Molly-Rehab and Tiffany-Home Health, for efficient processes for discharges.
Assist Living/Board & Care-These are primarily homeless or TBI patients. They are difficult 
placements. Complex Care will continue to work with PFS on these patients, we will 
transition them over to complex care sooner.
Long Term Acute Care-LTAC and Sub-acute accounted for the smallest DC of 11 pts. 
However, those 11 patients had an average LOS of 74 days, LOS dropped to 20.9. We will 
be looking into Critical Care Plan of Care, Physician and Bedside Prognosis conversation 

95/465



Separator Page

Rehab Services

96/465



Rehabilitation Services 

Molly Niederreiter, Director of Rehabilitation Services, 624-2541
June 13, 2025 

Summary Issue/Service Considered
1. Achieving optimum balance of program priorities to address quality of care, 

compliance, profitability, and quality of work environment.
2. Ensuring that the Rehabilitation Division continues to provide the full continuum of 

services to the community as a District Center of Excellence.

Analysis of financial/statistic data annualized through March 31 FY 2025 for Acute 
Inpatient Rehabilitation Program:
The inpatient Rehabilitation program is projected to end FY 2025 with a contribution 
margin of $5.4 million, a 12% increase from the previous year demonstrating a strong 
upward trend and the highest of the past 4 years. Government Supplemental funds are 
increasing due to the Medi-Cal Managed Care Directed Payments Program. We are 
expecting $1.2 million for FY 2025, equaling 22% of the contribution margin, most of the 
funds effective January 2025. 

The average daily census FYTD is 21 patient/day, above budget of 18 patient/day and 
the highest of the last decade. The annual patient cases are up 17% from FY 2024 at 
608, the highest in over 4 years. Patient days are up 10% over FY 2024 and up 20% 
from FY 2020. The average length of stay is down by 6% from 12.73 to 11.95 and the 
lowest in 4 years. 

Net patient revenue per case is down 4% at $25,322, a decrease from FY 2024 but still 
higher than FY 2022 and 2023. However, there is a 4% decrease in direct cost per case 
as there are 17% more cases over which to spread the cost. Fortunately, we have not 
utilized registry nurses to staff this program. Therapy and Pharmacy expenses per case 
decreased slightly.

Total direct allocations to 6440 Acute Rehabilitation cost center increased 5% to
$60,000 in FY 2025, for a total expense of $1,133,300. The difference is primarily 
associated with FY 2025 being the first full year of absorbing Case Management and 
Patient and Family Services staff into 6441 Rehab Administration cost center and 
removing the associated allocations. There was a decrease in the amounts allocated 
from Float Pool, Medical Transport and Bed Allocation totaling $21,000. 

Inpatient Rehabilitation is predominantly a Medicare business with a combined 51% of 
the payer mix, down from 58% in FY 2024. 

REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

97/465



 Medicare remains the number one payer at 42% of the patient cases with 
reimbursement per case increasing slightly to $25,058 and a contribution margin 
per case of $8,755, $1000 higher than FY 2024.  

 Managed Care/Other is tied for second in payer mix with 80 patient cases, lower 
than 104 in FY 2024. Overall, the reimbursement per case decreased $5,000 
from $33,867 to $28,762 and the contribution margin per case decreased by 
almost $4,000 from $13,951 to $9,949. These amounts are still above FY 2023. 
Blue Cross is the major payer with the 36% managed care patient cases and due 
to fewer days and decreased average length of stay with a stable per diem, the 
contribution margin per case decreased from $21,221 to $19,755. Kaweah 
employee days increased from 20 to 127 resulting in a $181,000 contribution 
margin loss demonstrating the direct cost of caring for Kaweah employees. 

 Medi-Cal Managed Care cases jumped by 5% in payer mix to match Managed 
Care at 20%. This is welcome news as the reimbursement per case increased 
$4,400 from FY 2024, the contribution margin per case increased by $4000 and 
is higher than Managed Care/Other. 

 Medicare Managed Care is fourth in terms of payer mix, decreasing to 9% in FY 
2025. Patient cases and patient days have significantly decreased, closer to FY 
2023 values.  

 
Analysis of financial/statistic data annualized through March 31 FY 2025 for 
Outpatient Therapy Clinics: 
The Outpatient Therapy Rehabilitation Services is projected to end FY 2025 with a 
contribution margin of $2.6 million, similar to prior year and approximately 18-20% 
higher that FY 2022 and FY 2023. Additional reimbursement increased by 78% in FY 
2025 and consists of approximately $650,000 in KH employee proxy reimbursement, 
$81,000 in Medi-Cal Disproportional Share Hospital Funds, and $929,000 in Medi-Cal 
Managed Care Directed Payments, making up 65% of the FY 2025 contribution margin.
Units of service decreased by 2% compared to the prior year, but are higher than FY 
2022 and FY 2023.
For FY 2025:

Net revenue per unit of service increased 9% to $41.31, the highest in 4 
years.
Direct cost per unit of service increased 11% to $31.92
The contribution margin per unit of service increased 3% at $9.39, the 
highest in 4 years.

Payer mix is calculated by patient cases as in the Service Line Report, a volume of 1 
represents 1 patients’ monthly billing. 

Managed care/other remains the number one payer at 35% of the patient cases 
and is the highest of all payers with a reimbursement per case increasing in FY 
2025 to $790 and contribution margin per case is stable.
Medi-Cal Managed Care is second in terms of payer mix at 27% and saw 
increases in reimbursement per case from $268 to $367 and improvements in 
the contribution margin per case from a loss of ($74) to a positive $6. Medi-Cal 

98/465



now exceeds Medicare and Medicare Managed care in terms of reimbursement 
per case and contribution margin per case.

 Medicare is the third payer mix stable at 24% demonstrating an slight decrease
in reimbursement per case of $4 and decrease in contribution margin per case to 
a loss of ($30). 

 Medicare Managed Care in fourth at 10% of the patient cases, showed a slight 
improvement in reimbursement per case of $6 and a loss in contribution margin 
per case of ($25). 

 
Therapy Specialists at Rehabilitation Hospital and Therapy Specialists at Akers saw an 
increase in volume/units of service. Therapy Specialists Exeter remained flat.

In FY 2025, 8 of 8 outpatient services had a positive contribution margin the top 4 
departments are: 

 Therapy Specialists - Akers at $1.2 million 
 Therapy Specialists - Lovers Lane at $328,000 
 Therapy Specialists - Rehabilitation Hospital at $317,000. 
 Therapy Specialists - Exeter at $281,000  

 
Cardiac Rehabilitation: Patient volume decreased 11% in FY 2025 compared to the 
previous year. There is a direct allocation of 11% of 6441-Rehab Administration to the 
Cardiac Rehab program. The increase from 4 to 16 employees in 6441 over the last 4 
years associated with absorbing liaisons, case management and patient and family 
services staff has had a significant impact on financials. Going forward, the direct 
allocation will be appropriately distributed over the departments benefiting from these 
additional employees.

 Net revenue per unit of service is up 8% at $131.
 Direct cost per unit of service increased by 16% to $124 associated with 

decreased volume and the direct allocation of 6441. Overall expenses decreased 
11% in FY 2025.

 Contribution margin per unit of service decreased by 47% at $8.

Quality/Performance Improvement Data 
Acute Rehabilitation: The program continues to exceed the national benchmark for 
community discharges, with 83% of patients discharged home compared to 82% 
nationally.  The average length of stay for the FY 2025 was 11.95 days, lower than the 
national average of 12.8 days and lower than FY 2024 at 12.7.  Patient satisfaction, as 
measured via text/email/phone call survey from NRC, FYTD 2025 is 87.4 for the net 
promoter question of “would you recommend this facility”, above the NRC benchmark of 
of 72.5. This ranks Kaweah Health in the 94th percentile. Referrals for all the post-acute 
areas (acute rehabilitation and skilled nursing/Long Term Care) in FY 2025 has 
increased nearly 200 per quarter to approximately 1200 per quarter. The majority of 
referrals continue to be from Kaweah Health, with small numbers of consistent referrals 
from Adventist Hanford, CRMC, St Agnes and recent increases from Stanford. Trends 
for the 1st and 2nd quarters of FY 2025 regarding patient falls, urinary tract infection, 
central line infections and hospital acquired skin breakdown continue to demonstrate 

99/465



facility performance exceeding national benchmarks on all indicators. 

Outpatient Therapy Clinics: Starting in FY2025, we transition from an internal survey to 
measure patient satisfaction to utilizing our electronic medical record’s software called 
WebPT Reach to send a text survey. The net promoter score is based on the question 
“how likely are you to recommend this facility” all clinics are above 86 out of 100 for 
NPS and for percent of responses that are considered promoters 5 out of the 6 clinics 
are above 90%. 
 
Therapy outcomes are reported on a quarterly basis, using pre and post treatment plan 
outcome tools to measure significant functional improvement and therapy effectiveness. 
Each therapy clinic uses outcomes measures that are specific to the patient’s diagnosis 
and useful to the clinician. The results and comments are shared with the clinicians in 
an effort to bring focus to specific areas that could benefit from additional review, 
education and update of evidence based treatment approaches.  
 
Acute Therapy Services: In the Medical Center, we measure the response time from 
MD order/admission to nursing unit to the time the therapy evaluation is 
completed/attempted for Physical Therapy, Occupational Therapy and Speech Therapy. 
The goal is to complete therapy evaluations within 24 hours of the MD order. The Acute 
Therapy department prioritizes Neurologic, Orthopedic, Cardiac, Trauma and 
Emergency Department patients. Data for FYTD March 2025 is: 

 Physical Therapy 54%  
 Occupational Therapy 41% 
 Speech Therapy 67%.

The ability to meet the goals is impacted by a significantly higher than normal therapy 
census in addition, staffing shortages during the fall/winter months for all disciplines
associated with limited per diem staff coverage for PTO and sick calls..  

Cardiac and Pulmonary Rehabilitation: Outcome measures for blood pressure, peak 
metabolic equivalents and psychosocial are tracked. For the calendar year of 2024 we 
are: below the goal of 90% for blood pressure with our average for the year at 74% and 
below our goal for peak metabolic equivalents of >5.5 with our average at 5.3. We met 
our goal for psychosocial outcome score <4.0 with an average of 2.1 at discharge.

Policy, Strategic or Tactical Issues 

1. Collaborate with nursing leadership on a patient mobility program which will impact 
length of stay, throughput, patient experience and prevent negative outcomes such 
as hospital acquired pressure injuries.

2. Work with ISS re: the Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities survey 
recommendation is to implement smart technology in our independent living 
apartment in the Acute Rehab unit.

3. Address the decrease in Medicare Managed Care cases and patient days through 
partnership with California Hospital Association.  

4. Prepare for pending CMS 100% Review Choice Demonstration to ensure 
compliance and optimal reimbursement.

100/465



5. Collaboration with Cardiology and Cardiothoracic Surgery Service Lines within 
Kaweah Health and private physician offices to increase referrals. 

6. Working alongside ISS and Business Services to streamline Cardiac Rehab referral 
workflow.  Once complete, hospital physicians will be trained on how to order using 
electronic referral/standing orders option prior to discharge or at follow up visit post 
discharge.

7. Utilize marketing department developed print and digital marketing for MD offices, 
waiting rooms, and on-hold messaging Collaboration with the Cardiology Service 
Line to increase volume and improve referral workflow to ensure follow-through on 
consults as leads for the program. 

 

8. Transition to Cerner scheduling in effort to decrease no show/cancel rates by 
sending reminders for class schedule. 
 

9. Optimize Kaweah Health website including the Acute Rehabilitation program and 
Therapy Specialists pages in efforts to better market both inpatient and outpatient 
Rehabilitation programs. 

10.Complete automation of a report for individual staff productivity, replacing a manual
process, for inpatient therapists to improve efficient use of productive time. Report is 
already created for outpatient.

11.Utilize WebPT Reach program to increase market outpatient therapy services and 
program offerings. 

12.Utilize Cerner EMR in medical center to track therapy referrals that are not indicated, 
provide feedback to Providers who show trend of inappropriate orders. 

Recommendations/Next Steps 
1. Fully implement and monitor effectiveness of goals established via leadership 

performance system addressing the pillars identified by Kaweah Health 
(outstanding health outcomes, financial strength, ideal environment, empower 
through education and excellent service) 
 

2. Maintain productive and efficient processes in support of improved or sustained 
positive financial performance for all programs.  Ensure ongoing marketing of all 
inpatient and outpatient programs. Monitor all publicly reported quality measures 
with goal of continuing to achieve and sustain performance that exceeds national 
benchmarks.

3. Provide high quality, affordable care for patients in our existing market as well as 
expand our service to more patients.  Continue to work closely with patient billing 
department to ensure we address all revenue issues promptly. 
 

101/465



4. Optimize post-acute liaisons workflow to increase census in the acute rehab 
program and post-acute settings including analysis of current referral processes 
and workflows.

5. Participate in outreach programs and opportunities such as runs/walks, 
community forums, and health fairs to market to consumers, physicians, and the 
overall community.  Focus on strategies using social media and consumer 
reviews.

6. Working with HR with retaining and recruiting clinical staff by re-evaluating 
clinical ladder, sign-on bonuses, pay ranges and partnerships with college and 
university therapy degree programs. 
 

7. Establishing an efax process for external referrals, which will result in a more 
efficient workflow for patient access.

8. Continue to respond to Medicare initiatives related to acute rehabilitation services 
at the state and national level. Actively monitor processes that support 
appropriate admissions and documentation that demonstrates medical necessity. 
 

9. Monitor and respond to legislative developments such as the IMPACT Act that 
impose new requirements for post-acute care related to data collection and 
quality measures. 
 

10. Review results of employee engagement and safety culture surveys with each 
department, develop, and implement action plans.  
 

11. Implement acute rehab, outpatient therapy and medical center therapy 
department specific strategic plans.  
 

12. Collaborate with Kaweah Health leaders for improved management of patients, 
improve throughput and remove barriers for discharge to post-acute process. 

Approvals/Conclusions 
Rehabilitation services will focus in the coming year on: 
1. Census development/patient volumes, management of productivity, maintaining 

compliance with all regulatory and payer expectations, customer satisfaction, clinical 
excellence and financial performance.  

2. Implementation of goals related to Kaweah Health cornerstones for all of 
rehabilitation services to enhance program development, satisfaction of all 
stakeholders, program marketing, and ideal work environment for staff, and clinical 
quality of services. 

3. Continued support of shared governance via rehabilitation councils (both nursing 
unit based council and therapy/business services council).

102/465



current year svc line

FY2025
IP Acute 
Rehabilitatio

GRE
EN

GRE
EN

RED
GRE
EN

GREEN

17% 11% 12% 9% 14%

4 YR 
TREND

17%

10%

-6%

11%

12%

261%

9%

6%

14%

-5%

-4%

209%

-6%

*Annualized

FY2022 FY2024 FY2025
Reimb/Da
y

FY 2025 PAYER MIX

39% 47% 41% 42% $2,010 

18% 20% 16% 20% $2,080 

20% 16% 22% 20% $1,501 

12% 9% 15% 9% $1,630 

7% 6% 5% 7% $1,228 

3% 2% 2% 1% $2,112 

Notes:
Source: Inpatient Service Line Report
Selection Criteria:  Servcie Name is Kaweah Health Rehabilitation Hospital

Net Revenue Per Case $23,630 $23,271 $26,333

($2,072,986) ($709,069)

Contribution Margin $2,745,589 $5,310,728

Direct Cost

Direct Cost Per Case $17,738

Work Comp

PAYER

PAYER MIX - 4 YEAR TREND (TOTAL CHARGES)

Medicare

Medi-Cal Managed Care

Managed Care/Other

FY2023

$17,022 $16,368

Contrb Margin Per Case $5,892 $7,420 $9,311 $8,735

PER CASE TRENDED GRAPHS

Medi-Cal

$15,852

7,264

ALOS 12.95 12.08 12.73 11.95

6,037 6,632 6,630Patient Days

$8,265,985 $8,702,549 $8,868,433 $9,951,778

Net Revenue $11,011,573 $12,776,040 $13,719,397 $15,262,505

CONTRIBUTION 
MARGIN

NET INCOME

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

FY2025KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT

PATIENT CASES NET REVENUE DIRECT COST

Inpatient Services - Acute Rehabilitation

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND
*Annualized

METRIC FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
%CHANGE FROM 

PRIOR YR

Patient Cases 466 549 521 608

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

608 $15,262,505 $9,951,778 $5,310,728 ($593,326)

Additional Reimb $0 $0 $293,365 $1,058,149

Add Reimb Per Case $0 $0 $563 $1,740

$25,103

Net Income ($693,592) ($593,326)

Indirect Cost $4,818,574 $4,782,561 $5,544,557 $5,904,053

$4,073,492 $4,850,965

Medicare Managed Care

$23,630 $23,271 
$26,333 $25,103 

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue Per Case

$17,738 
$15,852 

$17,022 $16,368 

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Direct Cost Per Case

$5,892 

$7,420 

$9,311 
$8,735 

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$7,000

$8,000

$9,000

$10,000

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Contrb Margin Per Case

Medicare
42%

Medi-Cal 
Managed Care

20%

Managed 
Care/Other 20%

Medicare Managed 
Care 9%

Medi-Cal 7% Work Comp 1%

$0 $0 

$563 

$1,740 

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

$1,600

$1,800

$2,000

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Add Reimb Per Case

261%

9%Contribution Margin $2,745,589 $5,310,728

Additional Reimb $0 $0 $293,365 $1,058,149

$4,073,492 $4,850,965

103/465



FY2025
OP 
Rehabilitatio

RED
GRE
EN

RED
GRE
EN

GREEN

-2% 7% 9% 1% 42%

Therapies - Akers

Therapy Lover's Lane

Therapies - KDRH

Therapies - Exeter

Therapies - Dinuba

Hand Therapy

Cardiac Rehabilitation

4 YR 
TREND

-2%

7%

9%

78%

1%

-3%

42%

9%

11%

81%

3%Contrb Margin Per UOS $8.07 $7.88 $9.11 $9.39

GRAPHS

($158,747)

Net Revenue Per UOS $34.75 $36.14 $37.83 $41.31

Direct Cost Per UOS $26.68 $28.26 $28.71 $31.92

Net Revenue $9,474,098 $9,593,855 $10,628,570 $11,394,754

Direct Cost $7,273,556 $7,502,180 $8,068,076 $8,805,731

METRIC FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
%CHANGE FROM 

PRIOR YR

Units of Service 272,631 265,498 280,990 275,855

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

UNITS OF SERVICE NET REVENUE DIRECT COST CONTRIBUTION MARGIN NET INCOME

275,855 $11,394,754 $8,805,731 $2,589,023 ($158,747)

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Rehabilitation Services - Outpatient Summary

275,855 $11,394,754 $8,805,731 $2,589,023 ($158,747)

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND
*Annualized

OP Rehabilitation Services Totals

$100,127

25,447 $1,104,936 $958,696 $146,240 ($101,064)

4,383 $575,828 $541,945 $33,883 ($218,387)

24,543 $842,978 $598,021 $244,957

($569,209)

110,265 $4,573,764 $3,336,018 $1,237,746 $365,575

NET INCOME

$280,997 $104,291

UNITS OF SERVICE NET REVENUE DIRECT COST
CONTRIBUTION 

MARGIN

$159,920

28,483 $1,028,655 $747,658

METRICS BY SERVICE LINE - FY 2025

SERVICE LINE

23,984 $954,555 $626,478 $328,077

58,751 $2,314,038 $1,996,915 $317,123

Additional Reimb $712,603 $747,678 $933,100 $1,657,536

Add Reimb Per UOS $2.61 $2.82 $3.32 $6.01

Contribution Margin $2,200,542 $2,091,675 $2,560,494 $2,589,023

Indirect Cost $2,659,541 $2,808,246 $2,835,033 $2,747,770

Net Income ($458,999) ($716,570) ($274,538)

$34.75 $36.14 $37.83 
$41.31 

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

$40.00

$45.00

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue Per UOS

$26.68 $28.26 $28.71 
$31.92 

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

$40.00

$45.00

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Direct Cost Per UOS

$8.07 
$7.88 

$9.11 

$9.39 

$7.00

$7.50

$8.00

$8.50

$9.00

$9.50

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Contrb Margin Per UOS

$2.61 $2.82 
$3.32 

$6.01 

$0.00

$1.00

$2.00

$3.00

$4.00

$5.00

$6.00

$7.00

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Add Reimb Per UOS

78%

1%

Additional Reimb $712,603 $747,678 $933,100 $1,657,536

Contribution Margin $2,200,542 $2,091,675 $2,560,494 $2,589,023

104/465



FY2025
OP 
Rehabilitatio

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Rehabilitation Services - Outpatient Summary

Notes:
Source: Outpatient Service Line Reports
Criteria: Outpatient Service Lines and Secondary Service Line selections
Criteria: specific selection for each Service Line (noted on the individual Service Line Tabs)

105/465



current year svc line
FY2025

Therapies - 
Akers

GRE
EN

GRE
EN

RED
GRE
EN

GREEN

3% 14% 14% 14% 92%

4 YR 
TREND

3%

14%

14%

77%

14%

92%

10%

10%

71%

10%

Note:  FY2020 is annualized in graphs and throughout the analysis

*Annualize

FY2022 FY2024 FY2025

51% 54% 48% 45%

18% 13% 20% 25%

15% 17% 15% 16%

6% 7% 8% 7%

8% 7% 6% 6%

2% 1% 1% 1%

1% 1% 1% 1%

CONTRIBUTION MARGIN NET INCOME

FY2025KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT

UNITS OF SERVICE NET REVENUE DIRECT COST

Outpatient Services - Therapies - Akers

110,265

110,265 $4,573,764 $3,336,018 $1,237,746 $365,575 

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND
*Annualized

METRIC FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
%CHANGE FROM 

PRIOR YR

Units of Service 100,563 98,222 106,573

Net Revenue $3,600,160 $3,709,172 $4,022,024 $4,573,764

Additional Reimb $371,977 $425,646 $481,891

Direct Cost $2,659,977 $2,680,773 $2,935,149 $3,336,018

Contribution Margin $940,182 $1,028,399 $1,086,876 $1,237,746

$852,149

$190,074 $365,575

Work Comp

Cash Pay

Medi-Cal

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

PAYER FY2023

Managed Care/Other

Medi-Cal Managed Care

Medicare

Medicare Managed Care

Net Revenue Per UOS

$10

PER CASE TRENDED GRAPHS

$36 $38 $38

FY 2025 Payer Mix 

$11

$41

$28 $30

PAYER MIX - 4 YEAR TREND (TOTAL CHARGES)

Contrb Margin Per UOS $9 $10

Add Reimb Per UOS $4 $4 $5

Net Income ($634) $47,565

$8

Direct Cost Per UOS $26 $27

$36 
$38 $38 

$41 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue Per UOS

$26 $27 $28 
$30 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Direct Cost Per UOS

$9 
$10 $10 

$11 

$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

$12

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Contrb Margin Per UOS

Managed 
Care/Other 45%

Medi-Cal 
Managed Care

25%

Medicare 16%

Medicare 
Managed Care

7%

Work Comp 6%
Cash Pay 1%

Medi-Cal 1%

$4 
$4 $5 

$8 

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

$7

$8

$9

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Add Reimb Per UOS

106/465



current year svc line
FY2025

Therapies - 
Akers

FY2025KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT
Outpatient Services - Therapies - Akers

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Notes:
Source:  Outpatient Service Line Reports
Criteria: Outpatient Service Line is O/P Therapies and Secondary Service Line is CCPTS

107/465



current year svc line
FY2025

Therapy 
Lover's Lane

RED RED RED RED RED

-7% -6% 4% -20% -31%

4 YR TREND

-7%

-6%

4%

61%

-20%

-31%

2%

13%

74%

-14%

Note:  FY2020 is annualized in graphs and throughout the analysis

*Annualized

FY2022 FY2024 FY2025 FY 2025 Payer Mix

45% 44% 46% 41%

31% 31% 32% 33%

13% 12% 12% 12%

8% 9% 6% 11%

2% 3% 4% 3%

1% 0% 1% 1%

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025
Outpatient Services -  Therapy Lover's Lane

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

UNITS OF SERVICE NET REVENUE DIRECT COST CONTRIBUTION MARGIN NET INCOME

23,984 $954,555 $626,478 $328,077 $159,920 

%CHANGE FROM 
PRIOR YR

Units of Service 24,205 25,712 25,906 23,984

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND
*Annualized

METRIC FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue $876,216 $952,411 $1,011,557 $954,555

Direct Cost $540,014 $590,199 $600,906 $626,478

Contribution Margin $336,202 $362,212 $410,652 $328,077

$3

Net Income $168,147 $191,418 $230,390 $159,920

Net Revenue Per UOS $36 $37 $39 $40

Medicare Managed Care

PER CASE TRENDED GRAPHS

PAYER MIX - 4 YEAR TREND (TOTAL CHARGES)

PAYER FY2023

Managed Care/Other

Medicare

Additional Reimb $70,745 $33,644 $39,334 $63,502

Medi-Cal Managed Care

Work Comp

Cash Pay

Direct Cost Per UOS $22 $23 $23 $26

Contrb Margin Per UOS $14 $14 $16 $14

Add Reimb Per UOS $3 $1 $2

$36 $37 
$39 $40 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue Per UOS

$22 $23 $23 
$26 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Direct Cost Per UOS

$14 
$14 

$16 

$14 

$13

$13

$14

$14

$15

$15

$16

$16

$17

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Contrb Margin Per UOS

Managed 
Care/Other

41%

Medicare
33%

Medicare Managed 
Care 12%

Medi-Cal Managed Care
11%

Work Comp 3% Cash Pay 1%

$3 

$1 
$2 

$3 

$0

$1

$1

$2

$2

$3

$3

$4

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Add Reimb Per UOS

108/465



current year svc line
FY2025

Therapy 
Lover's Lane

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025
Outpatient Services -  Therapy Lover's Lane

Notes:
Source:  Outpatient Service Line Reports
Criteria: Outpatient Service Line is O/P Therapies and Secondary Service Line is Lover's Lane Therapy

109/465



current year svc line

FY2025
Therapies - 
KDRH

GRE
EN

GRE
EN

RED RED RED

3% 9% 15% -15% -19%

4 YR TREND

3%

9%

15%

107%

-15%

-19%

7%

12%

102%

-17%

Note:  FY2020 is annualized in graphs and throughout the analysis

*Annualized

FY2022 FY2024 FY2025 FY 2025 Payer Mix

25% 37% 38% 39%

28% 27% 30% 27%

29% 18% 16% 21%

12% 13% 11% 10%

5% 3% 3% 2%

1% 1% 1% 1%

Notes:
Source:  Outpatient Service Line Reports
Criteria: Outpatient Service Line is O/P Therapies and Secondary Service Line is Neuro Clinic

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025
Outpatient Services - Therapies - KHRH

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

UNITS OF SERVICE NET REVENUE DIRECT COST CONTRIBUTION MARGIN NET INCOME

58,751 $2,314,038 $1,996,915 $317,123 ($569,209)

%CHANGE FROM 
PRIOR YR

Units of Service 57,196 50,900 57,304 58,751

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND
*Annualized

METRIC FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue $1,876,102 $1,687,891 $2,113,718 $2,314,038

Direct Cost $1,525,866 $1,606,078 $1,739,237 $1,996,915

Contribution Margin $350,235 $81,813 $374,480 $317,123

$5

Net Income ($375,130) ($714,891) ($477,952) ($569,209)

Net Revenue Per UOS $33 $33 $37 $39

Medi-Cal Managed Care

PER CASE TRENDED GRAPHS

PAYER MIX - 4 YEAR TREND (TOTAL CHARGES)

PAYER FY2023

Medicare

Managed Care/Other

Additional Reimb $115,579 $86,477 $146,367 $302,702

Medicare Managed Care

Medi-Cal

Work Comp

Direct Cost Per UOS $27 $32 $30 $34

Contrb Margin Per UOS $6 $2 $7 $5

Add Reimb Per UOS $6 $2 $3

$33 $33 
$37 

$39 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue Per UOS

$27 

$32 $30 
$34 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Direct Cost Per UOS

$6 

$2 

$7 

$5 

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

$7

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Contrb Margin Per UOS

Medicare
39%

Managed 
Care/Other

27%

Medi-Cal 
Managed 
Care 21%

Medicare Managed Care 10%

Medi-Cal 2% Work Comp 1%

$6 

$2 

$3 

$5 

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

$7

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Add Reimb Per UOS

110/465



current year svc line
FY2025

Therapies - 
Exeter

oran
ge

GRE
EN

RED
GRE
EN

GREEN

0% 17% 15% 22% 101%

4 YR TREND

0%

17%

15%

94%

22%

101%

17%

15%

94%

22%

Note:  FY2020 is annualized in graphs and throughout the analysis

*Annualize

FY2022 FY2024 FY2025 FY 2025 Payer Mix

31% 34% 37% 35%

31% 27% 30% 29%

19% 22% 17% 16%

11% 14% 14% 16%

5% 1% 1% 2%

2% 2% 1% 1%

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025
Outpatient Services - Therapies - Exeter

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

UNITS OF SERVICE NET REVENUE DIRECT COST CONTRIBUTION MARGIN NET INCOME

28,483 $1,028,655 $747,658 $280,997 $104,291 

%CHANGE FROM 
PRIOR YR

Units of Service 23,399 26,585 28,497 28,483

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND
*Annualized

METRIC FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue $678,552 $726,925 $882,715 $1,028,655

Direct Cost $553,974 $603,023 $651,956 $747,658

Contribution Margin $124,577 $123,902 $230,759 $280,997

$6

Net Income ($57,617) ($26,447) $51,982 $104,291

Net Revenue Per UOS $29 $27 $31 $36

Medicare

PER CASE TRENDED GRAPHS

PAYER MIX - 4 YEAR TREND (TOTAL CHARGES)

PAYER FY2023

Medi-Cal Managed Care

Managed Care/Other

Additional Reimb $51,449 $64,556 $95,373 $184,835

Medicare Managed Care

Medi-Cal

Work Comp

Direct Cost Per UOS $24 $23 $23 $26

Contrb Margin Per UOS $5 $5 $8 $10

Add Reimb Per UOS $2 $2 $3

$29 $27 
$31 

$36 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue Per UOS

$24 $23 $23 
$26 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Direct Cost Per UOS

$5 
$5 

$8 

$10 

$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

$12

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Contrb Margin Per UOS

Medi-Cal 
Managed 
Care 35%

Managed 
Care/Other

29%

Medicare
16%

Medicare 
Managed 
Care 16%

Medi-Cal 2% Work Comp 1%

$2 $2 

$3 

$6 

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

$7

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Add Reimb Per UOS

111/465



current year svc line
FY2025

Therapies - 
Exeter

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025
Outpatient Services - Therapies - Exeter

Notes:
Source:  Outpatient Service Line Reports
Criteria: Outpatient Service Line is O/P Therapies and Secondary Service Line is Exeter Clinic

112/465



current year svc line

FY2025
Therapies - 
Dinuba

RED
GRE
EN

RED
GRE
EN

GREEN

-6% 21% 6% 86% 556%

4 YR TREND

-6%

21%

6%

92%

86%

556%

29%

12%

104%

98%

Note:  FY2020 is annualized in graphs and throughout the analysis

*Annualize

FY2022 FY2024 FY2025 FY 2025 Payer Mix

43% 40% 43% 39%

19% 20% 22% 25%

16% 18% 17% 19%

10% 13% 12% 13%

7% 7% 4% 4%

2% 1% 2% 1%

CONTRIBUTION MARGIN NET INCOME

FY2025KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT

UNITS OF SERVICE NET REVENUE DIRECT COST

Outpatient Services - Therapies - Dinuba

24,543

24,543 $842,978 $598,021 $244,957 $100,127 

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND
*Annualized

METRIC FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
%CHANGE FROM 

PRIOR YR

$598,021

Contribution Margin $111,801 $166,937 $131,416 $244,957

$121,177

Net Revenue $635,425 $723,642 $696,926 $842,978

Work Comp

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

PAYER FY2023

Medi-Cal Managed Care

Managed Care/Other

Medicare

Medicare Managed Care

Net Revenue Per UOS

$5

PER CASE TRENDED GRAPHS

$24 $27 $27

Direct Cost Per UOS $20 $21

Medi-Cal

Units of Service 26,331 27,079 26,095

PAYER MIX - 4 YEAR TREND (TOTAL CHARGES)

Contrb Margin Per UOS $4 $6

Additional Reimb $44,009 $58,257 $63,141

Direct Cost $523,623 $556,705 $565,510

($21,942) $100,127

$10

$34

$22 $24

Add Reimb Per UOS $2 $2 $2

Net Income ($22,500) $18,658

$5

$24 
$27 $27 

$34 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue Per UOS

$20 $21 $22 
$24 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Direct Cost Per UOS

$4 

$6 
$5 

$10 

$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

$12

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Contrb Margin Per UOS

Medi-Cal 
Managed Care

39%

Managed Care/Other
25%

Medicare
19%

Medicare 
Managed 
Care 13%

Medi-Cal 4% Work Comp 1%

$2 
$2 

$2 

$5 

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Add Reimb Per UOS

113/465



current year svc line

FY2025
Therapies - 
Dinuba

FY2025KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT
Outpatient Services - Therapies - Dinuba

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Notes:
Source:  Outpatient Service Line Reports
Criteria: Outpatient Service Line is O/P Therapies and Secondary Service Line is Dinuba Clinic

114/465



current year svc line

FY2025
Hand 
Therapy

RED RED
GRE
EN

RED RED

-20% -15% -9% -43% -72%

4 YR TREND

-20%

-15%

-9%

12%

-43%

-72%

5%

14%

39%

-28%

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025
Outpatient Services - Hand Therapy

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

UNITS OF SERVICE NET REVENUE DIRECT COST CONTRIBUTION MARGIN NET INCOME

25,447 $1,104,936 $958,696 $146,240 ($101,064)

%CHANGE FROM 
PRIOR YR

Units of Service 36,443 31,882 31,708 25,447

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND
*Annualized

METRIC FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue $1,309,197 $1,222,923 $1,306,553 $1,104,936

Direct Cost $1,080,029 $1,020,166 $1,051,772 $958,696

Contribution Margin $229,168 $202,757 $254,781 $146,240

$3

Net Income ($57,696) ($132,831) ($58,877) ($101,064)

Net Revenue Per UOS $36 $38 $41 $43

$5

PER CASE TRENDED GRAPHS

Additional Reimb $58,158 $73,521 $103,457 $115,720

Direct Cost Per UOS $30 $32 $33 $38

Contrb Margin Per UOS $6 $6 $8 $6

Add Reimb Per UOS $2 $2

$36 
$38 

$41 
$43 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

$50

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue Per UOS

$30 
$32 $33 

$38 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Direct Cost Per UOS

$6 $6 

$8 

$6 

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

$7

$8

$9

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Contrb Margin Per UOS

$2 

$2 

$3 

$5 

$0

$1

$1

$2

$2

$3

$3

$4

$4

$5

$5

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Add Reimb Per UOS

115/465



current year svc line

FY2025
Hand 
Therapy

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025
Outpatient Services - Hand Therapy

Note:  FY2020 is annualized in graphs and throughout the analysis

*Annualized

FY2022 FY2024 FY2025

40% 42% 41% 37%

29% 24% 29% 26%

17% 15% 12% 16%

5% 8% 9% 6%

8% 8% 6% 13%

1% 3% 3% 3%

Notes:
Source:  Outpatient Service Line Reports
Criteria: Outpatient Service Line is O/P Therapies and Secondary Service Line is Hand Center

*Visit = monthly billing

Medicare

PAYER MIX - 4 YEAR TREND (TOTAL CHARGES)

PAYER FY2023

Managed Care/Other

Medi-Cal Managed Care

Medicare Managed Care

Work Comp

Medi-Cal

FY 2025 Payer Mix

Managed 
Care/Other

37%

Medi-Cal 
Managed 
Care 26%

Medicare
16%

Medicare Managed 
Care 6%

Work Comp 13% Medi-Cal 3%

116/465



current year svc line

FY2025
Cardiac 
Rehabilitatio

RED RED RED RED RED

-11% -3% 4% -53% -16%

4 YR TREND

-11%

-3%

4%

51%

-53%

-16%

8%

16%

70%

-47%

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND

4,383 $575,828 $541,945 $33,883 ($218,387)

CONTRIBUTION MARGIN NET INCOME

FY2025KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT

UNITS OF SERVICE NET REVENUE DIRECT COST

Outpatient Services - Cardiac Rehabilitation

%CHANGE FROM 
PRIOR YR

$124

Add Reimb Per UOS $0 $1 $1

Net Revenue $498,448 $570,891 $595,076 $575,828

Contribution Margin $108,377 $125,655 $71,531 $33,883

Direct Cost $390,071

$3,537 $5,356Additional Reimb $685 $5,577

*Annualized

METRIC FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

4,383Units of Service 4,494 5,118 4,907

Contrb Margin Per UOS $24 $25

($218,387)

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Net Revenue Per UOS

Net Income ($113,570) ($100,041) ($188,213)

$15

PER CASE TRENDED GRAPHS

$111

$445,236 $523,546

$8

$112 $121 $131

Direct Cost Per UOS $87 $87 $107

$541,945

$1

$111 $112 
$121 

$131 

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

$140

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue Per UOS

$87 $87 

$107 

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Direct Cost Per UOS

$24 $25 

$15 

$8 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Contrb Margin Per UOS

$0.2

$1.1

$0.7

$1.2

($0)

$0

$1

$1

$2

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Add Reimb Per UOS

117/465



current year svc line

FY2025
Cardiac 
Rehabilitatio

FY2025KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT
Outpatient Services - Cardiac Rehabilitation

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Note:  FY2020 is annualized in graphs and throughout the analysis

*Annualized

FY2022 FY2024 FY2025 FY 2025 PAYER MIX

48% 50% 46% 41%

39% 34% 33% 40%

7% 9% 16% 13%

4% 3% 4% 4%

Notes:
Source:  Outpatient Service Line Reports
Criteria: Outpatient Service Line is O/P Therapies and Secondary Service Line is Cardiac Rehab

PAYER MIX - 4 YEAR TREND (TOTAL CHARGES)

PAYER FY2023

Medicare

Managed Care/Other

Medicare Managed Care

Medi-Cal Managed Care Medicare 41%

Managed 
Care/Other

40%

Medicare 
Managed 
Care 13%

Medi-Cal Managed Care 4%

118/465



Separator Page

Wound Care

119/465



current year svc line

FY2025
Wound Care 
Center

GRE
EN

GRE
EN

RED RED RED

13% 109% 134% -15% -86%

4 YR TREND

13%

109%

134%

1154%

-15%

66%

-86%

85%

106%

850%

-25%

KEY METRICS - ANNUALIZED FY 2025 TEN MONTHS ENDED APRIL 30, 2025 (Customized to account 
for volume increase in last half of FY 2025)

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025
Outpatient Services - Wound Care Center

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

UNITS OF SERVICE NET REVENUE DIRECT COST CONTRIBUTION MARGIN NET INCOME

11,530 $1,118,381 $1,044,509 $73,872 ($669,420)

%CHANGE FROM 
PRIOR YR

Units of Service 14,154 13,953 10,181 11,530

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND
*Annualized

METRIC FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue $574,014 $511,464 $534,183 $1,118,381

Direct Cost $653,544 $622,223 $447,240 $1,044,509

Contribution Margin ($79,530) ($110,759) $86,944 $73,872

Indirect Cost $484,573 $445,062 $446,728 $743,292

$9

Net Income ($564,103) ($555,821) ($359,785) ($669,420)

Net Revenue Per UOS $41 $37 $52 $97

PER CASE TRENDED GRAPHS

Additional Reimb $5,457 $7,304 $9,799 $122,868

Direct Cost Per UOS $46 $45 $44 $91

Contrb Margin Per UOS ($6) ($8) $9 $6

Add Reimb Per UOS $0 $1 $1

$41 $37 

$52 

$97 

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Net Revenue Per UOS

$46 $45 $44 

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

$70

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Direct Cost Per UOS

($6)

($8)

$9 
$6 

($10)

($8)

($6)

($4)

($2)

$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Contrb Margin Per UOS

$0 
$1 $1 

$9 

$0
$1
$2

$3
$4
$5

$6
$7
$8

$9
$10

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Add Reimb Per UOS

120/465



current year svc line

FY2025
Wound Care 
Center

KEY METRICS - ANNUALIZED FY 2025 TEN MONTHS ENDED APRIL 30, 2025 (Customized to account 
for volume increase in last half of FY 2025)

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025
Outpatient Services - Wound Care Center

Note:  FY2020 is annualized in graphs and throughout the analysis

FY2022 FY2024 FY2025 FY 2025 Payer Mix

37% 40% 46% 52%

16% 25% 26% 20%

29% 18% 9% 18% 18.7

17% 16% 16% 9%

Notes:
Source:  Outpatient Service Line Reports
Criteria: Outpatient Service Line is Wound Care

Medi-Cal Managed Care

PAYER MIX - 4 YEAR TREND (TOTAL CHARGES)

PAYER FY2023

Medicare

Managed Care/Other

Medicare Managed Care

Medicare
52%

Managed 
Care/Other 20%

Medi-Cal 
Managed Care

18%

Medicare Managed 
Care 9%

121/465



Separator Page

June 4, 2025

122/465



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

Marketing & Community Relations Committee OPEN MEETING
Wednesday June 4, 2025
Kaweah Health Medical Center Executive Office Conference Room

Present: Director: Armando Murrieta; Marc Mertz, Chief Strategy Officer; Deborah Volosin, Director of 
Patient & Community Experience; Gary Rogers, Communications Manager; Samantha 
Torres, Social Media Specialist; Amee Longbottom, Sr. Communications Specialist; Jaclyn 
Bunting, Sr. Digital Strategist; and Lisette Mariscal, Recording

CALL TO ORDER This meeting was called to order at 4:01 PM by Armando Murrieta.
  
PUBLIC/MEDICAL PARTICIPATION There was no public or medical participation.

MINUTES- The open meeting minutes from April 2, 2025 were reviewed.

COMMUNITY EXPERIENCE A verbal update was provided regarding recent community engagement 
meetings and events.

MARKETING & MEDIA RELATIONS 

3.1.1 . (see 
Attachment 3.1.1 of the agenda)
3.1.2 Presentation of new internal graphics. (see Attachment 3.1.2 of the agenda)
3.1.3 Overview of the recent advertisements, including bus ads, digital ads, and QR code promotions 
focusing on lab services and Stroke Month. (see Attachment 3.1.3 of the agenda)
3.1.4 Discussed the content and distribution of the Summer Edition of Vital Signs. (see Attachment 
3.1.4 of the agenda)
3.1.5 Recap of the Kaweah Night at the Rawhide event. (see Attachment 3.1.5 of the agenda)
3.1.6 A verbal update was provided on the following items:

May Stroke Month
Website Enhancements 
Branding Commercial
Media Planning & Budgeting

123/465



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

Medical Minute Segment
Lab Online Appointments Rollout
Nurses Week/Hospital Week
Jennah 2-Year Extension

3.2 An update on recent marketing performance and engagement metrics was presented. (see 
Attachment 3.2 of the agenda)

Adjourned at 4:46 PM

124/465



Separator Page

June 10, 2025

125/465



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

Information Systems Committee OPEN MEETING
Tuesday June 10, 2025
Kaweah Health Medical Center Copper Conference Room

Present: Directors: Dave Francis (Chair) & Lynn Havard Mirviss; Gary Herbst, CEO; Doug Leeper, Chief 
Information & Cybersecurity Officer; Leah Daugherty, RN, Director of ISS Clinical Informatics; Luke 
Schneider, Director of ISS Applications Services; Roger Haley, MD, Medical Director of Informatics; 
Belen Contreras, Recording

Called to order at 2:30PM
  
Public Participation- None. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA- Approval of the ISC Agenda.

MINUTES- Minutes were reviewed from June 04, 2024.

FY26 ISS CAPITAL BUDGET Doug Leeper gave an overview of the Information Systems Services capital 
budget for fiscal year 2026 (copy attached to the original of these minutes and considered a part thereof)
Doug Leeper Chief Information & Cybersecurity Officer

AMBIENT LISTENING PILOT Doug presented an overview of the ambient listening pilot (copy attached 
to the original of these minutes and considered a part thereof) Doug Leeper Chief Information & 
Cybersecurity Officer  

Adjourned at 3:30PM

126/465



Separator Page

June 11, 2025

127/465



KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES

Wednesday, June 16, 2025
Kaweah Health Medical Center

305 Acequia Avenue, Executive Office Conference Room

PRESENT: Directors: Lynn Havard Mirviss (chair); Dianne Cox, Chief Human Resources 
Officer; Raleen Larez, Director of Employee Relations; Hannah Mitchell, Director 
of Organizational Development; JC Palermo, Director of Physician Recruitment; 
Paul Stefanacci, M.D., Chief Medical & Quality Officer; Kelsie Davis, recording

CALLED TO ORDER at 4:01pm by Director Havard Mirviss

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION None.

MINUTES- Reviewed.

PHYSICIAN RECRUITMENT JC gave an updated overview and discussion of the monthly
physician recruitment report.

HUMAN RESOURCES/ORG DEVELOPMENT INITAITIVES 2025 Dianne, Hannah, Raleen and Jaime 
presented Kaweah Care Ideal Environment and Ideal Practice Environment updates relative 
to current and proposed Initiatives which is attached hereto the minutes. 

KAWEAH CARE STEERING COMMITTEE Dianne reviewed the presentation which are attached
hereto the minutes. 

HUMAN RESOURCES POLICIES Dianne and her team reviewed the Human
Resources policies as reviewed and recommended to be presented to the Board for approval.
Attached hereto the minutes. 

ADJOURN at 4:57pm by Director Havard Mirviss

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate at this meeting, please 
contact the Board Clerk (559) 624-2330. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors meeting.

128/465



Separator Page

June 18, 2025

129/465



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

Finance, Property, Services, and Acquisition Committee OPEN MEETING
Wednesday June 18, 2025
Kaweah Health Medical Center Executive Office Conference Room

Present: Directors: David Francis & Dean Levitan, M.D.; Gary Herbst, CEO; Malinda Tupper, Chief
Financial Officer; Marc Mertz, Chief Strategy Officer; Jennifer Stockton, Director of Finance; Jag
Batth, Chief Operating Officer; R. Gates, Chief Ambulatory Officer; K. Davis, Board Clerk 
Recording

Called to order at 10:00AM
  
Public Participation- None. 

MINUTES- Minutes were reviewed from May 21, 2025.

FINANCIALS Review of the most current fiscal year financial results and a progress review of 
projections relative to the Kaweah Health initiatives to decrease costs and improve cost efficiencies 
(copy attached to the original of these minutes and considered a part thereof) - Malinda Tupper Chief 
Financial Officer  

Adjourned at 11:04 AM

130/465



Separator Page

June 19, 2025

131/465



OPEN Quality Council Committee
Thursday, June 19, 2025
The Lifestyle Center Conference Room

Attending: Board Members: Mike Olmos (Chair) & Dean Levitan, Board Member; Gary Herbst, CEO; 
Sandy Volchko, Director of Quality & Patient Safety; Jag Batth, Chief Operating Officer, 
Schlene Peet, Interim Chief Nursing Officer; Mark Mertz, Chief Strategy Officer; Cindy 
Vander Schuur, Manager of Patient Safety; Dr. Mack, Medical Director of Quality & 
Patient Safety; Molly Niederreiter, Director of Rehabilitation Services; Marissa Gutierrez, 
Nurse Manager; Erika Pineda, Quality Improvement Manager; Kyndra Licon Recording.

Mike Olmos called to order at 7:30 AM.

Approval of Closed Session Agenda: Dean Levitan made a motion to approve the closed agenda, there 
were no objections.

Mike Olmos adjourned the meeting at 7:31 AM.

Public Participation None.
Mike Olmos called to order at 8:00 AM.

3. Approval of May Quality Council Open Session Minutes Mike Olmos, Committee Chair; Dean 
Levitan, Board Member. 

Approval of May Quality Council Open Session Minutes by Dean Levitan and Mike Olmos.  

4. Written Quality Reports A review of key quality metrics and actions associated with the following 
improvement initiatives: Reports reviewed and attached to minutes. No action taken.

4.1 Hand Hygiene Quality Report
4.2 Subacute Quality Report

5. Safety Culture Survey Results and actions associated with the 2025 Safety Culture Survey. 
Sandy Volchko, RN, DNP, Director of Quality Patient Safety. Suggestion to ensure that staff who 
take the Safety Culture Survey are also included in Day 2 of Orientation where high reliability 
concepts are discussed. 

6. Clinical Quality Goals Update- A review of current performance and actions focused on the 
clinical quality goals for Sepsis, and Healthcare Acquired Infections. Reports reviewed and 
attached to minutes. No action taken.

Adjourn Open Meeting Mike Olmos, Committee Chair

Mike Olmos adjourned the meeting at 8:55 AM.

132/465



Separator Page

May 20, 2025

133/465



SPEICAL MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL OPEN MEETING OF THE KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS HELD TUESDAY MAY 20, 2025, AT 2:00PM IN THE GME WEST 
CLASSROOM 5TH FLOOR SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING  520 W. MINERAL KING AVENUE, 
VISALIA, CA. 

PRESENT: Directors Olmos, Havard Mirviss, & Levitan; G. Herbst, CEO; M. Tupper, CFO; B. Cripps, 
Chief Compliance Officer; D. Cox, Chief Human Resource Officer; R. Gates; Chief 
Ambulatory Officer; M. Mertz, Chief Strategy Officer; S. Peet, CNO; D. Leeper, Chief 
Information Officer; P. Stefanacci, Chief Medical Officer; R. Berglund, Legal Counsel; 
and K. Davis, recording 

The meeting was called to order at 2:03 PM by Director Olmos.  

ROLL CALL- Director Olmos, Havard Mirviss, and Levitan were all present.  

FLAG SALUTE- Director Olmos lead the flag salute.  

Director Olmos asked for approval of the agenda. 
MMSC (Levitan/Havard Mirviss) to approve the open agenda.  This was supported unanimously 
by those present.  Vote:  Yes - Havard Mirviss, Olmos and Levitan. Absent: Francis & Murrieta    

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  None.       
ELEVATING PATIENT SAFETY  A Review of Board Education and progress report from Chartis. 
Copy attached to the original of the minutes and to be considered a part thereof.  

ADJOURN to closed session- Meeting was adjourned at 3:04PM  

Mike Olmos, President  
Kaweah Delta Health Care District and the Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

David Francis, Secretary/Treasurer 
Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors 

134/465



Separator Page

May 28, 2025

135/465



MINUTES OF THE OPEN MEETING OF THE KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS HELD WEDNESDAY MAY 28, 2025, AT 4:00PM IN THE CITY OF VISALIA CITY COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS  707 W. ACEQUIA, VISALIA, CA. 

PRESENT: Directors Olmos, Francis, Havard Mirviss & Murrieta; G. Herbst, CEO; D. Hightower, 
Chief of Staff; M. Tupper, CFO; B. Cripps, Chief Compliance Officer; D. Cox, Chief 
Human Resource Officer; R. Gates; Chief Ambulatory Officer; M. Mertz, Chief Strategy 
Officer; S. Peet, CNO; D. Leeper, Chief Information Officer; P. Stefanacci, Chief Medical 
Officer; R. Berglund, Legal Counsel; and K. Davis, recording  

The meeting was called to order at 4:00 PM by Director Olmos.  

Director Olmos asked for approval of the agenda. 

MMSC (Francis/Murrieta) to approve the open agenda.  This was supported unanimously by 
those present.  Vote:  Yes - Havard Mirviss, Murrieta, Olmos and Francis   Absent: Levitan 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION None.  

Director Olmos asked for approval of the closed agenda. 

MMSC (Havard Mirviss/Murrieta) to approve the closed agenda.  This was supported 
unanimously by those present.  Vote:  Yes - Havard Mirviss, Murrieta, Olmos and Francis   
Absent: Levitan 

ADJOURN - Meeting was adjourned at 4:00PM  

Mike Olmos, President  
Kaweah Delta Health Care District and the Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

David Francis, Secretary/Treasurer 
Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors 

136/465



MINUTES OF THE OPEN MEETING OF THE KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS HELD WEDNESDAY MAY 28, 2025, AT 5:00PM IN THE CITY OF VISALIA CITY COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS  707 W. ACEQUIA, VISALIA, CA. 

PRESENT: Directors Olmos, Francis, Havard Mirviss, Murrieta & Levitan; G. Herbst, CEO; D. 
Hightower, Chief of Staff; M. Tupper, CFO; B. Cripps, Chief Compliance Officer; D. Cox, 
Chief Human Resource Officer; R. Gates; Chief Ambulatory Officer; M. Mertz, Chief 
Strategy Officer; S. Peet, CNO; D. Leeper, Chief Information Officer; P. Stefanacci, 
Chief Medical Officer; R. Berglund, Legal Counsel; and K. Davis, recording 

The meeting was called to order at 5:13 PM by Director Olmos.  

ROLL CALL- Director Olmos, Havard Mirviss, Francis, and Murrieta were all present. Absent: 
Director Levitan. 

FLAG SALUTE- Director Murrieta lead the flag salute.  

Director Olmos asked for approval of the agenda. 
MMSC (Havard Mirviss/Francis) to approve the open agenda.  This was supported unanimously 
by those present.  Vote:  Yes - Havard Mirviss, Murrieta, Olmos and Francis Absent: Levitan.    

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  None.       
CLOSED SESSION ACTION TAKEN: approval of the closed meeting minutes from April 23, 2025.  

OPEN MINUTES  Requested approval of the open meeting minutes from April 23, 2025. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  Sam Sciacca spoke for 5 minutes and gave kudos to the Board of 
Directors for their great work.  

MMSC (Havard Mirviss/Murrieta) to approve the open minutes from April 23, 2025. 

This was supported unanimously by those present.  Vote:  Yes  Olmos, Havard Mirviss, Francis, 
and Murrieta. Absent: Levitan      

RECOGNITIONS- Resolution 2256, 2257.   

CREDENTIALING  Medical Executive Committee requests that the appointment, reappointment 
and other credentialing activity regarding clinical privileges and staff membership recommended 
by the respective department chiefs, the credentials committee and the Medical Executive 
Committee be reviewed for approval. 
CHIEF OF STAFF REPORT  Report relative to current Medical Staff events and issues  Daniel 
Hightower, Chief of Staff  

 No report.  
Public Participation  None. 

Director Olmos requested a motion to approve the Medical Executive Committee 
recommendations on appointments and other credentialing activity regarding clinical privileges 
and staff membership as presented except the appointment will be for applicant number Q-
992295 will be for a one-year appointment.   

MMSC (Havard Mirviss/Francis) Whereas a thorough review of all required information and 
supporting documentation necessary for the consideration of initial applications, 

137/465



Board of Directors Meeting  Open 5:00PM 5.28.25 Page 2 of 3 

reappointments, request for additional privileges, advance from provisional status and release 
from proctoring and resignations (pursuant to the Medical Staff bylaws) has been completed by 
the Directors of the clinical services, the Credentials Committee, and the Executive Committee of 
the Medical Staff, for all of the medical staff scheduled for reappointment,  Whereas the basis for 
the recommendations now before the Board of Trustees regarding initial applications, 
reappointments, request for additional privileges, advance from provisional status and release 
from proctoring and resignations has been predicated upon the required reviews, including all 
supporting documentation, to the organized medical staff of Kaweah Delta Health Care District 
for a two year period unless otherwise specified, with physician-specific privileges granted as 
recommended by the Chief of Service, the Credentials Committee, and the Executive Committee 
of the Medical Staff and as will be 
application approval and reappointment from the Board of Trustees and within their individual 
credentials files .  This was supported unanimously by those present.  Vote:  Yes  Olmos, Havard 
Mirviss, Murrieta and Francis   Absent: Levitan 

CONSENT CALENDAR  Director Olmos entertained a motion to approve the May 28, 2025, 
consent calendar.  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  None.   
MMSC (Havard Mirviss/Murrieta)  to approve the May 28, 2025, consent calendar.  This was 
supported unanimously by those present.  Vote:  Yes  Olmos, Havard Mirviss, Murrieta and 
Francis. Absent: Levitan 

STRATEGIC INITIATIVE- IDEAL WORK ENVIRONMENT  A detailed review of strategic plan 
initiative. Copy attached to the original of the minutes and to be considered a part thereof. 

FY26 STRATEGIC PLAN  A detailed review of the full strategic plan initiatives for fiscal year 2026. 
Copy attached to the original of the minutes and to be considered a part thereof. 
Public Participation  None. 

Director Olmos called for a motion to approve the FY26 Strategic Plan as presented.  
MMSC (Francis/Havard Mirviss) to approve the FY26 Strategic Plan. 

This was supported unanimously by those present.  Vote:  Yes  Olmos, Havard Mirviss, Francis, 
and Murrieta. Absent: Levitan      

LEAPFROG SAFETY SCORE REPORT  Review of Kaweah Health performance and action focused 
on the safety metrics that are included in the Leapfrog Patient Safety Grade released in Spring 
2025. Copy attached to the original of these minutes and considered a part thereof.  

FISCAL YEAR 2026 BUDGET  Review of the preliminary budget results, concepts, and guidelines. 
Copy attached to the original of these minutes and considered a part thereof.  

FINANCIALS  Review of the most current fiscal year financial results. Copy attached to the 
original of these minutes and considered a part thereof.  

138/465



Board of Directors Meeting  Open 5:00PM 5.28.25 Page 3 of 3 

REPORTS 
Chief Executive Officer Report Mr. Herbst gave an update on the hospital census. Gary 
Herbst, CEO 
Board President- None.  Mike Olmos, Board President 

 
ADJOURN - Meeting was adjourned at 7:39PM  

Mike Olmos, President  
Kaweah Delta Health Care District and the Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

David Francis, Secretary/Treasurer 
Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors 

139/465



Separator Page

AP46

140/465



  
 

Subcategories of Department Manuals 
not selected. 

Policy Number:     AP46 Date Created:  No Date Set 
Document Owner: Kelsie Davis (Board 
Clerk/Executive Assistant to CEO) 

Date Approved: Not Approved Yet 

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration) 

Procurement Card 

 
Printed copies are for reference only.  Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 
POLICY: To improve internal controls and cost-effectiveness, Kaweah Health 

participates in the WellsOne Expense Manager Program. When 
obtaining goods or supplies through the normal purchasing procedure 
is not appropriate or practical for the given situation, authorized staff 
members who possess a Kaweah Health issued credit card 
(Cardholder) can make certain local purchases on a limited basis.      
Advantages of using this method for making smaller, local purchases 
include: 

 Reduction of paperwork & streamlines the purchasing cycle for 
 

 Improves internal controls at the department level for point of sale 
transactions 

 Allows for transactions to be integrated into the financial accounting 
system 

 Reduces the number of accounts payable checks written by 
providing centralized billing and settlement (one monthly payment 
to Wells Fargo bank versus multiple vendor payments) 

 
REFERENCES: 
AP19 Travel, Per Diem and Other Employee Reimbursements 
AP105 Professional and Service Club District Reimbursed Memberships 
AP135 Capital Budget Purchases 
AP156 Standard Procurement Practices 
 
PROCEDURE: 

I. Executive Team Responsibilities 

A. Authorize  cardholders
reconciler, and establish original monthly and transactional spending 
limits for the cardholder set forth in the Procurement Card Application 

B. Authorize any modifications to Item (A) above. 
C. Sign and approve the Procurement Card Application/Modification and 

Agreement form related to Items (A) and (B) above.  
D. Ensure that all employees abide by the Procurement Card policies and 

procedures 

 

141/465



II.  

A. Must sign the cardholder agreement to acknowledge the 
s 

responsibilities 
B. Responsibility for the control and stewardship of the procurement card 

lies with each department.  The department is responsible for ensuring 
that cardholders are purchasing with competence and honesty and 
providing complete and reliable backup for the purchase.  Any abuse 
or misuse of the procurement cards must be reported to the 
appropriate Executive Team member and the Finance Manager, or 
designee. 

C. Review transactions to ensure that the charges are 
appropriate and reconciled to receipts.  Charges must meet the 
requirements as set forth in District Policies, including but not limited 
to, AP19 (Travel, Per Diem and Other Employee Reimbursements), 
AP84 (Mileage Reimbursements), AP105 (Professional and Service 
Club District Reimbursed Memberships), AP156 (Standard 
Procurement Practices).  Review and approval must be made on a 
regular basis.   

D. ory and cost center 
coding are appropriate.   

E. Ensure that original receipts are uploaded and reconciled to the 
corresponding transaction prior to approval.     

F. Ensure that all transactions have the required supporting documents.   
G. Report any suspected fraud or negligence of this policy to an 

Executive Team member and Finance Manager, or designee. 
H. Failure to follow this policy may result in the relinquishment of 

Approver responsibilities. 
 

III. Cardholder Responsibilities 

A. Participate in a procurement card training and sign the cardholder 
agreement to acknowledge the responsibilities of the use of the 
procurement card. 

B. Abide by all procurement card policies and procedures when making 
purchases as outlined in this policy and the Purchasing Card 
Agreement.  Failure to adhere to the procedures as outlined in this 
policy will result in revocation of individual Cardholder privileges and 
may result in disciplinary action  

C. Ensure the physical security of the purchasing card and protect the 
account number and all other security aspects of the card.  
Cardholders are responsible for all transactions posted to their 
account.  Immediately report lost or stolen cards to Wells Fargo Bank, 

e Manager, or designee.  The 
cardholder may be liable for charges incurred until the card is reported 
lost, stolen, or misplaced. 

D. The use of the card by any person other than the cardholder may 
result in revocation of the individual Cardholder privileges and may 
result in disciplinary action of the person using the card. 

E. 
coding are appropriate.  Adjust spend category and cost center codes 
as appropriate within the financial accounting system.  

142/465



F. Provide required documentation for each purchase in accordance with 
 

G. 
service. 

H. Transactions MUST be reconciled by the end of the month. If the end 
of the month falls on a weekend, transactions should be reconciled the 
next business day in order for the expense to post to the cost center 
for that billing period 
 

IV. Issuance of the Procurement Card 
A. Kaweah Health in coordination with Wells Fargo Bank issues the 

procurement card. 
B. The Procurement Card Application/Modification Form and the 

Procurement Card agreement MUST be completed, approved and 
returned to the Finance Manager prior to ordering the card. 

C. Cardholders must complete training before the procurement card is 
issued. 

D. Cardholders must pick up the card in Finance. 
 
V. Allowable Transactions 

A.  procurement card may be used for the following: 
1. Certain local purchases on a limited basis, 
2. When obtaining goods, supplies or services through the normal 

purchasing procedure outlined in AP156 (Standard Procurement 
Practices) is not appropriate or practical for the given situation, or 
travel.   

B. All purchases made with the procurement card must be for expenses 
associated with official Kaweah Health business. 

C. Travel expenses must be in compliance with AP19 (Travel, Per Diem 
and Other Employee Reimbursements). 

D. Procurement card purchases by Accounts Payable staff in lieu of 
check or EFT payment 

E. Procurement card purchases by Materials Management staff in lieu of 
vendor credit terms  

F. Dues and memberships expenses must be in compliance with AP105 
(Professional and Service Club District Reimbursed Memberships) 

G. Goods and services purchased for the benefit of employees and staff 
appreciation accounted for under any HR program (such as Job Well 
Done) must have Executive Officer and HR approval before the 
purchase is made to confirm that the department has budgeted funds 
available.   

 
VI. Prohibited Transactions, include but not limited to 

A. Cash advances 
B. Capital expenditures, unless prior approval is obtained by the CEO 

and obtaining the capital item through the normal purchasing 
procedure via Materials Management is not appropriate or practical. 

C. Goods, supplies or services normally purchased through materials 
management in accordance with Kaweah Health
Procurement Practices (District Administrative Policy AP156) 

D. Leases/rental agreements 

143/465



E. Maintenance/Service Agreements 
F. Software Licensing Agreements 
G. Supplier (Vendor) Invoices of any kind 
H. Personal items as noted in AP19 (Travel, Per Diem and Other 

Employee Reimbursements) or HR188 (Personal Property and 
Valuables) 

I. Office supplies (must be procured through the Office Depot punch out 
systems within Workday  or through Materials Management) 

J. Amazon purchases from a personal account (must be procured 
through Materials Management) 

K. Services of sole proprietorships, individuals, non incorporated 
businesses, or physician payments (these are 1099 reportable and 
generally covered by a Kaweah Health contractual agreement) 

L. Any purchase categories blocked through the purchasing card 
Merchant Category Codes (MCC) 

M. Payment of any type of penalty, unless approved by the CEO or 
Compliance Department 

N.  
 
VII. 

limited to 
A. More than two instances of using the credit card for personal 

purchases 
B. More than two instances of a lost card 
C. More than two instances of securing purchases not allowable under 

this policy 
D. More than two monthly instances of failure to reconcile transactions 
E. Three (6) consecutive months with without usage 

 
VIII. Required Documentation 

 
A. Original receipts MUST be uploaded to each transaction: 

1. For standard purchases, a receipt including the  
name, transaction amount, date, and detail of transaction 

2. For Internet purchases, a screen print or order confirmation 
email. 

B. In the rare and unique occurrence that a receipt cannot be located, an 
Executive Team member must approve the transaction by completing 
the Statement of No Receipt. The executive team member can require 
the cardholder to reimburse the Kaweah Health for transactions not 
supported by a receipt. 

C. If the business purpose of the transaction is not evident upon review of 
the receipt, further documentation will be required. 

D. Documentation relating to purchases and AP105 (Professional and 
Service Club District Reimbursed Memberships) and AP156 (Standard 
Procurement Practices) must be in compliance with the governing 
District policy.   

E. If purchases relate to Job Well Done, Executive Team Member and 
HR approval documentation must be attached.   

 
 

144/465



"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally 
acceptable approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist.  
Deviations under appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care.  
New knowledge, new techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical 
circumstances may provide sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not 
described 

145/465



Procurement Card Application/Modification Agreement
Kaweah Delta Healthcare District

Last Name       First Name    

Job Title           Employee ID 

Dept. Name      Dept #           

   Business Phone 

Card Business Purpose 

Procurement Card Controls

Card Type Spend Limits

Level 1
Monthly: $500.00
Single: $100.00

Level 2 Monthly: $1,000.00
Single: $500.00

Level 3 Monthly: $5,000.00
Single: $2,500.00

Level 4 (Must be director or Executive Member)Monthly: $10,000.00
Single: $5,000.00

Accounts Payable / Facilities / Materials 
Management / Maintenance

Limits TBD based on job requirements

Cardholder Information To be completed by Cardholder

Procurement Card Controls must be completed by Authorizing Executive Team Member

146/465



Commercial card expense reporting (CCER) program 
7

 

 

 
 

Procurement Card Agreement 
 

 
Accounting Manager immediately.  If notification does not take place within 24 hours, the Cardholder is 
responsible and will be held accountable for all charges made to the procurement card.  Should a Cardholder 
terminate employment with Kaweah Delta Health Care District, the Cardholder must return the procurement 
card to their approving director and/or Executive Team Member or the Procurement Card Program 
Administrator, who will then notify the bank.  A Change/Cancellation Form must be submitted to the 
Procurement Card Program Administrator within 48 hours of employment termination. 

Failure to adhere to the procedures as outlined in AP46 Procurement CARD PROGRAM) will result in 
revocation of individual Cardholder privileges and may result in disciplinary action.  Use of the Procurement 
Card for non-District business purposes (personal purchases), prohibited purchases as outlined in AP46, or 
allowing the use of the card by any person other than the cardholder may result in revocation of the individual 
Cardholder privileges and may result in disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal from employment and 
may in some circumstances constitute a criminal act punishable by law.   

Cardholder 
As a Cardholder, I agree to accept responsibility and accountability for the protection and proper use of this 
Procurement Card.  If non-District charges are placed on the Procurement Card and repayment is not 
forthcoming by reimbursement payable to the District, this will result in suspension of procurement card 
privileges. I understand that I must allow 4  6 weeks for delivery of my card.    

            
Cardholder Signature      Date 

Approver 
As the Approver, I take responsibility to review and reconcile purchases made by the cardholder to original 
receipts and ensure that all purchases are in accordance with District policies and procedures.  Failure to 
comply with policy may result in disciplinary action. 

 
           

Approver Signature      Date 

Cost Center Manager 
As the cost center manager, I take full administrative responsibility for the issuance of the procurement card 

 

           
Cost Center Manager Signature     Date 

Executive Team Member 
As the Approving Official, I take full administrative responsibility for the action of the Cardholder and I approve 
the limits as set forth for this card on the Procurement Card Application. 

           
Executive Team Member Signature    Date 

 
 

147/465



Commercial card expense reporting (CCER) program 
8

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Statement of No Receipt 
 
 
 
Wells Fargo Commercial Card Program Administrator: 
 
Finance Department, 
 
While the following transaction does not have the correlating receipt, the transaction has been 
reviewed, appears to be legitimate, and has been coded appropriately to the best of my 
knowledge.  
 
Transaction Date Supplier/Merchant Amount 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 
 
            
Executive Signature     Date  
 

 

148/465



Separator Page

AP84

149/465



 
Subcategories of Department Manuals 

not selected. 
 

Policy Number: AP84 Date Created: Not Set 
Document Owner: Kelsie Davis (Board Clerk/Exec 
Assist-CEO) 

Date Approved: 05/03/2023 

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration) 

Mileage Reimbursement 

 
Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
POLICY:   Employees that utilize their personal vehicle to conduct Kaweah Health 

business, mileage will be reimbursed using the mileage reimbursement 
rate determined by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) multiplied by the 
miles traveled on Kaweah Health business. Mileage reimbursement is 
paid in lieu of actual costs for fuel, repairs and general wear and tear to 
personal vehicles. As such, no separate reimbursement should be 
claimed for these expenses from Kaweah Health.  

 
REFERENCES: 
AP19 Travel and Other Business Expenses 

PROCEDURE: 

I. Mileage Calculation 

A. Between Campuses: Mileage incurred traveling 
between  campuses will be reimbursed using the 
standard, pre-determined miles shown on the Intra-District Mileage 
Reimbursement Request form. Request for mileage reimbursement 
between locations not included on the Intra-District form must be 
supported with an Employee Mileage Log form or Google Map. Mileage 
reimbursements will be provided when a staff member is required to 
travel from their designated campus to another campus for a specific 
business purpose.  

B. Coverage at other Campuses: If an employee is assigned to a different 
campus for coverage, only the additional mileage incurred due to the 
reassignment will be eligible for reimbursement. 

C. Outside  Service Area: Mileage incurred traveling 
outside the  
duties such as, conference travel, will be reimbursed. 

 
II. Procedures and Required Documentation for Mileage Reimbursement 

A. Standard Mileage Reimbursement: Employees are required to submit an 
expense report through Workday. Expense reports should be submitted at the 
start of each month for the previous month. Each month necessitates a separate 
expense report, with the expense date reflecting the last day of the month in 
which the mileage occurred.  

B. For reimbursement related to conference travel: Any mileage incurred during 
conference travel must receive prior approval through the completion of a spend 
authorization. After the authorization is approved, employees must generate an 

150/465



expense report based on it. Employees are not required to wait until the end of 
the month to submit their mileage reimbursement for conference travel. 

C. Departments 
Area:  Employees that travel on a daily basis as part of their job duties are 
responsible to maintain mileage records and submit expense report monthly. 

D. Required Documentation: 
 
1. Employees must complete the required forms or submit support to 

substantiate the expense reimbursement request. 
2. All expense reports should be submitted within 60 days of the  

last date of travel. Submissions for mileage reimbursement past 60 days 
will require Executive approval. 
 

III. Non-Reimbursable Mileage: 
A. Daily commuting . 
B. Travel . 

 

 

 
"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally 
acceptable approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches 
exist. Deviations under appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard 
of care. New knowledge, new techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or 
bio-ethical circumstances may provide sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they 
are not described in the document." 

151/465



 

EMPLOYEE MILEAGE LOG 

 
Date of Submission   Month   

 
Employee #   

 

DATE DESTINATION 
BEGINNING 
MILEAGE 

ENDING 
MILEAGE TOTAL 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

   TOTAL  

152/465



Separator Page

AP116

153/465



 

 

Administrative Policy
 

Policy Number:    AP116  Date Created: No Date Set 
Document Owner: Kelsie Davis (Board 
Clerk/Executive Assistant to CEO)  

Date Approved:  Not Approved Yet 

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration) 

California Public Information Request Policy 
 
 
Printed copies are for reference only.  Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 
I. DEFINITIONS  

 
The California Public Records Act (Government Code 7920.000 et seq.) is a state law 
that gives the public the right to ac
business.  It reflects the principle that public records are presumed to be open to 
inspection, unless there is a specific exemption.  

 
A) "District" means the Kaweah Delta Health Care District or any employee authorized 

to act on its behalf.  
B) "Public Record" includes any writing which contains information relating to the 

conduct of the public's business and/or which is prepared, owned, used, or 
retained by the District.  

C) "Writing" means handwriting, typewriting, printing, Photostatting, photographing, 
and every other means of recording upon any form of communication or 
representation.  

 

II. PURPOSE  
The purpose of this policy is to set the guidelines for compliance with the California 
Public Records Act, commencing at Section 6250 of the Government Code, and other 
applicable statutes and case law, by setting forth the procedures to be followed when 
making records available to the public. It is the policy of the District that public records 
be open for inspection and made available with minimal delay to the requesting party.  
Pursuant to section 6257 of the California Public Records Act, a fee equal to the direct 
cost of duplication may be charged to any person requesting a copy of a public record. 

 

III. RECORDS AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC  
Agendas or any other writings, except for records exempt from disclosure (including but 
not limited to the items listed below) under section 6254 of the California Public 
Records Act, distributed to all or a majority of the members of a legislative body for 
discussion or consideration at a public meeting are disclosable to the public upon 
request, and shall be made available to members of the public in accordance with the 
provisions of section 54957.5 of the Ralph M. Brown Act.   
 
All questions as to whether or not a record is exempt from disclosure according to this 
policy should be referred to counsel for the District.  Records exempt from disclosure 
include the following: 
 
RECORDS NOT AVAILABLE OR REQUIRES REFERRAL TO CONSEL FOR THE 
DISTRICT: 
 
A) Preliminary drafts, notes, or interagency or intra-agency memoranda that are not 

retained by the District in the ordinary course of business, providing that the public 

154/465



California Public Information Request Policy 2 

interest in withholding those records clearly outweighs the public interest in 
disclosure. 

B) Records pertaining to pending litigation to which the District is a party, or to claims 
made pursuant to Division 3.6 (commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the 
Government Code, until such litigation or claims have been finally adjudicated or 
otherwise settled. Gov. Code Sec. 6254(b).  

C) Personnel, medical, or similar files, the disclosure of which would constitute an 
unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. Gov. Code Sec. 6254(c).  

D) Requests for JCAHO final accreditation reports (that are forwarded to the State 
Department of Health Services) should be referred to counsel for the District. 

E) Confidential communications between the District and its attorneys. Evidence Code 
Section 954.  

F) Records of documents covered by the attorney work product privilege, or any other 
judicially recognized privilege, including but not limited to, the deliberative process 
privilege covered by the Evidence Code.  

G) A memorandum 
legal counsel pursuant to subdivision (q) of Government Code Section 11126 or 
54956.9 until the pending litigation has been fully adjudicated or otherwise settled. 
The memorandum shall be protected by the attorney work-product privilege until 
the pending litigation has been finally adjudicated or otherwise settled. Gov. Code 
Sec. 6254.25. 

H) Trade Secrets  Information claimed to be a trade secret at the time of submittal to 
the District may be treated as a trade secret according to Government Code Sec. 
6254 et. Seq.  See below IV.  Procedure, paragraph C. 

I) Requests for contracts and rates for inpatient and outpatient services should be 
referred to counsel for the District. 

J) Request for contracts 
insurance program information should be referred to counsel for the District. 

K) Real estate appraisals, engineering or feasibility estimates and evaluations should 
be referred to counsel for the District. 

 

IV. PROCEDURE 
 

Requesting Copies of Public Records   
All requests for copies of public records must be made in writing or by filling out 
the request form online at https://www.kaweahhealth.org/~/about-us/public-
records-request/ . The requests must be addressed to the Board of Directors of 
Kaweah Delta Health Care District.  . All requests must be made with sufficient 
clarity so as to reasonably describe an identifiable record. (Gov. Code Sec. 6257). 
Requests not meeting these criteria may be returned. Reasonable restrictions may 
be imposed upon general requests for voluminous classes of documents. Copies 
will not be provided if disclosure would infringe a copyright or would constitute an 
unreasonable burden on the operation of the District.  

 

Response Time 
The District shall determine within 10 days after the receipt of a public records 
request whether to comply with the request and shall immediately notify the 
requestor of its determination and the reasons therefor. Gov. Code Sec. 6256. 
Such notification will include a public records reference number, which should be 
used in any further correspondence relating to the request. The District should be 
able to make readily compiled records available within 10 days of receipt of the 
request. Additional time may be required if there is a large amount of material to 
compile, or if there is a question regarding the status of the requested records as 
public records. In either case, the requestor will be notified within the above 10-day 

155/465



California Public Information Request Policy 3 

period and will be given the approximate date by which public information will be 
made available. 
 

Exempt Records and Trade Secrets 
Records that are exempt from the Public Records Act will normally not be 
released. Exceptions to this policy may be granted at the discretion of the Chief 
Executive Officer. Records claimed by third parties to be trade secrets or 
otherwise exempt from disclosure will not be immediately released unless the 
District determines they are clearly public records. Only information claimed to be 
a trade secret at the time of submittal to the District may be treated as a trade 
secret.   Notice will be sent by certified mail to the third party claiming exempt or 
trade secret status. Such third party is responsible for providing its current mailing 
address to the District. The notice shall include a copy of the request, and a 
request for a detailed and complete justification of the basis for exempt or trade 
secret status, as defined in Section IV, to be provided within 15 calendar days of 
the date of the letter. If no justification is timely received, the subject records shall 
be released as specified herein.  Any justification claiming trade secret status must 
include a sworn declaration that should address the following six factors 
(Restatement of Torts Sec. 757.):  
1. the extent to which the information is known outside of the person's business;  
2. the extent to which it is known by employees and others involved in the person's 

business;  
3. the extent of measures taken by the person to guard the secrecy of the information;  
4. the value of the information to the person's business and to the person's competitors;  
5. the amount of effort or money expended by the person in developing the information;   
6. the ease or difficulty with which the information could be properly acquired or duplicated 

by others. 
 
In addition, any justification must be specific enough so as to identify which 
specific information in a document constitutes a trade secret or is exempt so that it 
may be blocked out in a document, with the remaining information to be released. 
Gov. Code Sec. 6257. As a result, all documents subject to the request should be 
reviewed by the third party claiming exempt or trade secret status before 
submitting its justification to enable it to specifically segregate information 
contained in those documents that may or may not be released. Failure to so 
segregate may result in the release of all information.  
 

The District shall evaluate the justification, and any other information at its disposal 
and shall determine if the justification supports the claim that the material is in fact 
exempt or is a trade secret under Government Code Section 6254 and Section 
6254.7, respectively. If the District determines that the claim is bona fide and that 
the material is exempt or a trade secret, the District Administrative Office shall 
notify the requestor that the data sought is exempt or a trade secret and therefore 
cannot be released. The requestor shall be advised of its right to bring appropriate 
legal action to compel disclosure. Any such action should name the third party 
claiming an exemption from disclosure as a real party in interest.  
 

If the District determines that the claim of exemption or trade secret is not 
meritorious or is inadequately supported by the evidence, the District shall 
promptly notify, by certified mail, the third party who claimed exempt or trade 
secret status that the justification is inadequate, and that the information shall be 
released after 10 calendar days from the date of receipt of such notice. Such third 
party shall also be advised of its right to bring appropriate legal action to prevent 
disclosure, and of its right to further respond. However, such further response, if 
inadequate, will not toll the 10-day period for release. In the event the third party 
cannot be reached at its last listed address with the District, the information shall 

156/465



California Public Information Request Policy 4 

be released after 15 calendar days of the date of such notice. Any legal action 
brought by the third party should name the requestor as a real party in interest.  
 
The above procedures regarding exempt records and trade secrets do not apply to 
requests made by other governmental agencies for purposes of carrying out their 
official responsibilities, if such agencies agree to treat the disclosed material as 
confidential pursuant to a written confidentiality agreement with the District. The 
confidentiality agreement shall designate those persons authorized by the 
requesting governmental agency to obtain the information. Gov. Code Sec. 
6254.5.  
 

The above procedures are also inapplicable if the requestor and the third party 
enter into an agreement waiving any objections to the District's release of the 
requested information. A signed copy of the agreement must be provided to the 
District. 
 

Subpoenas 
The Public Records Act is not applicable in situations where subpoenas have been 
issued against the District for document production. Any such subpoenas shall be 
referred to District Counsel's Office unless otherwise directed by that office. 
 

Request for Access to Inspect Specific Files 
It is the policy of the District that all records open for public inspection shall be 
available with the least possible delay and expense to the requesting party.  Public 
records are open to inspection at all times during the office hours of the District, 
and every citizen has a right to inspect any public record as defined herein. To 
permit sufficient time for the District to compile the records for review, an 
appointment to view the records should be made by the requestor. A request to 
inspect public records in the custody of the District must be in writing and must 
describe the records with sufficient specificity to enable the District to identify the 
information sought. 
  

Records that are exempt from the Public Records Act and records claimed to 
contain trade secrets will be handled in the manner described in Subsection C. If a 
delay occurs, the requestor will be notified of the reasons and offered the option of 
either viewing that portion of the record that is available, or waiting until the 
complete record is available.  
 

The Board Clerk, will be available to assist the requestor during the inspection. 
The requestor will be provided with the records and a work space. The Board 
Clerk will ensure that no records are removed or altered. If the requestor asks for 
photocopies or the electronic record of certain records, the Board Clerk will 
arrange for the copies and/or the electronic records to be provided to the requestor 
within 10 business days. The following requirements regarding fees will be 
applicable. 
 

Request for Public Records in an Electronic Format 

Per Government Code Section 6253.9. (a) Unless otherwise prohibited by law, any 
agency that has information that constitutes an identifiable public record not 
exempt from disclosure pursuant to this chapter that is in an electronic format shall 
make that information available in an electronic format when requested by any 
person and, when applicable, shall comply with the following: 

(1) The agency shall make the information available in any electronic format in 
which it holds the information. 

157/465



California Public Information Request Policy 5 

(2) Each agency shall provide a copy of an electronic record in the format 
requested if the requested format is one that has been used by the agency to 
create copies for its own use or for provision to other agencies. The cost of 
duplication shall be limited to the direct cost of producing a copy of a record in an 
electronic format. 

(b) Notwithstanding paragraph (2) of subdivision (a), the requester shall bear the 
cost of producing a copy of the record, including the cost to construct a record, 
and the cost of programming and computer services necessary to produce a copy 
of the record when either of the following applies: 

 of programming and computer services necessary to produce a copy of the record 
when either of the following applies: 

(1) In order to comply with the provisions of subdivision (a), the public agency 
would be required to produce a copy of an electronic record and the record is one 
that is produced only at otherwise regularly scheduled intervals. 

(2) The request would require data compilation, extraction, or programming to 
produce the record. 

(c) Nothing in this section shall be construed to require the public agency to 
reconstruct a record in an electronic format if the agency no longer has the record 
available in an electronic format. 

(d) If the request is for information in other than electronic format, and the 
information also is in electronic format, the agency may inform the requester that 
the information is available in electronic format. 

(e) Nothing in this section shall be construed to permit an agency to make 
information available only in an electronic format. 

(f) Nothing in this section shall be construed to require the public agency to release 
an electronic record in the electronic form in which it is held by the agency if its 
release would jeopardize or compromise the security or integrity of the original 
record or of any proprietary software in which it is maintained. 

(g) Nothing in this section shall be construed to permit public access to records 
held by any agency to which access is otherwise restricted by statute. 

 
Fees for Copies or Electronic Format of Public Records 

There is no fee for less than 10 pages of public records. For 10 or more pages, the 
fee is 25 cents per page for all pages, including the first 9. Staff time will not be 
charged for providing copies or electronic format of existing identifiable 
documents. 
 
The Public Records Act requires "payment of fees covering direct costs of 
duplication, or a statutory fee, if applicable." Gov. Code Sec. 6257. If the charges 
are estimated to exceed $50, the requestor will be notified before the Board of 
Directors office begins processing the request. If the costs will exceed $200, the 
District will require advance payment before the copies are made. In all other 
cases, the District Executive Office will submit an invoice for any remaining 
charges.  

 
V. RESPONSIBILITIES 

158/465



California Public Information Request Policy 6 

District Executive Office 
The District Executive Office will have primary responsibility for coordinating the 
District's compliance with the California Public Records Act. That responsibility 
includes: 
  
1. Receiving, logging, and tracking all requests for public records;  
2. Sending copies of requests to all applicable divisions within one business day;  
3. Assisting the public in understanding what information is available, and what 

must be done to obtain access to, or copies of, public records;  
4. 

necessary and provided their comments as to whether the requested records 
may be released;  

5. Requesting and obtaining the required information from the appropriate 
division(s);  

6. If a record has been identified as a trade secret or appears to be confidential, 
follow the procedures outlined above dealing with trade secrets;  

7. Providing the necessary notices and public records within the appropriate 
periods as outlined in these guidelines;  

8. Ensuring that all records are safeguarded. 
9. Making sure that all originals of records are returned to the appropriate 

divisions as soon as possible; and  
10. Ensuring that requests from the media are coordinated with the Marketing 

Department. 
 
The approved records will be provided within 10 business days of the receipt of the 
request, unless the volume of the material warrants additional time.  
 
If additional time is necessary, the District  Executive Office will inform the 
requestor of the revised scheduled and will be responsible for transmitting the 
copies to the requestor.  

 
District Counsel 

The District Counsel's Office will be responsible for providing legal guidance in 
determining which records may be released under the Public Records Act. The 
District  Executive Office shall provide District Counsel with those documents that 
are alleged to be trade secrets or exempt from the Public Records Act.  In 
addition, the District  Executive Office will immediately provide District Counsel 
with all correspondence relating to the justification of exempt or trade secret 
status. The District  Executive Office will then be responsible for maintaining in a 
separate file those records which may not be released, and for releasing the 
remaining records pursuant to these guidelines. 

 
 
"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally 
acceptable approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist.  
Deviations under appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care.  
New knowledge, new techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical 
circumstances may provide sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not 
described in the document."  
 

159/465



Separator Page

BOD2

160/465



161/465



162/465



163/465



164/465



Separator Page

BOD3

165/465



166/465



167/465



168/465



Separator Page

BOD4

169/465



170/465



171/465



172/465



173/465



Separator Page

BOD5

174/465



175/465



176/465



177/465



178/465



179/465



180/465



181/465



182/465



183/465



184/465



185/465



186/465



187/465



188/465



189/465



190/465



191/465



192/465



Separator Page

BOD8

193/465



194/465



195/465



Separator Page

BOD9

196/465



Board of Directors

Policy Number:     BOD9 Date Created:  06/09/2025
Document Owner: Kelsie Davis (Board 
Clerk/Executive Assistant to CEO)

Date Approved: TBD

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration)

BOARD COMPENSATION

Printed copies are for reference only.  Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version.

PURPOSE: To comply with California Health and Safety Code Section 32103, this 
mbers 

for more than five meetings per calendar month. 

POLICY: The Board of Directors of Kaweah Health finds, based on substantial evidence, 
that the effective operation of the District requires Board members to 
participate in more than five compensated meetings in some months. 

Factors supporting this finding include:   

Oversight of complex healthcare operations
Legal and regulatory compliance demands
Community engagement and advisory participation
Strategic planning and financial oversight
Coordination with local, regional, and state partners

This policy shall be reviewed and readopted annually by the Board of Directors. 

"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally 
acceptable approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist.
Deviations under appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care.
New knowledge, new techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical 
circumstances may provide sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not 
described in the document."

197/465



Separator Page

EHS06

198/465



 
Employee Health 

 
Policy Number: EHS 06 Date Created: 06/01/2007 

Document Owner: Kelsie Davis (Board 
Clerk/Executive Assistant to CEO) 

Date Approved: 12/18/2024 

Approvers: Dianne Cox (Chief Human Resources Officer), Jenn Cooper (Executive Assistant), 
Kelsie Davis (Board Clerk/Executive Assistant to CEO) 

Work Related Injury and Illness and Workers' Compensation 

 
Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
PURPOSE: 

 
To provide the employee with 
employment-related injury or illness. To comply with California Code of Regulations, Title 
8, 342 Reporting Work-Connected Fatalities and Serious Injuries and Occupational 
Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Regulation 1904.39: Reporting fatalities, 
hospitalizations, amputations, and losses of an eye as a result of work-related incidents 
to OSHA. 

 
POLICY: 

 
 Compensation Act of the state of 

California for emp
Compensation is a no-fault insurance designed to provide employees with compensation 
for work-related injuries or illness, regardless of fault. 
employees of Kaweah Health for work-related injuries and illnesses. Kaweah Health 
contracts with a Third-Party Administrator, to provide claims management services for 
injured workers, i.e. medical claims, temporary disability wages, mileage to medical 
appointments, etc. 

 
AB-1870 Provides for Kaweah Health to include the following information in this policy: 

 
 The injured employee may consult a licensed attorney to advise them of their 
rights under workers compensations laws. In most instances, attorneys fees 
will be paid from an injured employees recovery. 

 The rights of the employee to select and change the treating physician 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 4600. 

 The rights of the employee to receive temporary disability indemnity, 
permanent disability indemnity, supplemental job displacement, and death 
benefits, as appropriate. 

 To whom injuries should be reported. 
 The existence of time limits for the employer to be notified of an occupational 
injury. 

 The protections against discrimination provided pursuant to Section 132a. 
 The internet website address and contact information that employees may use 

to obtain further information about the workers compensation claims process 

199/465



Work Related Injury and Illness and Workers' Compensation 2 
 

and injured rights and obligations, including the location and 
telephone number of the nearest information and assistance officer. 

 Failure of an employer to provide the notice required by this section 
shall automatically permit the employee to be treated by their personal 
physician with respect to an injury occurring during that failure. 

 The form and content of the notice required to be posted by this section 
shall be made available to self-insured employers and insurers by the 
administrative director. Insurers shall provide this notice to each of their 
policy holders, with advice concerning the requirements of this section 
and the penalties for failure to post this notice. 

 
A Transitional Work Program (TWP) may be available to employees who have suffered 
an on-the-job injury or have temporary limitations rendering them unable to return to their 
regular positions, but have released to restricted duty by their provider(s). 

 
BENEFITS: 

 
1. Medical bills are paid as long as the bills were incurred for services that were 

reasonable and necessary to cure or relieve the effects of the work-related illness 
or injury. 

2. If an employee cannot work, temporary disability compensation (TTD) is paid 

compliance with the state of California requirements. The maximum amount paid 
is set by the state of California and is not determined by Kaweah Health. The 
employee must use accrued Extended Illness Bank (EIB) and Paid Time Off (PTO) 
to supplement their pay to equal base earnings each pay period, exclusive of any 
shift differentials. If the employee is off work for less than 14 days, there is a three 
(3) day waiting period before TTD will begin.  The first three (3) days is paid using 
accrued Extended Illness Bank (EIB) hours.  If the employee is off work for more 
than 14 days, TTD begins on day one. 

 
PROCEDURE FOR WORK RELATED INJURY/ILLNESS: 

 
1. If medical care is required for an employee who has sustained a work-related injury 

or illness, the supervisor or employee is required to contact Employee Health 
Services, house supervisor, or in the case of a clear emergency, the Emergency 
Department. If treated in the Emergency Department or Urgent Care Facility, the 
employee must contact their manager and Employee Health Services the next 
business day Employee Health Services is open. 

 
2. Employees may pre-designate a medical provider for work related injuries or 

mployee health file. 
 

3. If the injury involves a sterile (unused) sharp object, no treatment or testing is 
usually necessary. If injury/exposure involves contact with blood or body fluids, 
refer to EHS 02: Employee Exposure to Bloodborne Pathogens Policy when 
treating the employee. The supervisor or employee is required to contact 
Employee Health Services, house supervisor, or in the case of an emergency, the 
Emergency Department. If treated in the Emergency Department, the employee 
must contact their manager and Employee Health Services on the next business 

200/465



Work Related Injury and Illness and Workers' Compensation 3 
 

day Employee Health Services is open.

201/465



Work Related Injury and Illness and Workers' Compensation 4 
 

4.
sign the Work-Related Injury/Illness Report Form within 24 hours of knowledge of 
injury if they are the first point of contact for the injured employee. This form is 

 A 
DWC-1 claim form must also be completed in Employee Health if it is believed 
that this injury will be more than first aid treatment. These forms must be completed 
and provided to Employee Health immediately so the claim filing process can 
begin. If Employee Health is not open at the time of the injury, management shall 
report the injury by email to Employee Health Services, on the Employee Health 
Services voicemail by calling extension 2458, or by faxing the forms to Employee 
Health Services at 559-635-6233. In the event that the injury is such that the 
employee must be seen by a provider immediately, the house supervisor will 
instruct the employee to report to Kaweah Health Clinic to be seen by Work Comp 
provider or in an emergency, to the Emergency Department. 

 
5. The supervisor or manager is to notify Employee Health regarding any lost time 

from work by an employee so disability payments can be determined. Any 
employee sent home the day of an injury will be paid his/her full base wage for that 
day if the provider determines the employee is not able to return to work at that 
time. Employee Health will also notify the supervisor or manager of any information 
received directly. 

 
6. Employees must keep their supervisor or manager and Employee Health informed 

with a written statement from the treating provider for time lost from work for job 
related illnesses/injuries. 
written statement allowing them to return to work giving specific limitations, if any. 
The Employee Health nurse may contact the provider if clarification is needed on 
the work limitations. 

 
7. Employees must schedule appointments with providers, physical therapy, and any 

special testing during off duty time, whenever possible. Employees must give their 
manager a minimum of 24 hours of notice if an appointment must be scheduled 
during work time. Employees must clock in and out for appointments and must 
use available Paid Time Off (PTO) for appointments. 

 
8.  accurate 

records are maintained and reflect scheduled days missed. 
 

9. Employee Health will coordinate all claims with the  Compensation Third 
Party Administrator. 

 
PROCEDURE FOR TRANSITIONAL WORK PROGRAM (TWP): 

 
1. Employees returning to work with specific limitations must contact employee 

health. 
 

2. An employee who is released to return to work with specific limitations may be 
accommodated. Employee Health Services and/or Human Resources will work 

202/465



Work Related Injury and Illness and Workers' Compensation 5 
 

employee. A Transitional Work Program contract must be signed. 
 

3. Every attempt is made by the accommodating RN case manager to place the TWP 
employees in their home department; however, an employee may be placed in an 
alternative department. If an employee refuses a TWP placement, they may not 
be eligible for benefits. 

 
4. TWP employees are assigned and must comply with specific work duties within 

their provider-set limitations. 

a. Employees participating in the TWP are responsible to report to the 
assigned work area at the designated time, dressed appropriately for the 
job, and work the designated hours. Employees must comply with all 
Kaweah Health policies and procedures. 

b. 
transitional position does not exceed the specific restrictions of duties or 
time limits of the TWP position. The employee is also responsible to ensure 
that they work within those restrictions. 

c. The TWP manager will provide the training and orientation of the TWP 
employee. He/she will supervise the employee as regular staff. 

d. Once assigned, failure to report for TWP or to contact the designated 
manager may result in the same counseling for progressive discipline 
process as applicable to all other employees. 

e. The TWP assignment is a temporary assignment and Kaweah Health 
reserves the right to terminate assignments at any time. 

 
5. Employees released from the TWP to full duty by their provider will be reinstated 

in their former position, at the same rate of pay, or to a comparable position for 
which the employee is qualified, unless circumstances have changed which make 
it impossible or unreasonable to reinstate the employee. If the employee cannot 

absence. 
 

PROCEDURE FOR  COMPENSATION LEAVE OF ABSENCE: 
 

1. Reason for Leave: 

 
mpensation Disability Leave to employees 

with occupational illnesses or injuries in accordance with state law. As previously 
stated, as an alternative, Kaweah Health will try to reasonably accommodate such 
employees with transitional work.  Compensation Disability Leave will 
be concurrently charged as a Medical Leave under the federal and state Family 

 

 
2. Notice and Certification Requirements: 

203/465



Work Related Injury and Illness and Workers' Compensation 6 
 

a. Notice:
If, as a result of the injury, the attending provider directs the employee to 
remain off work, the off-work order must be brought to Employee Health 
Services immediately. Employee Health Services will monitor status and 
follow-up with employee as appropriate. Provider "return to work orders" 
must be brought to Employee Health Services 24-48 hours prior to the 
employee's first day back to work following an injury. If, as a result of the 
injury, the provider directs the employee to return to work with restrictions 
the employee needs to immediately communicate this to Employee Health 
Services. This will begin the process for the employee to request a 
reasonable accommodation under the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). 

 
b. Certification: 

Kaweah Health requires a written statement from a provider, which must 
include the following: 
i. That the employee is unable to perform the regular job duties; 
ii. The date on which the impairment commenced; and 
iii. The expected date of the  to return to work. 

 
3. Compensation During Leave 

 
Refer to the pamphlet from the Employment Development Department (EDD) 

information. 
a. If injured on the job employees will be paid full scheduled shift for that day 

of injury. If subsequent days off are needed from scheduled shifts prior to 
the third calendar day waiting period, accrued Extended Illness Bank time 
may be utilized up to 24-hours. If additional hours of non-productive, hours 
are needed Paid Time Off hours may be used at the discretion of the 
employee. PTO must be utilized for pre-approved appointments and 
intermittent leave requests. In the circumstance of an immediate 
hospitalization or surgery, an employee may be paid from accrued EIB from 
their first full day off. 
Compensation Temporary Disability Payments; PTO time may be used only 
after all EIB has been exhausted. Coordinated amounts will not exceed the 
regular amount of pay normally earned by the employee. 

b. 
 

 
4. Benefit Accrual: 

204/465



Work Related Injury and Illness and Workers' Compensation 7 
 

The employee will continue to accrue PTO/EIB as long as he/she is being paid
using accrued PTO hours by Kaweah Health (receiving a paycheck). 

 
5. Performance Review Date: 

 
The performance review date will remain unchanged when on a leave of 
absence. Common review date is mid October of each year. 

 
6. Benefits During Leave: 

 
a. An employee taking leave will continue to receive the same level of 

employee benefit plans for up to a maximum of 16 weeks in a rolling 
calendar year. Kaweah Health will continue during that maximum of 16 
weeks on leave to make the same premium contribution as if the employee 
had continued working. 

 
b. Insurance premiums (health, vision, dental, life, etc.) are to be paid by the 

employee and Kaweah Health, under the same conditions as existed prior 
to leave, for a maximum of 16 weeks in a rolling calendar year period. 

 
c. If on paid status (utilizing PTO/EIB), an employee may continue his/her 

normal premiums through payroll deduction. If on unpaid status, he/she is 
required to pay the Kaweah Health his/her portion of the premiums while on 
a leave of absence for a total of 16 weeks. After 16 weeks, employees will 
be offered COBRA Continuation Coverage for applicable benefits. 

 
d. An employee whose insurance is canceled due to nonpayment of premiums 

will have to satisfy a new waiting period after returning to work and will be 

employee may have to provide proof of insurability. 

 
e. An employee may cancel his/her insurance within 30 days of the end of 

his/her paid leave and will be re-enrolled upon return without a waiting 
period. Cancellation must be done in writing to the Human Resources 
Department. The employee must reinstate coverage within 30 days of 
his/her return from work. 

 
f. Group medical, dental and vision insurance coverage will cease on the last 

day of the month in which an employee reaches 16 weeks of leave or 
employment ends except that continuation is allowed under COBRA 
regulations if applicable to the plan. 

205/465



Work Related Injury and Illness and Workers' Compensation 8 
 

g. If the employee fails to return to work at the expiration of the leave, he/she 
must repay any health insurance premiums paid by Kaweah Health while 
on leave, unless failure to return to work is due to a continuation of his/her 
own serious health condition or other reasons beyond his/her control. 

 
7. Reinstatement: 

 
a. 

Leave of Absence. Upon the submission of a medical certification that the 
employee is able to return to work, the employee will be reinstated in 
accordance with applicable law. If an employee is disabled due to an 
industrial injury, the Kaweah Health will attempt to accommodate the 
employee. 
Disability Leave that runs concurrently with a Family and Medical Leave, 
then the provisions of the Family and Medical Leave policies will also apply. 

 
b. The employee must complete all outstanding job requirements and 

documentation (licensure, CPR, ACLS, NRP, PALS and TB testing, as 
applicable) prior to a return to work. Requesting or receiving a leave of 
absence in no way relieves an employee of his or her obligation while on 
the job to perform his or her job responsibilities and to observe all Kaweah 
Health policies, rules and procedures. 

 
c. Kaweah Health reviews job status while an employee is on a leave of 

absence and may replace positions when a leave extends to beyond 16 
weeks. In this case, the employee on a leave of absence due to a work 
injury remains employed for up to two years. When able to return to work, 
we review opportunities and options with the employee if available. 

 
PROCEDURE FOR GUILD MEMBERS AND VOLUNTEERS INJURED WHILE 
VOLUNTEERING AT KAWEAH HEALTH: 

 
1. If a guild member sustains an injury while on the job, the guild member will 

immediately report to his/her supervisor, the House Supervisor, and Employee 
Health. The Work Injury Report will be completed and injured guild member will 
report to Employee Health Services with the completed form. Employee Health 
Services will provide first aid treatment and, if necessary, refer the injured guild 
member to either the Emergency Department or to a Kaweah Health Clinic. 

 
2. Charges incurred as a result of first aid provided in Employee Health Services, 

Kaweah Health Clinics, or where indicated, an initial Emergency Department visit, 
will be covered under this program.  Charges incurred as a result of 

206/465



Work Related Injury and Illness and Workers' Compensation 9 
 

additional or follow-up care will be the responsibility of the injured
personal insurance. 

 
PROCEDURE FOR SERIOUS INJURY OR WORK-RELATED DEATH REPORTING: 

 
1. Reporting Work-Connected Fatalities and Serious Injuries: 

a. Every employer shall report immediately to the Division of Occupational 
Safety and Health (OSHA) any serious injury or illness, or death, of an 
employee in a place of employment or in connection with any employment. 

b. Death of an employee must be reported to OSHA within 8 hours of the 
fatality. Refer to California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Section 342 and 
OSHA Regulation 1904.39 for more details. 

c. In-
of eye, as a result of a work-related incident must be reported within 24 
hours to OSHA. 

d. When an employee suffers serious injury, illness or death, the Employee 
Health Services manager or designee will be notified via email through daily 

Employee Health manager or designee will report immediately to the 
Division of Occupational Safety and Health. If the Employee Health 
manager is not notified right away of the fatality, in-patient hospitalization, 
amputation or loss of eye, report must be made within the following 
timeframe after Employee Health Manager or designee learns of the 
incident: 8 hours for fatality, 24 hours for hospitalization, amputation, and 
eye loss. 

e. Report can be made by telephone call to OSHA (1-800-321-6742), or by 
electronic submission on  public website (www.osha.gov). Refer to 
OSHA Regulation 1904.39 for more details. 

f. TPA will be notified by EHS. 
 

PROCEDURE FOR EXPOSURES TO COMMUNICABLE DISEASES: 
 

1. Employees exposed, or believed to have been exposed to any communicable 
disease from work, shall report the exposure to their supervisor or manager and 
Employee Health Services. The Infection Prevention department will be advised 
or consulted as necessary. Employees exposed to highly communicable diseases 
for example: Pertussis, Meningococcal Meningitis, Pulmonary Tuberculosis, Viral 
Hepatitis ), Chickenpox, and Covid 19 must be reported as guided by Infection 
Prevention Department in accordance with California Department of Public Health 
Code of Regulations. The Employee Health nurse will determine the necessity of 
further treatment or referrals to a provider.. The susceptible employee may be 
taken off of work or away from patient care as guided by EHS 04: Infectious 
Disease Guidelines For Employees Policy. 

 
NON-WORK RELATED INJURY OR ILLNESS: 

 
1. Kaweah Health, or its insurance carrier will not be liable for the payment of 

 Compensation benefits for any injury which arises out of any 

207/465



Work Related Injury and Illness and Workers' Compensation 1
 

-duty recreational, social, or athletic 
-related duties. 

 
2. Falsification of any facts regarding an incident or injury, or failure to report an 

incident promptly may be grounds for progressive discipline, up to and including 
termination of employment. Furthermore, the law requires that the Kaweah Health 
notify the Third Party Administrator of any concerns of false of fraudulent claims. 
Any person who makes or causes misrepresentation for the purpose of obtaining 
or d  A 
violation of this law is punishable by imprisonment for one to five years, or by a 
fine. Additional civil penalties may be in order. 

 
References: 
Department of Industrial Relations Cal/OSHA Title 8 Regulations: Ch 3.2 California 
Occupational Safety and Health Regulations (CAL/OSHA), Subchapter 2 Regulations of 
the Division of Occupational Safety and Health, Article 3 Reporting Work-Connected 
Injuries, 342 Reporting Work-Connected Fatalities and Serious Injuries URL: 
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/342.html 

 
United States Department of Labor: Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
Regulation Standard 1904.39 Reporting fatalities, hospitalizations, amputations, and 
losses of eye as a result of work-related incidents to OSHA URL: 
https://www.osha.gov/laws-regs/regulations/standardnumber/1904/1904.39 

 
Officer. In some cases, such as Employee Benefits Policies, Summary Plan Descriptions and Plan 
Documents prevail over a policy. In all cases, Kaweah Health will follow Federal and State Law, as 
applicable, as well as Regulatory requirements. Policies are subject to change as approved by the 
Governing Board and will be communicated as approved after each Board Meeting. It is the 

 

208/465



Separator Page

HR47

209/465



Human Resources

Policy Number: HR.47 Date Created: 06/01/2007

Document Owner: Kelsie Davis (Board 
Clerk/Executive Assistant to CEO)

Date Approved: 12/18/2024

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration), Kelsie Davis (Board Clerk/Executive Assistant 
to CEO)

Professional Licensure and Certification

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version.

POLICY:
To ensure appropriate licensure and certification on all employees and contracted 
staff (not subject to the medical staff privilege process, e.g., Allied Health 
Professionals) in compliance with appropriate licensing agencies. Employee 
Health requirements for immunizations and PPD are available for Licensed 
Independent Practitioners and Physicians who practice at Kaweah Health.

It is the policy of Kaweah Health to employ only those individuals and/or to utilize 
contract services staff that meet all job requirements (TB Screening/PPD testing, 
etc.) and have proper licensure, certification or registration by the appropriate 
licensing agency in those jobs requiring such status. Current employees and 
contract staff who provide direct patient care will have a CPR (Heartsaver-AED or 
BLS) card on file with Human Resources (or in the nursing office or applicable 
department if Contract Staff). Employees and Contract Staff working in positions 
with a requirement for ACLS, NRP, and PALS, etc., will also provide proof of 
certification. Employees driving their own vehicles for ongoing business will be 

All job requirements and current status of documentation shall be maintained by 
the employee/contract staff member. The employee will furnish proof of this status 
with original documents before employment or service begins. At each time the 
status requires updating and/or renewal, the employee will provide further 
documentation to Human Resources as proof of update and/or renewal.

For employees on a Leave of Absence, Kaweah Health may hold in abeyance the 
requirement to complete job requirement documentation (i.e., updated 
competencies, TB testing, etc.) until the employee returns from leave. The 
employee must complete all outstanding job requirements and documentation 
(licensure, CPR, ACLS, NRP, PALS, TB Testing, as applicable) prior to returning 
to work. Competency-related documentation must be completed within two weeks 

Current job requirement documentation will be retained by Human Resources.  
Managers are responsible for monitoring staff compliance with all job requirements 
and must ensure that no employee is permitted to work if any required documentation 
is delinquent or expired. 

210/465



Employees who have failed to obtain or renew their required license or certification
by the due or expiration date will not be permitted to work, will be placed on a 
personal leave of absence, and are subject to Progressive Discipline, up to and 
including termination. 

 
PROCEDURE: 

I. Definitions 
 

Licensure/Certification: Refers to any license/certifications required for an 
 job from the time of hire going forward. Examples include: CA 

RN License, Clinical Dietitian Registration, and Radiology Tech 
Certification. Basic Life Support (BLS), Heartsaver CPR AED. 
Licensure/Certification requirements are listed in job descriptions, and 
employee offer letters, and also can be found in Workday. 

 
Primary Source Verification (PSV): refers to the required process of 
confirming with the issuing board/agency that an individual possesses a 
valid license, certification or registration to practice a profession when 
required by law or regulation. PSV must include the date the verification 
was conducted and must take place prior to placing employee in job. 
Simply presenting a copy of a license in lieu of evidence that PSV was 
completed does not meet the intent of the requirement. Methods for 
conducting PSV most often include secure online verification from the 
licensing board, but can also include direct correspondence, documented 
telephone verification, or reports from credentials verification organizations. 

 
II. Verification Licensure/Certification at Time of Hire/Transfer/Renewal 

 
It is the responsibility of the Human Resources Department to validate the 
PSV prior to hire/transfer date. Renewals of Licensure/Certifications will be 
tracked, verified and documented by the Human Resources Department prior 
to the expiration date. Employees and Managers can upload the primary 
source verification (PSV) of licensure/certification through Workday for 
electronic review and approval by Human Resources. 

a. Human Resources will process the hire/transfer/renewal of an 
employee to a job that requires valid licensure/certification only after 
obtaining PSV from the appropriate licensing board. Primary source 
verification applies only to licensure/certifications required to practice 
a profession. It is not required for organizational requirements such 
as advanced cardiac life support (ACLS) or pediatric advanced life 
support (PALS) or clinical certification such as peripherally inserted 
catheter (PICC) line certification. 

 
b. Any employee that allows their required licensure/certification to 

lapse for any reason will be given a Disciplinary Action and removed 
from the schedule. Exceptions: 

1. MICN Certification: If regional EMS agency cancels MICN 

211/465



certification class, the employee will be permitted to work without 
updated certification and no disciplinary action. Employees will be 
required to attend the next scheduled regional MICN class. 

 
2. TNCC Certification: If TNCC class is cancelled, and as a result, the 

employee is unable to obtain initial/renewal TNCC certification, 
employee will be permitted to work without updated certification and 
no disciplinary action. Employee will be required to attend the next 
scheduled TNCC class. 

 
III. Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Courses 

A. Only the American Heart Association (AHA) or American Red Cross 
(ARC) certification programs will be acceptable for employment or 
renewal. Acceptable courses must contain an in-person, hands-on skills 
component and cannot be completed solely online. Please see HR.49 
Education Assistance for reference of paid time. Classes taken outside of 
Kaweah Health must be AHA or ARC courses and documentation of 
completion must include the following: 

1. Course completion card (or eCard) from AHA or ARC training 
center/site 

 
OR 

 
2. Temporary Certificate of Completion paperwork from the AHA or ARC 

training center stating the following: 

i.  name 
ii. Type of course 

1. AHA Heartsaver CPR AED 
2. AHA BLS for Health Care Providers 
3. ARC CPR/AED adult, child & infant 
4. ARC CPR for the Professional Rescuer or CPR 

for the health care provider 
iii. Date of Course 
iv. Successful Completion 
v. Name of Training Center 
vi. Signature of training center representative 

 
For option 2 above, the provider course card (or eCard) must be submitted to 
Human Resources within 30 days of course completion to avoid suspension and 
disciplinary action. 

 
IV. Kaweah Health Offered Courses 

 
A. Employees are to give advanced notice for cancellation of any class or 

program in which they are enrolled, whether voluntary or mandatory. 
Advanced notice for cancellation defined as the following: 

212/465



1. If class is on Tuesday through Friday, cancel the day before by 
8:00am. EXAMPLE: Class is Wednesday at noon- must cancel 
before Tuesday 8:00 am. 

2. If class is on Monday, cancel prior to 23:59 on Saturday 

3. Classes need to be cancelled through our Learning 
Management System (LMS) 

4. If the employee cannot cancel in our LMS or they are past the 

defined time for advanced notice, the employee must contact their 

manager via phone or email letting them know they cannot attend. 

B.  Kaweah Health completed courses will be documented in Workday as a 

completed learning course and added as a validated certification for job 

requirements. Employees and Managers do not have to provide 

documentation to Human Resources for courses completed at Kaweah 

Health. 

C. Classes offered at Kaweah Health are at no charge, and classes taken 

outside of Kaweah Health are not eligible for reimbursement. 

 
III.  Responsibilities 

 
A. Management is responsible for ensuring that all licensed/certified staff 

has current licensure at all times and is not working if 
license/certification has expired. 

 
B. Managers and Directors may also be subjected to Disciplinary Action, 

including suspension and possible termination should 
licensed/certified employees within their responsibility be working 
without proper licensure/certification. 

 
IV.  Responsibilities 

 
Failure by an employee to provide the necessary documentation or proof of 
current status, or failure to meet any established job requirement, will result in the 
employee not being permitted to work. The employee will be placed on a 
personal leave of absence and is subject to disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination.  
 

V. Interim Permit or Temporary License Processing 

Employees must obtain licensure in accordance with the requirements 
of the licensing board applicable to their position. Employees whose 
temporary license is invalidated due to failed examination will be placed 
on a personal leave of absence for a maximum of 12- weeks. During 
the 12- weeks period, if licensure is obtained, current employees may 
apply for a transfer to an open position. If licensure and/or transfer to an 
eligible position is not obtained, employment will be terminated at the 
end of the 12-week leave of absence. 

213/465



VI. Employees on Leave of Absence 

Employees on a Kaweah Health approved Leave of Absence are responsible 
for being in compliance with all license/certification requirements prior to their 
return to work. As it pertains to CPI, employees returning from leave will have 
60 days from return to complete Kaweah Health offered CPI course. 

 
VII. Display of License/Certification 

As required by law, some licensure/certifications must be displayed in the 
department. 

 
Related Documents: 
Human Resources policy, HR.216 Progressive Discipline 

 
 
 
 

to the Chief Human Resources Officer. In 
some cases, such as Employee Benefits Policies, Summary Plan Descriptions and Plan Documents prevail 
over a policy. In all cases, Kaweah Health will follow Federal and State Law, as applicable, as well as 
Regulatory requirements. Policies are subject to change as approved by the Governing Board and will be 

." 

214/465



Separator Page

HR72

215/465



Human Resources

Policy Number: HR.72 Date Created: 06/01/2007

Document Owner: Kelsie Davis (Board 
Clerk/Executive Assistant to CEO)

Date Approved: 12/18/2024

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration), Kelsie Davis (Board Clerk/Executive Assistant 
to CEO)

Standby and Callback Pay

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version.

PURPOSE:

To establish standards for Standby and Call Back requirements and to compensate employees who, at 

POLICY:

Employees assigned to take Standby will be available to work as needed. Standby is paid at the California 
Healthcare Minimum Wage for non-exempt employees.

For exempt employees, pay practices may vary depending on the nature of the work to be performed. 
Pharmacists in Pharmacy-Home Infusion KHHIP (7299) will receive one hour of on weekdays, 
and two hours on weekend when on Standby. If called in, they
worked. In ISS departments, exempt employees will receive $100 stipend for weekdays and $200 stipend 
on the weekends. No call back will be paid for ISS with the exception of holidays. On District approved 
holid

In addition, certain departments are eligible for Call Back when on Standby. Call Back pay will not apply if 
Call Back occurs on a previously scheduled regular shift. 
Standby but called to work.  Kaweah Health reserves the right to adjust the Standby rate and Call Back 
paid to specific positions as conditions warrant.

PROCEDURE:

1. While on Standby, an employee will not be required to remain on Kaweah Health premises but is 
required to leave word at his/her residence or where he/she can be reached or may voluntarily 
utilize their own cell phone.

2. Standby and Call Back time will be recorded via regular timekeeping. Standby and Call Back will 
not be paid for the same hours. In addition, Standby should not be scheduled within 8 hours after 
the end of a shift for which the employee has claimed sick time.

216/465



Standby and Callback Pay 2

3. If the employee has been called off from his/her regular schedule and placed on Standby: 

a. The hours for which the employee will receive Standby payment will be determined 
by the department leader. In addition to recording Standby on the timekeeping 
system, PTO Mandatory Dock or Mandatory Dock-No Pay is to be recorded for the 
employee to receive Paid Time Off and EIB accruals. 

b. If the employee is called back to work, the hours worked will be paid at the 

expected that the staff member on standby will respond and drive promptly to work 
upon notification of the need to come back in. 

4. When on pre-scheduled Standby (primarily Cath Lab, Surgical Services, Clinical 
Engineering, and certain ISS departments), non-exempt employees do not record 
Mandatory Dock pay codes, but are paid Call Back pay for work. Call Back begins when 
the employee arrives at and/or begins work. 

 
a. An employee answering questions by telephone for Call Back is paid for the actual 

hours worked only. 
 

b. Call Back will not be paid for hours during which the employee is working his/her 
regular schedule. 

 
 

c. Surgical Services receive a minimum of two hours Call Back when called in and 
the need does not require them to be on site two hours. The two-hour period will 
extend from the second time of arrival. 

 
d. Travel time is not paid except in areas of Home Health and Hospice and in 

accordance with Federal law. 

 for the review and revision of this Policy is assigned to the Chief Human Resources 
Officer. In some cases, such as Employee Benefits Policies, Summary Plan Descriptions and Plan 
Documents prevail over a policy. In all cases, Kaweah Health will follow Federal and State Law, as 
applicable, as well as Regulatory requirements. Policies are subject to change as approved by the 
Governing Board and will be communicated as approved after each Board Meeting. It is the 

  

217/465



Separator Page

HR80

218/465



Human Resources

Policy Number: HR.80 Date Created: 06/01/2007

Document Owner: Kelsie Davis (Board 
Clerk/Executive Assistant to CEO)

Date Approved: 12/18/2024

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration), Kelsie Davis (Board Clerk/Executive Assistant 
to CEO)

Docking Staff

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the 
latest version.

POLICY:
The fluctuating workload and census inherent in hospitals and health care may 
occasionally cause the need for a reduced workforce. When this situation occurs, 
non-exempt personnel may have their hours reduced in accordance with this policy. 
Exempt staff are not normally included
management will be responsible for recommending and implementing sound 

management. Employees who report to work, are not provided any work, and are 
subsequently docked are guaranteed one (1) hour of pay.

PROCEDURE:
At times the workload or census may require that employees who are scheduled to 
work be docked. Docked time will be documented in the timekeeping system to 
allow appropriate application of hours.

Each department establishes a plan for docking that sets out the criteria by which 
decisions for docking are made, utilizing the prioritization noted below. When 
docking is indicated, the determination of which employees will be scheduled for 
docking will be made by the department leader or designee.

In certain units/departments when volumes are low, employees scheduled to work 
will be called with a new start time for their shift. Refusal to accept the change in 
the start time may count as an attendance occurrence. Employees may use the 
PTO Mandatory Dock or Mandatory Dock-No Pay, pay code for the hours missed in 
order to accrue PTO and EIB within policy limits.

II. Mandatory dock time will be applied in the following order
A. Overtime shifts
B. Employees who volunteer to be docked
C. Per Diem

219/465



D. Part-Time Staff 
E. Full-Time Staff 

Docking Staff 

Prior to mandatory docking employees, leaders may ask if any employee 
wishes to take time off rather than work the shift or remainder of the shift. 

 
If no employee desires time off, then leaders will apply the mandatory dock 
time as it meets the functional needs of the department. 

 
To ensure fairness, each department will rotate their employees through docking 
procedures as appropriate to their staffing needs. 

 
Timekeeping 

Timekeeping is noted as PTO Mandatory Dock or Mandatory Dock/No Pay. 

Dock hours are applied to: 
A. Hours required to maintain employee benefits eligibility. 
B. Accruals earned each pay period, 
C. Qualified service hours used to compute what level Paid 

Time Off accrual is earned. 

Department management who routinely dock employees will review staffing 
needs. Those who are actively recruiting to fill vacancies within their 
department will analyze the need for extra staff and, when not justified, will 
notify Human Resources if it is determined that a current vacancy should not 
be posted or if a full-time opening should be changed to part-time or per-diem. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 review and revision of this Policy is assigned to the Chief of Human 
Resources Officer. In some cases, such as Employee Benefits Policies, Summary Plan 
Descriptions and Plan Documents prevail over a policy. In all cases, Kaweah Health will follow 
Federal and State Law, as applicable, as well as Regulatory requirements. Policies are subject to 
change as approved by the Governing Board and will be communicated as approved after each 

all Kaweah Health 
 

220/465



Separator Page

HR145

221/465



Human Resources

Policy Number: HR.145 Date Created: 06/01/2007

Document Owner: Kelsie Davis (Board 
Clerk/Executive Assistant to CEO)

Date Approved: 3/26/2025

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration)

Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) / California Family Rights Act (CFRA) Leave 
of Absence

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version.

POLICY:
To allow time off to eligible employees. To establish a system to continue to receive 
compensation through accessible benefits, such as Extended Illness Bank (EIB), Paid Time Off 

rights and responsibilities.

To comply with applicable laws ensuring equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals 
with a disability, Kaweah Health will make reasonable accommodations for known physical or 
mental limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is an applicant or an 
employee, unless undue hardship would result. A leave of absence may be considered as a 
type of reasonable accommodation. Any applicant or employee who requires an 
accommodation in order to perform the essential functions of the job should contact their 
supervisor, department head, or Human Resources and make a request to participate in a 
timely interactive process to explore reasonable accommodations. The individual with the 
disability is invited to identify what accommodation he or she needs to perform the job. Kaweah 
Health will take steps to identify the barriers that make it difficult for the applicant or employee 
to perform his or her job, and will identify possible accommodations, if any, that will enable the 
individual to perform the essential functions of his or her job. If the accommodation is 
reasonable and will not impose an undue hardship, Kaweah Health will meet the request.

NOTE: Due to coordination of information between departments and outside agencies, and the 
requirement that certain records be maintained to demonstrate compliance with State and 
Federal law, it is important that paperwork and documentation be completed and submitted to 
Human Resources in a timely manner by department heads and employees.

PROCEDURE:

This policy is based on the California Family Rights Act, as amended in 1993 (CFRA), and the 
Federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), and is intended to provide eligible 
employees with all of the benefits mandated by these laws. However, in the event that these 
laws or the regulations implementing these laws are hereafter amended or modified, this policy 
may be amended or modified to conform with any change or clarification in the law.

222/465



1. Reason for Leave 
 

Family leaves are subject to the eligibility requirements and rules set forth in this policy 
statement, and as provided by State and Federal regulations. 

 
a. FMLA requires covered employers to provide up to 12 

weeks of unpaid, job- protected leave to eligible 
employees for the following reasons: 

 
i. For incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care or childbirth; 

ii. Leave taken for the birth, adoption or placement of a child 
for foster care must be concluded within 12 months 
immediately following the birth, adoption or placement. 
The minimum duration for such leave is two (2) weeks. 
However, leave for less than two (2) weeks can be taken 
on two occasions only. Kaweah Health has the right to 
approve intermittent leave. Under CFRA, bonding leave 
may be taken at the end of Pregnancy Disability Leave for 
up to 12 weeks, and concluded within 12 months 
immediately following the birth. 

 
iii. 

partner, son or daughter, step son or daughter, or parent, 
step parent, grandparent, foster parent, adoptive parent, 
who has a serious health condition, including a son or 
daughter 18 years of age or older if the adult son or 
daughter has a disability as defined by the Americans with 
Disability Act (ADA); or 

 
iv. For a serious health condition that makes the 

employee unable to perform the  job. 
 

v. Eligible employees with a spouse, son, daughter, or 
parent on active duty or call to active duty status 
deployed to a foreign country may use Leave to prepare 
for short-notice deployment, attend military events, 
arrange for childcare, address financial and legal 
arrangements, attend counseling sessions, and allow for 
rest, recuperation and post- deployment activities, 
among other events. 

 
vi. A special leave entitlement is available that permits 

eligible employees to take up to 26 weeks of leave to 
care for a covered service member who is the spouse, 
son, daughter, parent, or next of kin. Certain conditions 
apply. 

CFRA: In addition to the protections listed above, CFRA allows an employee to take up 
to 12 workweeks of unpaid protected leave during any 12-month period to bond with a 
new child of the employee or to take care for a designated person (any individual related 
by blood or whose association with the employee is the equivalent of a family member 
(one per 12-month period)), grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, or domestic partner. 
If Kaweah Health employs both of the parents of a child, both are covered by this policy if 

223/465



eligibility requirements are met. Kaweah Health will grant a request by an eligible 
employee to take up to 12 workweeks of unpaid protected leave during any 12-month 
period due to a qualifying exigency related to the covered active duty or call to covered 
active duty 
Forces of the United States. Leaves for this reason are, for the most part, covered under 
the FMLA, so these leaves may run concurrently with leave under the FMLA if the leave 
qualifies for protection under both laws. 

 
b. 

impairment or physical or mental condition which 
involves: 

 
i. inpatient care (i.e., an overnight stay) in a medical care facility; or 

 
ii. continuing treatment by a health care provider for a 

condition that either prevents the employee from 
performing the functions of the  job, or prevents 
the qualified family member from participating in school or 
other daily activities. 

 
iii. The continuing treatment may be met by a period of 

incapacity of more than 3 consecutive calendar days 
combined with at least two visits to a health care provider 
or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment, or 
incapacity due to pregnancy, or incapacity due to a 
chronic condition. Other conditions may qualify. 

 
2. Employee Eligibility 

 
Family leave is available to employees who have worked at least 12 months for 
Kaweah Health and have worked more than 1,250 hours during the previous 12 
months. 

Leave Available 
 

An employee may take up to twelve (12) weeks of leave during a 12-month period. A 
12- month period begins on the date of an  first use of FMLA/CFRA leave. 
Successive 12- 
such leave after the preceding 12-month period has ended. FMLA and CFRA counts 
against the amount of Medical Leave available and vice versa. 

 
a. If certified to be medically necessary, leave to care for a family 

 condition may be taken intermittently 
or the employee may request a reduced work schedule. See 
below for more information. 

 
b. Leave taken for the birth, adoption or placement of a child for 

foster care must be concluded within 12 months immediately 
following the birth, adoption or placement. The minimum duration 
for such leave is two (2) weeks. However, leave for less than two 
(2) weeks can be taken on two occasions only. Kaweah Health 
has the right to approve intermittent leave. Under CFRA, bonding 
leave may be taken at the end of Pregnancy Disability Leave for 

224/465



up to 12 weeks, and concluded within 12 months immediately 
following the birth. 

 
Employees with pregnancy-related disabilities may have the right to take a 
Pregnancy Disability Leave in addition to a Family Leave. 

 
3. Intermittent or Reduced Leave Schedule: 

a. If certified to be medically necessary, for self or leave to care 

intermittently or the employee may request a reduced work 
schedule. Increments of time may not be less than one hour. 

 
b. Employees requesting intermittent leave or a reduced work 

schedule may be requested to transfer to an alternate job 
position. Such a transfer will be to a job position better able to 
accommodate recurring periods of absence but which 
provides equivalent compensation and benefits. 

 
c. In any case, employees must make reasonable efforts to 

schedule leave for planned medical treatment so as not to 
 

 
d. Leaves to care for a newborn child or a child placed for 

adoption of foster care may not be taken intermittently or on 
a reduced leave schedule under FMLA/CFRA. 

 
e. Exempt employees taking an intermittent or reduced leave will 

be paid for all hours actually worked. For example: An exempt 
employee is restricted to working three hours a day. The 
employee will be paid for three hours of productive time and 
five hours of PTO without 
impacting their exempt status. If the employee  have 
PTO, the five hours will be unpaid. 

 
f. Accrued PTO hours are required to be used for intermittent leaves. 

 
4. Notice, Certification and Reporting Requirements 

 
a. Timing: 

If the need for the leave is foreseeable, an employee must provide 30 days written 
notice prior to the requested start of the leave. When 30 days is not possible, the 
employee must provide notice as soon as practicable and generally must comply 

-in procedures. 
 

If the need for the leave is foreseeable due to a planned medical treatment or 
supervision, the employee must make a reasonable effort to schedule the treatment 
or supervision in order to avoid disruption to the operations of Kaweah Health. 

 
b. Certification: 

 
i. An employee requesting leave to care for a family member with a serious 

225/465



health condition must provide a health-
medically necessary for the employee to assist in caring for the family 
member with the serious health condition. The certification must include the 
following: 

 
1. The date on which the serious health condition commenced; 

2. The probable duration of the condition; 
 

3. An estimate of the amount of time that the health care provider 
believes the employee needs to care for the individual requiring the 
care; and 

 
4. A statement that the serious health condition warrants the 

participation of a family member to provide care during a period of 
the treatment or supervision of the individual requiring care. 

 
ii. Upon expiration of the time estimated by the health-care 

provider needed for the leave, Kaweah Health may 
require the employee to obtain recertification in 
accordance with the above requirements as 
certifications expire. 

 
iii. In addition, an employee requesting an Intermittent 

Leave or reduced work schedule must provide a 
health- cation stating the 
following: 

 
1. The date on which the treatment is 

expected to be given and the duration of 
the treatment. 

 
2. 

reduced work schedule is necessary for the care 
of a spouse, child or parent with a serious health 
condition or that such leave will assist in the 

 

3. The expected duration of the need for 
an Intermittent Leave or reduced work 
schedule. 

 
iv. 

health care provider to obtain information on a leave. 
They are to refer any questions to Human Resources 
or Employee Health Services who may contact the 
provider. 

 
c. Employee Periodic Reports: 

 
During a leave, an employee must provide periodic reports regarding the 
status to the department head and Human Resources, including any change in the 

Health to apply a voluntary resignation from employment. 

226/465



During an approved Intermittent Leave, the employee must call their department 
head or designee each day or partial day that is requested as Intermittent Leave 
time. 

 
5. Compensation During Leave: 

 
Refer to the pamphlet from the Employment Development Department (EDD) entitled 

Also refer to the Paid Family Leave policy in the manual. 

a. For a medical leave of absence longer than seven days which 
is to be coordinated with State Disability Insurance (SDI), the 
initial 24 hours are paid through accrued PTO, if available, at 

hospitalization or surgery, an employee may be paid from 
accrued EIB from their first full day off. EIB must be used for 

Disability Payments; PTO time may be used only after all 
Extended Illness Bank (EIB) has been exhausted. Coordinated 
amounts will not exceed the regular amount of pay normally 
earned by the employee. 
of absence, if the employee is off work for less than 14 days, 
there is a three (3) day waiting period before TTD will begin.  
The first three (3) days is paid using accrued EIB hours.  If the 
employee is off work for more than 14 days, TTD begins on 
day one (1). 

 
b. 

amount they receive from SDI or  Compensation to 
ensure the correct amount of EIB coordination. 

 
c. Applying the EIB utilization guidelines, EIB may be used for Kin 

Care for the same eligible members noted on page one. Up to 
50% of the annual EIB accrual can be used if the employee has 
worked a full 12 months; otherwise the utilization will be limited 

accrued hours in a 12- month period may be utilized. 
 

6. Benefit Accrual: 

The employee will continue to accrue PTO as long as they are being paid by Kaweah 
Health (receiving a paycheck) during integration of benefits on continuous leave of 
absence. 

 
7. Merit Review Date: 

 
The merit review date will not change during a leave of absence. 

 
8. Benefits During Leave: 

 
a. An employee taking leave will continue to receive coverage 

maximum of four 
(4) months per 12-month period at the level and under the 
conditions of coverage as if the employee had continued in 
employment continuously for the duration of such leave. 

227/465



Kaweah Health will continue to make the same premium

228/465



contribution as if the employee had continued working.
 

b. Insurance premiums (health, vision, dental, life, etc.) are to be 
paid by the employee and Kaweah Health, under the same 
conditions as existed prior to the leave, for a maximum period 
of four (4) months in a 12-month period. 

 
c. If on paid status (utilizing PTO/EIB), an employee may continue 

his/her normal premiums through payroll deduction. If on unpaid 
status, he/she is required to pay Kaweah Health his/her portion 
of the premiums while on a leave of absence for a total of four 
months. After four months, employees will be offered COBRA 
Continuation Coverage for applicable benefits. 

d. In the case where Pregnancy Disability Leave (FMLA) combined 
with CFRA bonding leave applies, if an employee is on paid 
status (utilizing PTO/EIB), the employee may continue her 
normal premiums through payroll deduction. If on unpaid status, 
she is required to pay Kaweah Health her portion of the 
premiums monthly while on a leave of absence for a total of up to 
seven months; COBRA rules then apply. 

 
e. An employee whose insurance is canceled due to nonpayment 

of premiums will have to satisfy a new waiting period after 

insurance purposes and as such, the employee may have to 
provide proof of insurability and will be subject to the pre- 
existing rules which apply at the time of the leave. 

 
f. An employee may cancel his/her insurance(s) within 30 days of 

the end of his/her paid leave and will be re-enrolled upon return 
without a waiting period. Cancellation must be done in writing to 
the Human Resources Department. The employee must 
reinstate coverage within 30 days of his/her return from work. 

g. Group medical, dental, vision insurance coverage and the 
medical spending account will cease on the last day of the 
month in which an employee reaches four months of leave or 
employment ends except that continuation is allowed under 
COBRA regulations if applicable to the plan. 

 
h. If the employee fails to return to work at the expiration of the 

leave, he/she must repay any health insurance premiums 
paid by Kaweah Health while on leave, unless failure to 
return to work is due to a continuation of his/her own serious 
health condition or other reasons beyond his/her control. 

 
 

9. Reinstatement: 

a. clearance with Employee Health 
Services will be required when an employee is returning from a 
medical leave of absence. The employee must complete all 
outstanding job requirements and documentation (licensure, 
CPR, ACLS, NRP, PALS, and TB testing, as applicable) prior to 

229/465



a return to work.
Competency-related documentation must be completed within 2 

of absence in no way relieves an employee of his or her obligation 
while on the job to perform his or her job responsibilities and to 
observe all District policies, rules and procedures. 

 
b. Under most circumstances, upon return from Family or Medical 

Leave, an employee will be reinstated to his or her previous 
position, or to an equivalent job with equivalent pay, benefits, 
and other employment terms and conditions. However, an 
employee returning from a Family or Medical Leave has no 
greater right to reinstatement that if the employee had been 
continuously employed rather than on leave. For example, if an 
employee on Family and Medical Leave would have been laid 
off had he/she not gone on leave, or if and 
is eliminated during the leave, then the employee would not be 
entitled to reinstatement. 

 
c.  Medical Leave will not 

result in the loss of any employment benefit that the 
employee earned or was entitled to before using Family or 
Medical Leave. 

 
d. The employee must complete all outstanding job requirements 

and documentation (licensure, CPR, ACLS, NRP, PALS, and TB 
testing, as applicable) prior to a return to work. Competency- 
related documentation must be completed within 2 weeks of the 

 return. Requesting or receiving a leave of absence in 
no way relieves an employee of his or her obligation while on the 
job to perform his or her job responsibilities and to observe all 
District policies, rules and procedures. 

 

 
 for the review and revision of this Policy is assigned to the Chief Human Resources Officer. 

In some cases, such as Employee Benefits Policies, Summary Plan Descriptions and Plan Documents 
prevail over a policy. In all cases, Kaweah Health will follow Federal and State Law, as applicable, as well 
as Regulatory requirements. Policies are subject to change as approved by the Governing Board and will 
be communicated as approved after each Board Meeting. It is the  responsibility to review and 

 

230/465



Separator Page

HR173

231/465



Human Resources

Policy Number: HR.173 Date Created: 06/01/2007

Document Owner: Kelsie Davis (Board 
Clerk/Executive Assistant to CEO)

Date Approved: 4/24/24

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration)

Employee Emergency Relief

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version.

POLICY:

This policy was developed to assist employees with personal financial emergencies. 
The funding of this program is through unused Section 125 funds and donations by 
employees of Kaweah Health. The unused Section 125 funds will be donated to the 
Kaweah Health Hospital Foundation and restricted to use for the Kaweah Health 
Employee Emergency Relief.

PROCEDURE:

To seek assistance from the emergency fund, an application (attached Exhibit) must 
be fully completed and signed. The application must be submitted to the Human
Resources Department. Applications for assistance shall be reviewed and approved 
by the Chief Human Resources Officer.

I. Eligibility

A. All full-time and part-time employees are eligible after successfully 
completing the introductory period of employment. Employees may not 
be in the Disciplinary Action Process with a Level II counseling or higher.

B. One application per household.

C. Requests must be submitted to Human Resources in writing by the 
employee needing assistance. A Manager/Director acknowledgment of 
submission for Human Resources review is required.

D. Application must be submitted to Human Resources within sixty (60) days 
of the emergency event or condition resulting in a need for assistance.

E. Any misrepresentation on this application may be sufficient cause for 
rejection of the application and disciplinary action up to and including 
termination of employment.

F. Employees requesting assistance must meet at least one of the required 
criteria.

232/465



II. Criteria
The requesting employee must provide documentation with their 
application for any of the criteria listed below (i.e. direct financial impact 
that creates a hardship for the household): 

 
Expenses associated with: 
1. Death of an immediate family member 
2. A catastrophic event affecting the employee (Example: home fire or 

natural disaster) 
3. Financial hardship related to educational pursuits 
4. Adoption 
5. Medical emergency outside of what would be covered by insurance 

and/or PTO/EIB (Example: hotel stay) 
 

III. Definition of Immediate Family 
 

For the purpose of this policy, immediate family is defined as mother, 
father, sister, brother, spouse, registered domestic partner, child, 
grandchild, grandparent, legal guardian, mother-in-law, father-in-law, 
sister-in-law, brother-in-law, son-in-law, sister-in-law, stepchild, step 
parent, step-brother, and step sister. 

 
IV. Disbursement 

 
 Awards will be disbursed as approved by the Chief Human 

Resources Officer or designee provided funds are available. 
 Awards are applied only to bill(s) related to the emergency 

 
Awards are not granted directly to the employee, but paid to the party to whom the funds are 
owed. 

 Awards are not to exceed a maximum of $1,000. 
 

 Employees are eligible to reapply for assistance every five (5) 
years. Exceptions to the policy can be approved by the Chief 
Human Resources Officer after review and approval. 

 
V. Donations 

 
Should the Employee Emergency Relief program be discontinued, the 
Kaweah Health Hospital Foundation and Human Resources will 
determine the use of the funds. No additional donations to the 
Employee Emergency Relief Fund will be accepted 

 
 

 for the review and revision of this Policy is assigned to the Chief Human Resources 
Officer. In some cases, such as Employee Benefits Policies, Summary Plan Descriptions, and Plan 
Documents prevail over a policy. In all cases, Kaweah Health will follow Federal and State Laws, as 
applicable, as well as Regulatory requirements. Policies are subject to change as approved by the 
Governing Board and will be communicated as approved after each Board Meeting. It is the 

 

233/465



Kaweah Health
Employee Emergency Relief Application 

(Submit to the Human Resources Department) 
 

Employee Name:   Date:   Department:  

Title:  Employee # Phone #  

Amount of Request $  (Maximum $1,000) 

Emergency Criteria (Please check one) 
(  ) Death of an immediate family member 
( ) A catastrophic event affecting the employee. (Example: Fire or Natural Disaster) 
( ) Financial hardship related to educational pursuits 
( ) Adoption 
(   )  Medical emergency outside of what would be covered by insurance and/or PTO/EIB 
(Example: hotel stay) 

 
*Funds may take up to one month to be distributed. 

(Brief explanation of your situation):   Date of Incident:   
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Our goal is to pay some of your expenses to help assist you with this unforeseen emergency. Please list the 
expenses that you need assistance with as well as the amount of assistance needed. Please attach unpaid 
invoices. (Unfortunately, we can only make payments to third parties. We cannot write a check directly to 
you. Funds cannot be used to pay Medical Insurance Premiums.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I certify that all statements above are true and correct. Any misrepresentation on this application may be 
sufficient cause for rejection of the application. I also certify that I have read the Employee Emergency 
Relief Policy HR 173. 

 

 Signature Date Department Director/Manager Verification Date 
 

************************************************************************************** 
Human Resources use only 

Date Received:   Approval Date:   
 

Has the employee applied and been awarded in the past three (5) years? Date:  Amount:   
 

Approved: (Amount)   Denied (Reason):  

Given to the Foundation (Date):    Check to be ready on (Date):    

234/465



Separator Page

HR197

235/465



Human Resources

Policy Number: HR.197 Date Created: 06/01/2007

Document Owner: Kelsie Davis (Board 
Clerk/Executive Assistant to CEO)

Date Approved: 8/28/24

Approvers: Cindy Moccio (Board Clerk/Exec Assist-CEO)

Dress Code - Professional Appearance Guidelines

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version.

POLICY:
The professional appearance and conduct of our employees and contract staff 
are important parts of the experience for patients, their families, and visitors in 
clinical and non-clinical areas. This policy provides expectations and guidelines 
for dress, personal appearance and behavior for employees, contract staff, and 
other individuals working at Kaweah Health. Dress and behavioral guidelines 
help Kaweah Health employees and contract staff with expectations concerning
appearance and conduct. This helps to ensure that our patients feel welcomed, 
respected, comfortable, and safe. as well as while off duty.

Kaweah Health observes religious dress and grooming practices including 
wearing religious clothing or articles (e.g., a headscarf, turban); observing a 
religious prohibition against wearing certain garments (e.g., practice of 
not wearing pants or skirts), or adhering to shaving or hair length observances, 
(e.g., uncut hair and beard, dreadlocks, or sidelocks).

PROCEDURE:

All individuals working at Kaweah Health affect the overall image of patients, 
visitors, and the community. In addition, individuals are required to present a 
professional healthcare appearance and dress according to the requirements of 
this policy as well as adhere to their department-specific or job-specific dress 
standards.

Kaweah Health has established the following criteria for personal appearance. 
These criteria are for meeting our and the community's expectations 
and the image of what they expect of healthcare providers and administrative 
department personnel.

The following applies while at work and not at work if wearing any article that 

a. Employees and contract staff are required to wear the official Kaweah 
Health ID badge at all times while on duty. The ID badge must be worn 
so that the picture and name can be seen and must be chest high or 
above. No marks, stickers (other than flu vaccine compliance), etc., or 
membership pins may be on the badge; it must include a current picture 
and not be faded or worn). Kaweah Health recognition pins may be

236/465



attached to the badge extender. If an employee or contract staff member 
is visiting Kaweah Health while not on duty, they are not to wear their ID 
badge, nor represent that they are on duty; they may not perform any 
work. At the option of an employee, the badge may include only the first 
name and initial of last name. 

 
b. Attire must be neat, clean, appropriately fitting, matched, and 

coordinated and have a professional or business-like appearance. 
Scrubs must be appropriately fitting as well, neither too large nor too 
tight; pants may not touch the ground. Scrub leggings are not 
permitted. Scrub jackets branded with another organization's name or 
logo (including health care or a hospital) are prohibited. 

 
1. Revealing clothing (such as see-through or showing cleavage), dresses, and 

skirts must not be shorter than three (3) inches above the knee. Sun- 
dresses, inappropriate length dresses or mini-skirts, bare-back dresses, 
halter tops, tank tops, t-shirts, any denim color or denim appearing material, 
leggings, scrub leggings, unprofessional casual Capri pants with strings or 
cargo pockets, shorts or walking-shorts, army fatigue-print clothing are some 
examples of inappropriate attire. T-Shirts/Tops that expose chest hair are 
not allowed. Sleeveless attire is appropriate as long as it is business 
professional.  kind are not permitted; team 
jackets are to be approved by a manager. 

 
2. Those employees who work in departments that are exposed to the 

outside elements may wear hats while outside. 
 

3. Tattoos may be visible if the images or words do not convey violence, 
discrimination, profanity, or sexually explicit content. Tattoos containing 
such messages must be covered with bandages, clothing, or cosmetics. 
Kaweah Health reserves the right to judge the appearance of visible 
tattoos. However, tattoos that are visible on the front neck area above the 
collar line and the face must be covered. 

 
4. Hickeys can be considered offensive, unprofessional, and distracting in 

nature, and must be covered by clothing or Band-Aids. 
 

5. Excessive jewelry and watches that may affect safe patient care or 
violate infection control standards, multiple ear piercings, or body 
piercings are not allowed. Ear expanders must be plugged with a flesh 
color plug. Only pin-size nose adornment and/or small nose 
rings/hoops are acceptable. Septum piercings and jewelry under the 
nose are prohibited. 

 
6. Shoes are to be worn as appropriate for the position and must be clean, in 

good repair, and meet the safety and noise abatement requirements of 
Kaweah Health environment. Open-toed shoes may not be worn in patient 
care areas by those providing direct patient care. Socks are to be worn as 
appropriate for the position, (i.e. with Croc-type shoes that have holes). 
Closed-toe shoes are required in the patient care areas and other areas in 

237/465



which safety requires closed-toe shoes. Casual type thong, flip-flops, and 
locker room sandals (even with back straps) are not acceptable. Dressy 
type sandals or open-toed shoes with a back strap are acceptable when 
safety does not dictate otherwise. Tennis shoes are acceptable to wear. 
They must be neat, clean and appropriate. High heels greater than three 
(3) inches, wedges, and platform shoes are not safe in our work 
environment at Kaweah Health and may not be worn. 

 
7. Hair is to be kept neat and clean. Unnatural hair color is acceptable; 

extreme hairstyles are not permitted. Employees with long hair who have 
direct patient contact or work with food or machinery must have their hair 
pinned up off the shoulders, secured at the nape of the neck, or secured in 
a hair net. Traits historically associated with race or religion including, but 
not limited to, hair length, hair texture, and protective hairstyles, defined as 
braids, locks, and twists are allowed and must be secured. Beards, 
mustaches, and sideburns must be clean and neat at all times. 

8. Kaweah Health is fragrance-free due to allergies that present themselves 
with colognes, perfumes, aftershave lotions, hand lotions, etc. Body odor, 
smell of cigarette/e- cigarette/tobacco smoke, or excessive makeup are 
examples of unacceptable personal grooming. 

 
9. Fingernails: Employees who have direct contact with patients (those 

employees who touch patients as a part of their job description) and those 
indirectly involved in patient care, such as Pharmacy, Housekeeping, 
Laboratory, and Sterile Processing must comply with the following 
guidelines. Some departments (i.e. Food and Nutrition Services) may 
have specific requirements that vary: 

 
a. Nails must be kept clean, short, and natural. 
b. Artificial nails, acrylics, or other artificial materials (including nail 

jewelry) applied over the nails are prohibited. These are dried 
grinded nail products (acrylics or gels). 

c. Nail or Gel Polish is permissible in most areas if used in good taste, 
with non-shocking colors or decor, and is maintained without chips or 
cracks. Polish is not allowed in Food and Nutrition Services. 

d. Nails should not be visible when holding the palm side of the hand up. 
 

Non-direct caregivers (those employees without -  patient contact) 
must comply, as follows: 

 
i. Nails (including artificial) must be kept clean and neatly trimmed or filed. 
ii. Short nail length is defined as the white nail tip no greater than 1/4 inch. 
iii. Polish is permissible if used in good taste, with non-shocking colors 

or decor, and is maintained without chips or cracks. 
 

10. Employees who are required to wear certain uniform-type attire must 
comply with the requirements set forth by their department head or 
Kaweah Health, within the following guidelines: attire limited to a general 
color of fabric (i.e., dark, solid colors), business style jackets/blazers, 
white shirts/blouses, and/or black shoes. Any other attire required by 

238/465



Kaweah Health will be provided to the employee at no cost.
 

11. Employees attending Kaweah Health staff meetings on Kaweah Health 
premises may wear casual and appropriate attire. It would be inappropriate 
to wear shorts, gym- wear, tank tops, or anything similar. Jeans are 
appropriate as long as they are not frayed and torn. Employees must be 
modestly dressed. Employees attending on-site classes or other meetings 
are to wear office-casual attire, scrubs, or street clothes in good taste. 
Kaweah Health employees and contract staff are not permitted to present in 
any way that would appear unprofessional to Kaweah Health leadership. 

 
12. Kaweah Health promotes organization-wide events and may allow 

Kaweah Health provided t-shirts for these days. These are allowed if 
appropriate for  

 
13. Kaweah Health promotes organization-wide events and may allow Kaweah 

Health to provide t-shirts for these days. These are allowed if appropriate for 
 With the exception of specific areas 

where scrubs are laundered (i.e. Cath Lab, CVOR, OR, NICU, L&D) Kaweah 
Health does not provide or launder scrubs or uniforms for employees, unless 
the garments are provided by Kaweah Health and requires dry-cleaning. 
However, employees who have received a splash of blood or body fluid 
during the normal course of their job need to change into clothing for 
protection. Per Standard Precautions, employees are allowed to wear 
Kaweah Health-provided scrubs or uniforms furnished by Kaweah Health 
laundry. These are to be returned to Kaweah Health at the next shift worked. 
Upon arriving at and leaving from work, employees are provided with 
reasonable paid time to change. An employee may not wear these scrubs to 
and from Kaweah Health or outside of the hospital unless it is for work- 
related business (i.e. Employee Health, Human Resources, and Employee 
Pharmacy) and they must wear a white lab coat over the scrubs. Upon 
returning to the department, personnel must change into fresh scrubs before 
returning to the semi-restricted or restricted areas. Refer to Policy SS4000. 

 
14. The responsibility to determine the appropriateness of employee 

appearance and attire and for enforcing uniform/dress code requirements 
rests with leadership. For example, the Behavioral Health departments 
may allow exceptions to this policy as appropriate to their patient care 
population. Employees who fail to follow personal appearance and 
hygiene guidelines will be sent home and instructed to return to work in 
proper form. Under such circumstances, employees will not be 
compensated for the time away from work. 

 
Employees who violate this policy are subject to progressive discipline per 
HR.216 Progressive Discipline. 

239/465



 for the review and revision of this Policy is assigned to the Chief of Human Resources 
Officer. In some cases, such as Employee Benefits Policies, Summary Plan Descriptions and Plan 
Documents prevail over a policy. In all cases, Kaweah Health will follow Federal and State Law, as 
applicable, as well as Regulatory requirements. Policies are subject to change as approved by the 
Governing Board and will be communicated as approved after each Board Meeting. It is the 

 

240/465



Separator Page

HR234

241/465



Human Resources

Policy Number: HR.234 Date Created: 06/01/2007

Document Owner: Dianne Cox (Chief Human 
Resources Officer)

Date Approved: 3/26/2025

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration)

Paid Time Off (PTO), Extended Illness Bank (EIB) and Healthy Workplace, 
Healthy Families Act of 2014

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version.

POLICY:

Paid Time Off (PTO), Extended Illness Bank (EIB) and Healthy Workplace, Healthy 
Families Workplace Act of 2014 Paid Sick Leave (PSL) benefits are offered to all 
employees as defined in this policy. PTO is offered to full-time and part-time benefit 
eligible employees for leisure, celebration of holidays, short-term illness and other 
personal needs. EIB is offered to full-time and part-time benefit eligible employees for 
extended illness and Kin Care. Private Home Care staff, temporary staff/interims and Per 
Diem staff are not eligible for PTO or EIB but are eligible for Paid Sick Leave (PSL) as 
defined in this policy. Excessive occurrences of unapproved time off may result in 
disciplinary action. See Policy HR.184 Attendance and Punctuality.

This policy does not apply to Graduate Medical Education

PROCEDURE:

Eligibility and Accrual for PTO and EIB

Full-time and part-time benefited employees are eligible to receive PTO and EIB as 
of the first pay period of eligibility (date of hire or transfer). If an eligible employee is 
changed to a non-eligible status, the PTO and EIB time accrual will cease. The 
employee will receive a lump-sum payment for all accrued PTO paid at 100% of 
their hourly rate of pay prior to the status change. During the non-eligible status, the 
employee will accrue PSL.

If a non-eligible employee is changed to an eligible status, the employee begins 
accruing PTO and EIB as of the first pay period in which the status change became 
effective; PSL accrual will cease. At no time will an employee accrue PTO and EIB 
as well as PSL. An employee accrues either PTO and EIB or PSL.

EIB accrual will be reinstated for employees who leave Kaweah Health and are 
rehired as follows:

a. If left as non-benefited and rehired as a non-benefited, we will reinstate the 
ending available EIB balance into a reserve bucket. These hours are 
available for use.

242/465



b. If terminated as a benefited and rehired as benefited, we will reinstate the 
ending EIB balance. 

 
c. If terminated as non-benefited and rehired as benefited, we will reinstate the 

ending available EIB balance from the reserved EIB balance (if any). 
 
 

d. If terminated as a benefited and rehired as non-benefited, we will reinstate the 
ending available EIB balance up to the 80-hour maximum, placing the excess EIB 
balance into a reserve bucket. These hours are not available for use. 

 
The rate of PTO and EIB accrual received is based on years of service. Employees 
receive accruals on up to 80 eligible hours, per pay period. The bi-weekly pay period 
starts at 12 AM on a Sunday, and ends at 11:59 PM on the last Saturday of the pay 
period. Qualified service hours which count towards a year of service for the accrual rate 
include the following: regular hours worked (non-overtime), Flex Time Off, PTO FMLA, 
PTO unscheduled, PTO/PSL, PTO Sick/Pregnancy, PTO/Workers Compensation, Sitter 
Pay, Sleep Pay, PTO hours, bereavement hours, jury duty hours, training/workshop 
hours, orientation hours, and mandatory dock hours. Neither EIB nor PTO accruals will be 
earned while employees are being paid EIB hours. 

 

Eligibility and Accrual for PSL 
 

PSL eligible employees include Per-Diem, Private Home Care, and Part-Time non- benefit 
eligible employees. PSL eligible employees will accrue at the rate of one hour per every 
30 hours worked (.033333 per hour); accrual begins as of the first pay period. 

To qualify for sick leave (PSL), an employee must: 

 Must be employed for 30-days; 

 May use beginning at 90-days of employment; 

 Will be paid to the extent of an  accrued hours only. 

 
Employees are limited to use up to 40 hours or five (5) days whichever is 
greater of accrued time in each calendar year. PSL will carry over to the 
following calendar year not to exceed 60 hours of accrual in any calendar year. 

243/465



Maximum Accruals 
 

The maximum PTO accrual allowed is 400 hours. The accrual will cease once the 
maximum accrual is reached until PTO hours are used or cashed out. The maximum EIB 
accrual is 2000 hours; the maximum PSL accrual is 120 hours in a calendar year. No 
payment is made for accrued EIB or PSL time when employment with Kaweah Health 
ends for any reason. 

 
Requesting, Scheduling, and Access to PTO, EIB and PSL 

Employees are required to use accrued PTO for time off for illness or unexpected 
absence occurrences. 

 
Routine unpaid time off is not allowed. Any requests for unpaid time should be considered 
only on a case-by-case basis taking into consideration the need for additional staffing to 
replace the employee and other departmental impacts. It is the responsibility of 
management to monitor compliance. Employees should be aware that unpaid time off 
could potentially affect their eligibility for benefits. 

 
Any planned request for PTO time, whether for traditional holiday, for vacation time or 
otherwise must be approved in advance by management. Management will consider the 

management may need to change the PTO requests of employees based upon the 
business and operational needs of Kaweah Health. In such situations, Kaweah Health is 
not responsible for costs employees may incur as a result of a change in their scheduled 
PTO time. 

 
AB 1522 Healthy Workplace Healthy Families Act of 2014 

An employee may utilize up to five (5) days or 40 hours 40 hours, whichever is 
greater, of PTO or PSL in a calendar year (January-December). For example: 

o For employees who work 12-hour shifts, the employee will be entitled to use 
up to 60 hours of paid sick leave (5 days x 12 hours). 

o An employee who works 10-hour shifts will be entitled to use up to 50 hours (5 
days x 10 hours). 

o An employee who works 8-hour shifts will be entitled to use up to 40 hours (5 
days x 8 hours). 

o Alternatively, if an employee works only 6 hours a day and takes five days of 
paid sick leave, for a total of 30 hours, the employee will still have 10 hours 
remaining. 

244/465



Employee may use PTO or PSL for the following purposes: 
 

a) Diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition, or preventative 
care for an employee or an  designated person, family member, as 

grandparent, grandchild, and siblings. 
 

b)   means any of the following: 
i.  A child, which for purposes of this policy means a biological, adopted or foster 

child, stepchild, legal ward, or a child to whom the employee stands in loco 
parentis; this definition of child is applicable regardless of age or dependency 
status. 

ii.  A biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an 
employee or the  spouse or registered domestic partner, or a person 
who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child. 

iii. Spouse 
iv. Registered domestic partner 
v. Grandparent 
vi. Grandchild 
vii. Sibling 

 
c) Designated Person means the following: 

i. Under the California Family Rights Act (CFRA) and California Healthy Workplaces 
Health Families Act (HWHFA) an employee will be able to identify a designated 
person for whom they want to use leave when they request unpaid CFRA or paid 
HWHFA. 

 
d) For an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking, as 

specified. 
 

There is no cash out provision for the PSL accrual, including upon termination of 
employment or with a status change to a benefit eligible position. However, if an 

employee separates from Kaweah Health and is rehired within one year, previously 
accrued and unused PSL will be reinstated. 

 
PSL and PTO time shall be utilized at a minimum of 1-hour increments and no more 
than the length of the em  

 
PTO and PSL time taken under this section is not subject to the Progressive Discipline 
Policy HR.216. 

Time Off Due To Extended Illness 
 

Employees who are absent due to illness for more than three (3) consecutive work days 
should notify their manager and contact the Human Resources Department to 
determine if they are eligible for a leave of absence. Accrued EIB can be utilized for an 
approved continuous leave of absence beyond three (3) days and if admitted to a 

245/465



hospital or have a medical procedure under anesthesia. However, in instances when 

note for all sick days, then an employee may need to submit a  note. If applying 
for a continuous leave of absence, accrued PTO may be applied for the first twenty four 
(24) hours at the  regular shift length, if leave is for your own medical 
condition. 

 
Employees who are absent due to illness for more than seven (7) consecutive 
days should file a claim for California State Disability Insurance. Claim forms are 
available in Human Resources. State Disability payments will be supplemented 
with any accrued EIB time by the Payroll Department and PTO at the 

 
 
Employees who are absent due t  for less than 
14 days, there is a three (3) day waiting period before TTD (Total Temporary 
Disability) will begin.  The first three (3) days is paid using accrued EIB hours.  If 
the employee is off work more than 14 days, TTD begins on day one (1). 

 
Employees who are absent with an Intermittent Leave under FMLA/CFRA are 
required to use accrued PTO for their absences, at no less than one hour and no 
more than the regular length of the shift. 

 
Time Off Due to Kin Care 

Kin Care allows eligible employees to use up to one-half (1/2) of the Extended Illness 
Bank (EIB) that they accrue annually in a calendar year to take time off to care for a 
sick family member. Only employees who accrue EIB are eligible for Kin Care. No more 
than one-half of an  EIB accrual in a calendar year period can be counted as 
Kin Care. An employee who has exhausted their EIB and then is absent to care for a 
sick family member cannot claim that absence under Kin Care. 

Kin Care can be used to care for a sick family member, to include a spouse or 
registered domestic partner, child of an employee,  means a biological, foster, or 
adopted child, a stepchild, a legal ward, a child of a domestic partner, or a child or a 
person standing in loco parentis, parents, parents- in-law, siblings, grandchildren and 
grandparents. 

 
EIB time taken under this section to care for an immediate family member is not 
subject to the Progressive Discipline Policy HR.216. 

Holidays 

Kaweah Health observes 72 holiday hours each year. Eligible employees 
may be scheduled a day off and will be paid provided adequate accrual 
exists within their PTO bank account for each observed holiday. Time off 
for the observance of holidays will always be in accordance Kaweah Health 
needs. 

1. New  Day (January 1st) 
2.  Day (Third Monday in February) 
3. Memorial Day (Last Monday in May) 
4. Independence Day (July 4th) 
5. Labor Day (First Monday in September) 246/465



6. Thanksgiving Day (Fourth Thursday in November)
7. Day after Thanksgiving Day (Friday following Thanksgiving) 

247/465



8. Christmas Day (December 25th)
9. Personal Day 

Business departments and/or non-patient care areas will typically be closed in 
observance of the noted holidays. Where this is the case, employees assigned to 
and working in these departments will be scheduled for a day off on the day the 
department is closed. Employees affected by department closures for holidays 
should maintain an adequate number of hours within their PTO banks to ensure 
that time off is with pay. 

 
In business departments and/or non-patient care areas, holidays, which fall on 
Saturday, will typically be observed on the Friday preceding the actual holiday 
and holidays, which fall on Sunday, will be observed on the Monday following 
the actual holiday. 

 
Employees who work hours on some of these holidays may be eligible for 
holiday differential. For more information of eligibility, see policy HR.75 
Differential Pay- Shift, Holiday, and Weekend. 

 
 

revision of this Policy is assigned to the Chief of Human Resources. In 
some cases, such as Employee Benefits Policies, Summary Plan Descriptions and Plan Documents 
prevail over a policy. In all cases. Kaweah Health will follow Federal and State Law, as applicable, as well 
as Regulatory requirements. Policies are subject to change as approved by the Governing Board and will 
be communicated as approved after each Board Meeting. It is the  responsibility to review 
and understand all Kaweah  

248/465



Separator Page

Emergency Medicine Privileges-

249/465



Emergency Medicine 

Emergency Medicine 
Approved 12.18.24  

1 

 

 

Privileges in Emergency Medicine 

Name:   
Please Print 

 

EMERGENCY MEDICINE PRIVILEGES - INITIAL CRITERIA 
Education: M.D. or D.O. and successful completion of an ACGME or AOA accredited residency/fellowship in emergency medicine AND Current certification or 
active participation in the examination process leading to certification in Emergency Medicine by the ABEM or AOBEM, with certification obtained within 5 years of 
completion of residency.  

 

Current Initial Clinical Criteria: A minimum of 1 year of continuous, full time  Clinical experience in an emergency department within the last 2 years, OR, to 
include completion of the final year of a n  A C G M E  o r  A O A  a p p r o v e d  residency training within the last 12 months. AND Completion of Kaweah Health 
Post Partum Hemorrhage & Hypertensive Disorder in Pregnancy Education Modules within 30 days of privilege granted AND Completion of an Implicit Bias Training 
prior to or within 30 days of privilege granted 

FPPE Requirement: Concurrent and/or retrospective review of the first 5 cases. 

Renewal Criteria: Minimum of 600 hours in an Emergency Department required in the past two years AND Completion of Kaweah Health Post Partum Hemorrhage 
& Hypertensive Disorder in Pregnancy Education Modules within the last 24 months AND Completion of an Implicit Bias Training within the last 24 months 

CORE PRIVILEGES 
Request Procedure Approve 

 

 
Core Privileges include: 

 Medical Screening Examination (MSE): Assess, work up and perform differential diagnosis by means of using the H&P, medical 
decision making, laboratory and/or other studies (may include telehealth), ECG�s and diagnostic imaging; 

 Provide services necessary to ameliorate minor illnesses or injuries; AND stabilizing treatment to patients who present with major 
illnesses or injuries and determine whether more definitive services are necessary. 

 Administration of Moderate/Deep Procedural Sedation including but not limited to the following agents: Propofol, Ketamine & 
Etomidate: 

 Point of Care Ultrasound core applications 
 May perform any necessary procedures to stabilize and diagnose patient including but not limited to: 

o Airway management, including intubation 
o Arterial puncture and cannulation 
o Cardiopulmonary resuscitation 
o Cardioversion and defibrillation 
o Central venous and pulmonary artery catheter insertion 
o Lumbar puncture 
o Needle and tube thoracostomy 
o Paracentesis 
o Thoracentesis 
o Tracheostomy/cricothyroidotomy, emergency 
o Delivery of Newborn 
o Please reference EMS clinical privilege white paper for complete list of procedures that are approved for the Emergency 

Physician 
 

Privileges do not include admitting privileges, long-term care of patients on an inpatient basis, or the performance of scheduled elective 
procedures. 

 

 

ADDITIONAL PRIVILEGES 
Request Procedure Initial Criteria Renewal FPPE Approve 

 

 
Emergency Ultrasound, Advanced 
applications: (Check request) 

 
 Scrotal US for torsion/flow/mass 

 Adnexal US for mass/flow/torsion 
Transcranial

1) Board Certified or Board Eligible in Emergency Medicine 
ORAND 

2) Completion of an ACGME/AOA approved residency 
training program that included training specific to point of 
care ultrasound or an Completion of an EM Ultrasound 
Fellowship;  
2) OR 

3) Completion of a practice based program that meets ACEP 
recommendations for ultrasound interpretation.  

AND  

dDocumentation of 25 successful procedures for each 
application requested. 

5 procedures per 
application in 2 
years 

2 Reviewed 
exams per 
each 
application 

 

 

250/465



Emergency Medicine 

Emergency Medicine 
Approved 12.18.24  

2 

 

 

Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy Document completion of a training program in hyperbaric 
oxygen therapy (HBOT) of a minimum of 40 hours, 
approved by the 
Undersea and Hyperbaric Medical Society (UHMS) or the 
American College of Hyperbaric Medicine (ACHM) AND 
10 dives in the last 2 years. 

Documentation 
of 20 dives in 
the last 2 years. 

Direct 
observation of 
the first two 
cases with 
concurrent 
chart review 

251/465



Emergency Medicine 

Emergency Medicine 
Approved 12.18.24  

3 

 

 

 

 

 Trans Esophageal Echocardiography 
(TEE): Limited to use during CPR or in 
intubated patients when TTE does not 
provide adequate views 

1) Completion of an ACGME or AOA approved 
residency training program that included training 
specific to TEE; OR 
2) Credentialed in TTE and; 
3) Completion of 2 or more hours of TEE specific 
CME, didactics, or web based resources AND 10 TEE 
exams A maximum of 5 out of the 10 may be simulation 

25 procedures 
in the past 2 
years of which 
up to 15 may be 
done in 
SimLab. 

2 direct and or 
over reads, at 
the discretion 
of the proctor. 

 

 

Wound Care: Surgical debridement of 
wounds, transcutaneous oximetry 
interpretation, complicated wound 
management, local and regional 
anesthesia, wound biopsy and 
preparation of wound bed and 
application of skin substitute 

Meets initial criteria for core and documentation of a 
minimum of 20 procedures in the last two years. 

Documentation 
of 5 procedures 
in the last 2 
years. 

Direct 
observation of 
the first 3 
cases. 

 
Acknowledgment of Practitioner: 

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience and demonstrated performance I am 
qualified to perform and for which I wish to exercise and I understand that 

(a) In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by any Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules 
applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 

 
(b) I may participate in the Kaweah Health Street Medicine Program, as determined by Hospital policy and Volunteer 

Services guidelines. As a volunteer of the program, Medical Mal Practice Insurance coverage is my responsibility 
(c) Emergency Privileges � In case of an emergency, any member of the medical staff, to the degree permitted by his/her 

license and regardless of department, staff status, or privileges, shall be permitted to do everything reasonably possible 
to save the life of a patient from serious harm. 

 
Name:   

Print 
 

Signature:     
Applicant Date 

Signature:     
Department of Emergency Medicine Chair Date 

252/465



Separator Page

Juan Carlos Velasquez

253/465



400 West Mineral King Avenue  · Visalia, CA  ·  (559) 624 2000  ·   www.kaweahhealth.org

Sent via Certified Mail No. 

Return Receipt Required 

, 202

RE: Notice of Rejection of Claim of

Notice is hereby given that the claim, which you presented to the Board of Directors of
Kaweah Health on , 202 , was rejected on its merits by the Board of Directors
on , 202

WARNING

Subject to certain exceptions, you have only six (6) months from the date this notice was 
personally delivered or deposited in the mail to file a court action on this claim. See
Government Code Section 945.6. You may seek the advice of an attorney of your choice in 
connection with this matter. If you desire to consult an attorney, you should do so 
immediately.

Sincerely,

Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Directors 

cc: Richard Salinas, Attorney at Law

254/465



Separator Page

Sophia Genesis Velasquez

255/465



400 West Mineral King Avenue  · Visalia, CA  ·  (559) 624 2000  ·   www.kaweahhealth.org

Sent via Certified Mail No. 

Return Receipt Required 

, 202

RE: Notice of Rejection of Claim of

Notice is hereby given that the claim, which you presented to the Board of Directors of
Kaweah Health on , 202 , was rejected on its merits by the Board of Directors
on , 202

WARNING

Subject to certain exceptions, you have only six (6) months from the date this notice was 
personally delivered or deposited in the mail to file a court action on this claim. See
Government Code Section 945.6. You may seek the advice of an attorney of your choice in 
connection with this matter. If you desire to consult an attorney, you should do so 
immediately.

Sincerely,

Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Directors 

cc: Richard Salinas, Attorney at Law

256/465



Separator Page

Andrea Tafolla

257/465



400 West Mineral King Avenue  · Visalia, CA  ·  (559) 624 2000  ·   www.kaweahhealth.org

Sent via Certified Mail No. 

Return Receipt Required 

, 202

RE: Notice of Rejection of Claim of

Notice is hereby given that the claim, which you presented to the Board of Directors of
Kaweah Health on , 202 , was rejected on its merits by the Board of Directors
on , 202

WARNING

Subject to certain exceptions, you have only six (6) months from the date this notice was 
personally delivered or deposited in the mail to file a court action on this claim. See
Government Code Section 945.6. You may seek the advice of an attorney of your choice in 
connection with this matter. If you desire to consult an attorney, you should do so 
immediately.

Sincerely,

Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Directors 

cc: Richard Salinas, Attorney at Law

258/465



Separator Page

Resolution 2262.

259/465



260/465



261/465



262/465



263/465



264/465



265/465



266/465



267/465



268/465



269/465



270/465



271/465



272/465



273/465



274/465



275/465



276/465



277/465



278/465



279/465



280/465



281/465



282/465



283/465



RESOLUTION NO. 2262

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KAWEAH DELTA 
HEALTH CARE DISTRICT DBA KAWEAH HEALTH APPROVING AND 
ADOPTING DISTRICT BYLAWS

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Kaweah Health, a Special Health Care District 
organized under Division 23 of the California Health and Safety Code (§ 32000 et seq.), 
is authorized to adopt and amend bylaws for the governance of the District; and

WHEREAS, the proposed bylaws set forth the rules for the structure, powers, duties, 
meetings, and operations of the Board of Directors and the administration of the District 
in compliance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, including the Ralph M. 
Brown Act; and

WHEREAS, a draft of the Bylaws has been presented for review and comment, and the 
Board has provided appropriate opportunity for discussion and amendment;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Kaweah 
Health as follows:

Adoption of Bylaws

The Board hereby approves and adopts the Bylaws of Kaweah Health in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference.

Supersession of Prior Bylaws

All previously adopted bylaws and amendments thereto are hereby repealed and 
superseded by the Bylaws approved by this resolution.

Effective Date

The Bylaws shall take effect immediately upon adoption of this Resolution.

Filing and Publication

The District Board Clerk is directed to:

284/465



Retain a signed copy of the adopted Bylaws in the official records of the 
District,

Distribute the Bylaws to all members of the Board and Executive Management.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Kaweah Health on 
this 25th day of June 2025.

285/465



Separator Page

Resolution 2261.

286/465



Resolution 2261 of the Board of Directors 

WHEREAS, Section 32103 of the California Health and Safety Code permits the 
Board of Directors to receive compensation for attendance at certain meetings, provided 
a resolution is adopted by a majority vote of the Board;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that each member of the Board of 
Directors of Kaweah Health shall be compensated as follows:

$200 per Regular and Special Board meeting
$100 per Board Committee meeting
$50 per Community Advisory Committee meeting

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that no more than seven (7) compensated meetings 
shall be paid to each Board member in any one calendar month, in accordance with 
Section 32103 of the Health and Safety Code.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Kaweah Health on this 25th
day of June 2025.

287/465



Separator Page

Resolution 2263

288/465



Resolution 2263 of the Board of Directors

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT DBA 
KAWEAH HEALTH DESIGNATING THE DISTRICT CLERK AS THE AUTHORIZED RECIPIENT OF 
CLAIMS UNDER THE GOVERNMENT CLAIMS ACT

Section 1. Designation of Claims Recipient

Section 2. Location for Service

Section 3. Acknowledgment and Log

- Provide written acknowledgment of receipt of all claims,
- Maintain a secure and confidential claims log, and
-
of any claim.

289/465



Section 4. Effective Date

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Kaweah Health this 25th day of June 
2025.

290/465



Separator Page

OUTSTANDING HEALTH OUTCOMES

291/465



MORE THAN MEDICINE.  LIFE.Kaweah Health

Paul Stefanacci, MD, CMO/CQO
Sandy Volchko DNP, RN, CPHQ, CLSSBB
Director Quality & Patient Safety

Board of Directors Report: June 2025

1
292/465



PATIENT POPULATIONS

More than medicine. Life.More than medicine. Life.

Outstanding Health Outcomes (OHO)
FY25 Plan

At Risk for 
Healthcare 
Acquired 
Infections

Heart 
Failure, 

Pneumonia, 
COPD

Sepsis
Primary Care
(Rural Health 

Clinics) 

Cardio-
vascular 
Disease

Diabetes

Patients with 
Social 

Determinates 
of Health

EVIDENCED BASED CARE

293/465



More than medicine. Life.More than medicine. Life.

OHO Update: Reduction of Standardized Infection Ratio (SIR) & 
Standardized Utilization Ratio (SUR)

Targeted Opportunities & Key Actions
Appropriate Line Use

Reduce Line Utilization
Device Rounds: May 1, 2025
Opportunity: Nurse Driven Urinary Catheter Removal: full implementation by July 31, 2025

Reduce Cross-Contamination
Environmental cleanliness for high-risk areas

Improved environmental cleaning effectiveness: 90% of surfaces passed effectiveness testing FY25
Hand Hygiene (HH) 

Opportunity: Increase use of BioVigil hand hygiene system: Compliance rate overall 94% (goal 95%) 
Disseminate HH Data and provide performance improvement resources to unit level leaders 

Decolonization Strategies
Skin Decolonization: Chlorohexidine bathing implemented November 2024 for patients with lines 

Expanding CHG bathing to other At-Risk groups
Screening of At-Risk MRSA Populations: Nasal Decolonization for positive patients

Healthcare Acquired Infections (HAI) Measure Name FYTD July 2024 -Apr 2025 Goal National 50th percentile
Central Line Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) 0.76 SIR 0.64
Central Line Utilization 0.64 SUR 0.76
Catheter-Associated Urinary Tract Infection (CAUTI) 0.30 SIR 0.55
Indwelling Urinary Catheter Utilization 0.89 SUR 0.81
Methicillin-Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus (MRSA) 1.31 SIR 0.66

294/465



More than medicine. Life.More than medicine. Life.

Targeted Opportunities & Key Actions
Provide Early Goal Directed Therapy 

Sepsis Bundle Implementation: SEP-1 bundle Compliance Meeting Goal
Order Set Utilization:  ED Usage compliance: 89%
Opportunity: Inpatient Order Sets
Opportunity: Fluid Resuscitation - Identified on sepsis mortality review

Focused Sepsis Education
GME Engagement: Sepsis Coordinator and ED Chief Resident Collaboration  
1:1 Staff coaching for ED Sepsis fall outs
Documentation Optimization: Sepsis Team partnership with CDI/Coding (SEP 3 criteria requirements)

Future State
Code Sepsis in ED
ISS Optimization: Improve Sepsis Alert Specificity

Measure Name FYTD July 2024-Apr 2025 Goal 50th Percentile
SEP-1 Bundle % Compliance (CMS Core Measure) 81% 63%
Sepsis All Diagnosis Mortality Rate (o/e) 0.99 0.78

OHO Update:  CMS SEP 1 and Mortality (observed/expected)

295/465



More than medicine. Life.More than medicine. Life.

OHO Update: Mortality & Readmission Reduction 
Heart Failure (HF), Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) & Pneumonia (PN)

Targeted Opportunities & Key Actions
Provide Early Goal Directed Therapy during Hospitalization

COPD Steroid Treatment - Prednisone 40mg PO daily x 5 days IMPROVED FY25
Community Acquired Pneumonia Treatment Appropriate Antibiotic IMPROVED FY25
Opportunity: Inpatient Order Sets 

Provide Early Goal Directed Therapy at Discharge
COPD Patient prescribed LAMA/LABA inhaler at discharge IMPROVED FY25
HF Patients prescribed each of four medications at discharge, FY25 DATA PENDING
Opportunity: ISS Optimization - EHR workflows to guide therapy

Measure Name FYTD July 2024 -May 2025 Goal 50th Percentile
Heart Failure (HF) Mortality 1.15 (10/8.72) 0.65
Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) Mortality 0.00 (0/0.90) 0.84
Pneumonia (PN) Bacterial Mortality 2.49 (5/2.00) 0.77
Pneumonia (PN) Viral Mortality 0.97 (9/9.26) 0.51
HF Readmission 20.44% (31/153) 15.98%
COPD Readmission 23.08% (12/52) 16.18%
PN Readmission 12.77% (18/141) 12.96%

296/465



More than medicine. Life.More than medicine. Life.

Measure Name FYTD July 2024-May 2025 Goal
Achievement of Four Elements in the Health Equity National 
Patient Safety Goal (NPSG)

3/4 4/4

Targeted Opportunities & Key Actions
1. Analyze Quality and Safety Data - Identify Health Disparities ACHIEVED

Established that a disparity existed in the pregnant farm worker population using the published data from Farmworker Study Group

2. Develop Action Plan to Address Identified Disparities and Improve Health Equity ACHIEVED
Farm Workers OB Outcomes initiative action plan executed: September 2024
Action planning in collaboration with Lindsay Family Resource Center and Tulare County HHS WIC Office.

3. Communicate Progress on Health Equity to key Kaweah Health stakeholders ACHIEVED
Progress on Health Equity shared with key stakeholders: Community, BOD, Leadership & Staff
Presentation Platforms: started 3Q 2024 - Norm Sharrer Symposium, Charge RN Conference, BOD reports/presentations 

4. Monitor Impact of Actions taken and modify actions when health equity goals are not met IN PROCESS
Data Monitoring in progress: Data analysis as project progresses and sample size increases

OHO Update: Health Equity
FY25 GOAL
Achieve 4/4 strategic initiatives to build the foundation of an effective Health Equity Program that:  has capability to accurately identify 
health care disparities, act to address disparities, monitor the effectiveness of those actions with a communication platform that 
achieves awareness of QI progress on Health Equity at Kaweah Health

297/465



More than medicine. Life.More than medicine. Life.

Measure Name FYTD July 2024-Apr 2025 Goal
Meet or exceed target in all 15 QIP Measures 15/15 15/15

OHO Update:  Quality Incentive Pool (QIP)

Targeted Opportunities & Key Actions to continue to work on:
Multidisciplinary Quality Improvement Committee 
Patient Care Workflow 

E - Care elements are executed when needed
Opportunity: ISS Optimization - EHR Patient care Reminder Prompts

Patient Education
Diabetes, adolescent vaccination

Documentation/coding
Ensuring correct codes are applied to the target populations so accurate data is collected
Ensuring correct documentation is present in patients EHR so that the appropriate codes are attributed 

The Quality Incentive Pool (QIP) program in California is a value-based payment model designed to enhance quality and equity in Medi-Cal 
managed care, with a focus on primary care settings. It rewards health plans and providers with financial incentives for achieving quality 

measures such as preventive care, effective chronic disease management, and reducing health disparities. By linking payments to 
performance, the program motivates healthcare organizations to prioritize better outcomes and patient-centered care.

298/465



More than medicine. Life.More than medicine. Life.

Measure Name FYTD Jul 2024-Apr 2025 Goal (National Mean)
% Hypoglycemia in Critical Care (CC) Patients 4.2% < 4.3%
% Hypoglycemia with at least one recurrent hypoglycemic day CC Patients 23.6% 26.8%
% Hypoglycemia in Non-Critical Care (NCC) Patients 3.71% < 3.4%
% Hypoglycemia with at least one recurrent hypoglycemic day NCC Patients 28.7% <29.6%

Targeted Opportunities & Key Actions
Utilize Evidence Based Protocols

Critical Care: IV insulin utilized as first line therapy
Opportunity: MICU Workflow - Appropriate Insulin transition from IV to subcue
Opportunity: Renal Patients - Appropriate use of Long-Acting Insulin with close monitoring 

Focused Education
Advanced Practice Nurse: Provide at the elbow training and support

Future State
Evaluating order set focused on the renal insufficient population to guide therapy

OHO Update: Inpatient Diabetes Care 
Hypoglycemia Reduction in Critical Care (CC) and Non-Critical Care (NCC) Locations

299/465



More than medicine. Life.More than medicine. Life.

Measure Name FYTD Goal
PCI In-Hospital Risk-Adjusted Mortality Rate STEMI 2.0% (3Q-4Q 2024) 1.9% (National Mean)
Risk-Standardized Acute Kidney Injury Post PCI 6.3% (3Q-4Q 2024)
Risk Standardized Bleeding Rate 0.94% (CY2024) top 10%)

OHO Update:  AMI STEMI Mort & Processes

Targeted Opportunities & Key Actions
Appropriate Case Selection

- Ensure consistent use
Opportunity: Enhance Morbidity & Mortality case reviews to identify opportunities and corrective actions

Utilize Renal Protective Protocol
Opportunity: Pre-hydration Establish workflows to ensure full amount of fluid is administered
Opportunity: Data review at physician level to address outliers for order set usage, contrast volume. 

Reduce the Risk: ACC PCI Bleed Toolkit
Radial Access: Increased Utilization - Lower incidence of bleeding
Opportunity: Nursing Education - Related to sheath removal

*Data from the American College of Cardiology (ACC) is delayed by approx. 6 months; Q3 FY2025 data will not be available until 4Q2025

300/465



301/465



FY 2025 Strategic Plan

2025

302/465



303/465



304/465



305/465



306/465



307/465



308/465



309/465



310/465



311/465



312/465



313/465



Separator Page

FINANCIALS

314/465



CFO Financial Report
April 18, 2021

CFO Financial Report

Month Ending May 2025

315/465



Status of FEMA Projects

FEMA Project Title
Process 

Step
Obligation 

Date

Best 
Available 

Cost

Best Available 
Federal Share 

Cost (90%)

Payments 
Received 
To Date

P1- Door Screeners/Temperature Scan (12/1/21-6/30/22)
Received

2/6/2023 $190,721 $190,721 $190,721 

P3- Medical Facility Infection Control (1/1/21-6/30/22) Received 4/3/2023 $187,351 $187,351 $187,351 

P4- PPE (1/1/22-6/30/22) Received 4/3/2023 $134,926 $134,926 $134,926 

P7- Diagnostic Testing for Employees (7/2/22-5/11/23) Received 2/8/2024 $15,150 $13,635 $13,635 

P2- Contract Labor & Overtime, part 1 (4/1/20-6/30/22) Obligated 11/27/2024 $33,202,760 $33,202,760 

P5- Contract Labor & Overtime, part 2 (7/2/22-5/11/2023) Obligated 11/27/2024 $16,132,516 $14,519,264 

P8- Diagnostic Testing for Patients (7/2/22-5/11/23)
Received 
3/5/2025

11/21/2024 $606,825 $546,143 $546,143 

Management Costs (5% B projects)
Received
6/11/2025

$2,523,512 $119,634 119,634

Total $52,993,762 $48,914,434 $1,072,777

316/465



317/465



318/465



319/465



320/465



Statistical Results � Fiscal Year Comparison (May)

Actual Results Budget Budget Variance
May 2024 May 2025 % Change May 2025 Change % Change

Average Daily Census 394 378 (4.2%) 400 (22) (5.6%)

KDHCD Patient Days:

Medical Center 8,546 7,877 (7.8%) 8,300 (423) (5.1%)

Acute I/P Psych 1,039 1,255 20.8% 1,403 (148) (10.5%)

Sub-Acute 856 852 (0.5%) 920 (68) (7.4%)

Rehab 550 653 18.7% 558 95 17.0%

TCS-Ortho 330 336 1.8% 355 (19) (5.4%)

NICU 405 334 (17.5%) 365 (31) (8.5%)

Nursery 497 404 (18.7%) 500 (96) (19.2%)

Total KDHCD Patient Days 12,223 11,711 (4.2%) 12,401 (690) (5.6%)

Total Outpatient Volume 62,775 62,899 0.2% 61,660 1,239 2.0%

321/465



Statistical Results � Fiscal Year Comparison (Jul May)

Actual Results Budget Budget Variance
FYTD 2024 FYTD 2025 % Change FYTD 2025 Change % Change

Average Daily Census 407 407 0.0% 414 (7) (1.8%)

KDHCD Patient Days:
Medical Center 92,372 93,364 1.1% 93,160 204 0.2%

Acute I/P Psych 14,144 12,455 (11.9%) 15,159 (2,704) (17.8%)

Sub-Acute 10,142 9,883 (2.6%) 10,050 (167) (1.7%)

Rehab 5,966 6,841 14.7% 6,082 759 12.5%

TCS-Ortho 3,758 3,940 4.8% 4,255 (315) (7.4%)

NICU 4,476 4,320 (3.5%) 4,540 (220) (4.8%)

Nursery 5,441 5,502 1.1% 5,500 2 0.0%

Total KDHCD Patient Days 136,299 136,305 0.0% 138,746 (2,441) (1.8%)

Total Outpatient Volume 647,910 670,330 3.5% 666,329 4,001 0.6%

322/465



323/465



324/465



325/465



326/465



327/465



328/465



329/465



330/465



331/465



332/465



Other Statistical Results � Fiscal Year Comparison (May)

333/465



Other Statistical Results � Fiscal Year Comparison (Jul May)

334/465



Other Statistical Results � Fiscal Year Comparison (May)
Budget

May 24 May 25 Change
% 

Change
May 25 Change

% 
Change

All O/P Rehab Svcs Across District 22,388 20,868 (1,520) (6.8%) 20,344     524 2.6%

Physical & Other Therapy Units (I/P & O/P) 18,595 18,543 (52) (0.3%) 19,309     (766) (4.0%)

Radiology - CT - All Areas 4,573 5,084 511 11.2% 4,581       503 11.0%

Radiology - MRI - All Areas 893 947 54 6.0% 863           84 9.7%

Radiology - Ultrasound - All Areas 2,993 3,250 257 8.6% 2,299       951 41.4%

Radiology - Diagnostic Radiology 10,105 9,712 (393) (3.9%) 8,507       1,205 14.2%

Radiology � Main Campus 15,642 15,998 356 2.3% 13,558     2,440 18.0%

Radiology - Ultrasound - Main Campus 2,339 2,526 187 8.0% 1,453       1,073 73.8%

West Campus - Diagnostic Radiology 1,362 1,307 (55) (4.0%) 1,059       248 23.4%

West Campus - CT Scan 510 518 8 1.6% 410           108 26.3%

West Campus - MRI 396 446 50 12.6% 377           69 18.3%

West Campus - Ultrasound 654 724 70 10.7% 846           (122) (14.4%)

West Campus - Breast Center 1,805 1,298 (507) (28.1%) 1,778       (480) (27.0%)

Med Onc Visalia Treatments 1,211 1,095 (116) (9.6%) 1,268       (173) (13.6%)

Rad Onc Visalia Treatments 1,626 1,502 (124) (7.6%) 1,982       (480) (24.2%)

Rad Onc Hanford Treatments 182 238 56 30.8% 441           (203) (46.0%)

Actual Results Budget Variance

335/465



Other Statistical Results � Fiscal Year Comparison (Jul May)
Budget

YTD 
May 24

YTD 
May 25

Change
% 

Change
YTD 

May 25
Change

% 
Change

All O/P Rehab Svcs Across District 223,524 227,777 4,253 1.9% 215,167    12,610 5.9%

Physical & Other Therapy Units (I/P & O/P) 192,982 202,906 9,924 5.1% 207,645    (4,739) (2.3%)

Radiology - CT - All Areas 49,293 51,977 2,684 5.4% 46,581       5,396 11.6%

Radiology - MRI - All Areas 9,232 9,638 406 4.4% 9,182         456 5.0%

Radiology - Ultrasound - All Areas 29,299 33,554 4,255 14.5% 24,189       9,365 38.7%

Radiology - Diagnostic Radiology 105,995 106,547 552 0.5% 90,109       16,438 18.2%

Radiology � Main Campus 165,366 170,823 5,457 3.3% 140,750    30,073 21.4%

Radiology - Ultrasound - Main Campus 22,726 26,219 3,493 15.4% 14,705       11,514 78.3%

West Campus - Diagnostic Radiology 12,559 13,406 847 6.7% 11,276       2,130 18.9%

West Campus - CT Scan 5,192 5,467 275 5.3% 4,476         991 22.1%

West Campus - MRI 4,129 4,614 485 11.7% 4,075         539 13.2%

West Campus - Ultrasound 6,573 7,335 762 11.6% 9,128         (1,793) (19.6%)

West Campus - Breast Center 18,906 17,623 (1,283) (6.8%) 19,183       (1,560) (8.1%)

Med Onc Visalia Treatments 14,154 11,872 (2,282) (16.1%) 13,416       (1,544) (11.5%)

Rad Onc Visalia Treatments 16,697 15,268 (1,429) (8.6%) 21,517       (6,249) (29.0%)

Rad Onc Hanford Treatments 2,384 2,534 150 6.3% 4,547         (2,013) (44.3%)

YTD Actual Results Budget Variance

336/465



Other Statistical Results � Fiscal Year Comparison (May)

May 24 May 25 Change
% 

Change
May 25 Change

% 
Change

ED - Avg Treated Per Day 265 283 17 6.5% 225           58 25.8%

Surgery (IP & OP) � 100 Min Units 793 762 (31) (3.9%) 827           (65) (7.8%)

Endoscopy Procedures 636 654 18 2.8% 578           76 13.1%

Cath Lab (IP & OP) - 100 Min Units 319 379 60 18.8% 415           (36) (8.7%)

Cardiac Surgery Cases 34 32 (2) (5.9%) 28             4 14.3%

Deliveries 390 307 (83) (21.3%) 396           (89) (22.5%)

Clinical Lab 256,169 252,804 (3,365) (1.3%) 264,518   (11,714) (4.4%)

Reference Lab 5,748 6,888 1,140 19.8% 4,197       2,691 64.1%

Dialysis Center - Visalia Visits 1,577 1,470 (107) (6.8%) 1,868       (398) (21.3%)

Infusion Center - Units of Service 496 492 (4) (0.8%) 415           77 18.6%

Hospice Days 3,454 3,942 488 14.1% 3,895       47 1.2%

Home Health Visits 3,336 2,881 (455) (13.6%) 2,897       (16) (0.6%)

Home Infusion Days 23,709 23,988 279 1.2% 25,335     (1,347) (5.3%)

337/465



Other Statistical Results � Fiscal Year Comparison (Jul May)

Budget

YTD 
May 24

YTD 
May 25

Change
% 

Change
YTD 

May 25
Change

% 
Change

ED - Avg Treated Per Day 261 264 3 1.2% 231            33 14.4%

Surgery (IP & OP) � 100 Min Units 9,162 8,746 (416) (4.5%) 9,141         (395) (4.3%)

Endoscopy Procedures 6,832 6,153 (679) (9.9%) 5,821         332 5.7%

Cath Lab (IP & OP) - 100 Min Units 3,628 3,923 295 8.1% 4,386         (463) (10.6%)

Cardiac Surgery Cases 322 314 (8) (2.5%) 403            (89) (22.1%)

Deliveries 4,279 4,346 67 1.6% 4,208         138 3.3%

Clinical Lab 2,642,300 2,763,840 121,540 4.6% 2,907,940 (144,100) (5.0%)

Reference Lab 63,753 75,691 11,938 18.7% 46,944       28,747 61.2%

Dialysis Center - Visalia Visits 16,835 16,427 (408) (2.4%) 20,358       (3,931) (19.3%)

Infusion Center - Units of Service 4,655 4,706 51 1.1% 4,476         230 5.1%

Hospice Days 38,966 39,307 341 0.9% 41,641       (2,334) (5.6%)

Home Health Visits 34,003 31,744 (2,259) (6.6%) 31,815       (71) (0.2%)

Home Infusion Days 250,775 244,436 (6,339) (2.5%) 278,684    (34,248) (12.3%)

YTD Actual Results Budget Variance

338/465



May Financial Summary (000�s)

Budget
May 2025

Actual
May 2025

$ Change % Change

Operating Revenue
Net Patient Service Revenue $53,875 $56,648 $2,774 4.9%
Other Operating Revenue $20,320 $20,167 ($153) 0.8%
Total Operating Revenue $74,194 $76,815 $2,621 3.4%

Operating Expenses
Employment Expenses $37,583 $46,037 $8,454 18.4%
Other Expenses $35,850 $38,656 $2,805 7.3%

Total Operating Expenses $73,434 $84,693 $11,259 13.3%

OperatingMargin $761 ($7,878) ($8,638)
Stimulus/FEMA $2,200 $0 ($2,200)

OperatingMargin after Stimulus/FEMA $2,961 ($7,878) ($10,838)
Nonoperating Revenue (Loss) $658 $955 $298

Excess Margin $3,618 ($6,923) ($10,541)

Comparison to Budget Month of May

339/465



Year to Date Financial Summary (000�s)

Budget YTD
May 2025

Actual YTD
May 2025

$Change % Change

Operating Revenue
Net Patient Service Revenue $584,635 $604,430 $19,795 3.3%
Other Operating Revenue $222,428 $217,193 ($5,236) 2.4%
Total Operating Revenue $807,064 $821,623 $14,559 1.8%

Operating Expenses
Employment Expenses $418,337 $451,308 $32,972 7.3%
Other Expenses $403,140 $397,325 ($5,815) 1.5%

Total Operating Expenses $821,476 $848,633 $27,157 3.2%

OperatingMargin ($14,412) ($27,010) ($12,598)
Stimulus/FEMA $4,400 $48,412 $44,012

OperatingMargin after Stimulus/FEMA ($10,012) $21,402 $31,414
Nonoperating Revenue (Loss) $7,255 $14,374 $7,119

Excess Margin ($2,758) $35,776 $38,533

Comparison to Budget YTDMay

340/465



May Financial Comparison (000�s)

Budget
May 2025

Actual
May 2025

$ Change % Change
Actual
May 2024

Actual
May 2025

$ Change % Change

Operating Revenue
Net Patient Service Revenue $53,875 $56,648 $2,774 4.9% $52,509 $56,648 $4,139 7.3%
Supplemental Gov't Programs $7,578 $7,003 ($575) 8.2% $13,113 $7,003 ($6,111) 87.3%
Prime Program $792 $792 ($0) 0.0% $822 $792 ($30) 3.8%
Premium Revenue $7,547 $7,829 $282 3.6% $7,018 $7,829 $811 10.4%
Management Services Revenue $0 $0 $0 0.0% $2,873 $0 ($2,873) 0.0%
Other Revenue $4,403 $4,543 $141 3.1% $3,607 $4,543 $936 20.6%
OtherOperating Revenue $20,320 $20,167 ($153) 0.8% $27,433 $20,167 ($7,266) 36.0%
Total Operating Revenue $74,194 $76,815 $2,621 3.4% $79,942 $76,815 ($3,127) 4.1%

Operating Expenses
Salaries &Wages $31,522 $33,875 $2,353 6.9% $31,579 $33,875 $2,296 6.8%
Contract Labor $1,020 $3,039 $2,019 66.4% $1,565 $3,039 $1,474 48.5%
Employee Benefits $5,041 $9,123 $4,082 44.7% $5,846 $9,123 $3,277 35.9%
Total Employment Expenses $37,583 $46,037 $8,454 18.4% $38,990 $46,037 $7,047 15.3%

Medical & Other Supplies $13,730 $14,594 $865 5.9% $14,709 $14,594 ($115) 0.8%
Physician Fees $7,253 $7,567 $314 4.2% $7,472 $7,567 $95 1.3%
Purchased Services $1,826 $2,051 $225 11.0% $1,770 $2,051 $281 13.7%
Repairs &Maintenance $2,081 $2,095 $14 0.7% $1,997 $2,095 $99 4.7%
Utilities $846 $944 $98 10.4% $742 $944 $202 21.4%
Rents & Leases $154 $205 $51 25.1% $165 $205 $40 19.4%
Depreciation &Amortization $3,302 $3,751 $449 12.0% $3,208 $3,751 $543 14.5%
Interest Expense $608 $593 ($15) 2.6% $563 $593 $30 5.0%
Other Expense $2,284 $2,001 ($283) 14.2% $1,485 $2,001 $515 25.8%
Humana Cap Plan Expenses $3,766 $4,854 $1,088 22.4% $5,427 $4,854 ($573) 11.8%
Total Other Expenses $35,850 $38,656 $2,805 7.3% $37,539 $38,656 $1,116 2.9%
Total Operating Expenses $73,434 $84,693 $11,259 13.3% $76,530 $84,693 $8,163 9.6%

OperatingMargin $761 ($7,878) ($8,638) $3,413 ($7,878) ($11,290)
Stimulus/FEMA $2,200 $0 ($2,200) ($1,603) $0 $1,603
OperatingMargin after Stimulus/FEMA $2,961 ($7,878) ($10,838) $1,809 ($7,878) ($9,687)
Nonoperating Revenue (Loss) $658 $955 $298 $847 $955 $108
ExcessMargin $3,618 ($6,923) ($10,541) $2,657 ($6,923) ($9,579)

Comparison to Budget Month of May Comparison to Prior Year Month of May

341/465



Year to Date: July through May Financial Comparison (000�s)

Budget YTD
May 2025

Actual YTD
May 2025

$Change % Change
Actual YTD
May 2024

Actual YTD
May 2025

$Change % Change

Operating Revenue
Net Patient Service Revenue $584,635 $604,430 $19,795 3.3% $543,970 $604,430 $60,460 10.0%
Supplemental Gov't Programs $82,230 $78,332 ($3,898) 5.0% $87,401 $78,332 ($9,069) 11.6%
Prime Program $8,710 $13,470 $4,759 35.3% $10,675 $13,470 $2,794 20.7%
Premium Revenue $83,019 $78,740 ($4,279) 5.4% $81,058 $78,740 ($2,317) 2.9%
Management Services Revenue $0 $0 $0 0.0% $35,613 $0 ($35,613) 0.0%
Other Revenue $48,468 $46,650 ($1,818) 3.9% $33,275 $46,650 $13,375 28.7%
Other Operating Revenue $222,428 $217,193 ($5,236) 2.4% $248,022 $217,193 ($30,829) 14.2%
Total Operating Revenue $807,064 $821,623 $14,559 1.8% $791,992 $821,623 $29,631 3.6%

Operating Expenses
Salaries &Wages $345,483 $354,525 $9,042 2.6% $322,258 $354,525 $32,267 9.1%
Contract Labor $13,712 $21,851 $8,139 37.2% $19,785 $21,851 $2,066 9.5%
Employee Benefits $59,142 $74,933 $15,790 21.1% $73,929 $74,933 $1,004 1.3%
Total Employment Expenses $418,337 $451,308 $32,972 7.3% $415,971 $451,308 $35,337 7.8%

Medical & Other Supplies $161,127 $152,660 ($8,467) 5.5% $149,053 $152,660 $3,607 2.4%
Physician Fees $79,374 $80,937 $1,563 1.9% $75,103 $80,937 $5,834 7.2%
Purchased Services $19,717 $18,867 ($850) 4.5% $16,738 $18,867 $2,129 11.3%
Repairs &Maintenance $22,829 $23,725 $896 3.8% $21,710 $23,725 $2,015 8.5%
Utilities $10,166 $10,289 $123 1.2% $9,165 $10,289 $1,123 10.9%
Rents & Leases $1,690 $1,586 ($104) 6.6% $1,784 $1,586 ($198) 12.5%
Depreciation & Amortization $36,320 $36,075 ($245) 0.7% $35,028 $36,075 $1,047 2.9%
Interest Expense $6,574 $6,535 ($39) 0.6% $6,783 $6,535 ($248) 3.8%
Other Expense $24,642 $23,751 ($891) 3.8% $20,615 $23,751 $3,136 13.2%
Humana Cap Plan Expenses $40,701 $42,901 $2,201 5.1% $43,324 $42,901 ($423) 1.0%
Total Other Expenses $403,140 $397,325 ($5,815) 1.5% $379,303 $397,325 $18,022 4.5%

Total Operating Expenses $821,476 $848,633 $27,157 3.2% $795,274 $848,633 $53,359 6.3%

Operating Margin ($14,412) ($27,010) ($12,598) ($3,282) ($27,010) ($23,728)
Stimulus/FEMA $4,400 $48,412 $44,012 $1,617 $48,412 $46,795
Operating Margin after Stimulus/FEMA ($10,012) $21,402 $31,414 ($1,666) $21,402 $23,067
Nonoperating Revenue (Loss) $7,255 $14,374 $7,119 $12,911 $14,374 $1,463
Excess Margin ($2,758) $35,776 $38,533 $11,245 $35,776 $24,530

Comparison to Budget YTDMay Comparison to Prior Year YTDMay

342/465



Budget and Actual Fiscal Year 2025: Trended Operating Margin (000�s)

343/465



July 2024 � May 2025 : Trended Financial Information (000�s)

Jul 24 Aug 24 Sep 24 Oct 24 Nov 24 Dec 24 Jan 25 Feb 25 Mar 25 Apr 25 May 25 FY 2025
Patient Service Revenue $50,866 $53,450 $51,648 $56,157 $54,496 $53,026 $61,895 $53,731 $57,324 $55,188 $56,648 $604,430
Other Revenue $19,487 $20,024 $19,142 $20,242 $19,868 $19,778 $18,042 $18,979 $21,231 $20,234 $20,167 $217,193
Total Operating Revenue $70,353 $73,474 $70,790 $76,398 $74,364 $72,804 $79,938 $72,710 $78,555 $75,422 $76,815 $821,623

Employee Expense $38,264 $39,058 $37,671 $41,494 $41,051 $43,219 $39,859 $38,637 $42,423 $43,595 $46,037 $451,308
Other Operating Expense $35,811 $37,908 $35,477 $37,294 $34,872 $35,868 $36,630 $33,796 $36,024 $34,988 $38,656 $397,325

Total Operating Expenses $74,075 $76,965 $73,148 $78,788 $75,923 $79,087 $76,489 $72,433 $78,446 $78,583 $84,693 $848,633

Net Operating Margin ($3,722) ($3,492) ($2,358) ($2,390) ($1,559) ($6,283) $3,448 $277 $109 ($3,161) ($7,878) ($27,010)
Stimulus/FEMA $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $47,722 $0 $0 $690 $0 $0 $48,412
NonOperating Income $1,190 $896 $4,720 $1,371 $905 ($101) $845 $1,166 $1,313 $1,114 $955 $14,374

Excess Margin ($2,533) ($2,596) $2,362 ($1,019) ($654) $41,338 $4,293 $1,443 $2,111 ($2,047) ($6,923) $35,776

Profitability
Operating Margin % (5.3%) (4.8%) (3.3%) (3.1%) (2.1%) (8.6%) 4.3% 0.4% 0.1% (4.2%) (10.3%) (3.3%)
Operating Margin %excl. Int (4.4%) (4.0%) (2.5%) (2.4%) (1.3%) (7.8%) 5.1% 1.1% 0.9% (3.4%) (9.5%) (2.5%)
Operating EBIDA $46 $239 $1,457 $1,348 $2,293 ($2,546) $7,207 $4,052 $4,115 $920 ($3,534) $15,599
Operating EBIDA Margin 0.1% 0.3% 2.1% 1.8% 3.1% (3.5%) 9.0% 5.6% 5.2% 1.2% (4.6%) 1.9%

Liquidity Indicators
Day's Cash on Hand 97.4 89.8 91.9 88.4 78.9 74.6 80.3 88.9 88.1 95.7 90.5 90.5
Day's in Accounts Rec. 64.0 68.5 71.0 68.3 66.9 65.8 70.6 73.0 68.6 63.6 71.3 71.3

Debt & Other Indicators

Debt Service Coverage (MADS) 0.70 0.50 1.40 1.80 1.50 3.20 3.20 3.90 4.10 4.00 3.70 3.70
Discharges (Monthly) 2,498 2,447 2,440 2,388 2,240 2,339 2,339 2,352 2,347 2,357 2,276 2,366
Adj Discharges (Case mix adj) 8,455 8,215 7,779 8,441 7,760 7,724 8,294 8,320 8,053 8,500 8,534 90,076
Adjusted patient Days (Mo.) 26,023 26,419 26,419 26,693 25,492 26,538 26,538 26,332 27,682 25,868 26,409 26,401
Cost/Adj Discharge $8.8 $9.4 $9.4 $9.3 $9.8 $10.2 $9.2 $8.7 $9.7 $9.2 $9.9 $9.4
Compensation Ratio 75% 73% 73% 74% 75% 82% 64% 72% 74% 79% 81% 75%

344/465



Month of May Budget Variances

� Net Patient Service Revenue: The $2.8M favorable variance in May resulted from an
increase in outpatient volumes and within the mix of our patients.

� Salaries and wages: The $2.4M unfavorable variance is due to increases in staffing in the
ED and other areas as well as increases in market rates.

� Contract Labor: The unfavorable variance of $2.0M is due to an unexpected increase in the
need of contract labor primarily in Labor and Delivery, the ED, and for interim management
positions.

� Employee Benefits: The $4.1M unfavorable variance is due to an increase in employee
self funded health insurance claims, an unbudgeted 100% 401k match for CY25 (50%
budgeted), an increase in FICA due to increased payroll, and workers compensation
expense. $1.4M of the variance was the recognition of one third of the total amount
necessary to record our year end unpaid claims liability for workers� compensation as
projected by our actuary.

� Medical and Other Supplies: The $895K variance is mainly due to an increase in cardiac
catheterization supplies.

� Humana Cap Expenses: The unfavorable variance of $1.1M is due to higher than
anticipated third party expenses.

345/465



Total FTEs (includes Contract Labor)

346/465



Contract Labor Full Time Equivalents (FTEs)
Contract Labor FTE's

Most
Recent Pay
Period

Prior Pay
period 1 Year Ago

6/70/25
6/8/24

Department Name 6/7/2025 5/24/2025 6/8/2024 Change
7010 Emergency ED 49 53 13 36
7400 Labor Delivery 15 16 6 10
6173M/S Oncology 3S 15 13 9 6
6181M/S CDU 2S 6 10 7 (1)
6177M/S Ortho Neuro 4S 7 8 8 (1)
6172Medical/Surgical 3N 10 9 3 6
6070Neonatal ICU NICU 5 6 3 2
6174M/S Renal 4N 4 6 2 2
7630 Radiology KHMC 3 3 3 1
6186 ICCU 15 3 3 2 1
7235 Labor Triage 3 4 0 3
6150M/S Cardiac 2N 2 2 2 1
6030 Cardiovascular ICU CVIC 2 2 2 0
7500 Clinical Laboratory 2 2 0 2
7641 SRCCMedical Oncology 0 0 3 (3)
6187M/S Antepartum 2E 1 2 0 1
7680 CT Scan KHMC 1 2 0 1
7652NuclearMedicine KHDC 1 1 0 1
7650NuclearMedicine KHM 0 0 2 (2)
8741 Clinical Inservice Educa 1 0 0 1
7794OT KHRH/SNF 0 0 1 (1)
Total 137 145 67 70

347/465



Emergency Department FTEs: Includes Contract

348/465



Contract Labor Expense

349/465



Productivity Measure : Worked Hours/ Adj. Patient Days

350/465



Overtime as a % of Productive Hours

351/465



Average Length of Stay versus National Average (GMLOS)

352/465



Average Length of Stay versus National Average (GMLOS)

353/465



Average Length of Stay versus National Average (GMLOS)
ALOS GMLOS GAP

May 23 5.37 3.94 1.43
Jun 23 5.40 3.90 1.50
Jul 23 5.50 3.84 1.66
Aug 23 5.29 3.82 1.47
Sep 23 5.46 3.95 1.51
Oct 23 5.98 3.99 1.99
Nov 23 5.81 4.06 1.75
Dec 23 5.58 3.99 1.59
Jan 24 6.10 4.10 2.00
Feb 24 5.74 4.11 1.63
Mar 24 6.06 3.93 2.13
Apr 24 5.47 3.90 1.57
May 24 6.06 3.86 2.20
Jun 24 5.66 4.05 1.61
Jul 24 5.77 4.02 1.75
Aug 24 5.73 3.95 1.78
Sep 24 5.38 3.88 1.50
Oct 24 5.69 4.00 1.69
Nov 24 5.21 3.86 1.35
Dec 24 5.66 3.94 1.73
Jan 25 6.13 4.04 2.10
Feb 25 5.31 3.91 1.40
Mar 25 5.43 3.79 1.63
Apr 25 5.66 3.79 1.87
May 25 5.15 3.77 1.38

5.62 3.94 1.69

354/465



Average Length of Stay Distribution

355/465



Length of Stay Distribution

356/465



Monthly Discharges of Observation Patients by their Length of Stay

357/465



358/465



Trended Liquidity Ratios

359/465



Malpractice Actuary Comparisons (000�s)

360/465



Workers Comp Actuary Estimation

361/465



Workers Comp Actuary Estimation

362/465



Ratio Analysis Report

MAY 31, 2025

June 30,

Current Prior 2024 2023 Moody's

Month Month Audited Median Benchmark

Value Value Value Aa A Baa

LIQUIDITY RATIOS

Current Ratio (x) 2.7 2.7 2.3 1.7 1.8 1.7

Accounts Receivable (days) 71.3 63.6 61.9 47.8 47.7 47.8

Cash On Hand (days) 90.5 95.7 105.1 273.9 188.4 134.1

Cushion Ratio (x) 10.3 10.8 10.7 44.7 24.2 16.6

Average Payment Period (days) 52.6 54.8 58.6 70.9 62.7 64.0

CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIOS

Cash-to-Debt 103.0% 108.0% 106.3% 271.7% 164.5% 131.0%

Debt-To-Capitalization 32.5% 32.1% 34.5% 22.5% 31.1% 35.0%

Debt-to-Cash Flow (x) 2.7 2.5 3.4 2.4 3.6 6.9

Debt Service Coverage 4.7 5.1 3.7 6.7 4.5 2.1

Maximum Annual Debt Service Coverage (x) 3.7 4.0 2.9 6.8 3.8 1.9

Age Of Plant (years) 13.7 13.8 13.3 11.1 12.8 13.9

PROFITABILITY RATIOS

Operating Margin (3.3%) (2.6%) 0.8% 2.1% 0.5% (2.3%)

Excess Margin 4.0% 5.3% 2.4% 5.5% 2.7% (.9%)

Operating Cash Flow Margin 1.9% 2.6% 6.1% 6.7% 5.5% 3.0%

Return on Assets 4.3% 5.6% 2.4% 3.9% 2.4% (.7%)

363/465



Consolidated Statements of Net Position (000�s)
May 25 Jun 24

(Audited)
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,774 $ 19,412

Current Portion of Board designated and trusted assets 25,808 14,944
Accounts receivable:

Net patient accounts 148,337 133,806
Other receivables 75,542 25,023

223,880 158,829
Inventories 13,769 13,738
Medicare and Medi Cal settlements 70,489 82,755
Prepaid expenses 9,232 8,403

Total current assets 347,950 298,082
NON CURRENT CASH AND INVESTMENTS
less current portion

Board designated cash and assets 207,539 210,518
Revenue bond assets held in trust 22,741 19,326
Assets in self insurance trust fund 734 827
Total non current cash and investments 231,013 230,671

INTANGIBLE RIGHT TO USE LEASE, 15,909 10,464
net of accumulated amortization

INTANGIBLE RIGHT TO USE SBITA, 8,422 12,153
net of accumulated amortization

CAPITAL ASSETS
Land 17,542 17,542
Buildings and improvements 434,656 428,209
Equipment 340,166 334,316
Construction in progress 20,671 22,757

813,036 802,825
Less accumulated depreciation 538,719 512,148

274,316 290,676
OTHER ASSETS
Property not used in operations 5,158 4,487
Health related investments 2,073 2,676
Other 20,928 17,120

Total other assets 28,160 24,283
Total assets 905,770 866,329

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 14,069 15,283

Total assets and deferred outflows $ 919,839 $ 881,611

364/465



Consolidated Statements of Net Position (000�s)

May 25 Jun 24

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 35,325 $ 41,096
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 69,574 62,382
SBITA liability, current portion 3,336 4,146
Lease liabiilty, current portion 3,085 2,248
Bonds payable, current portion 12,754 12,585
Notes payable, current portion 3,458 9,850

Total current liabilities 127,533 132,306

LEASE LIABILITY, net of current portion 13,244 8,477
SBITA LIABILITY, net of current portion 3,712 5,846

LONG TERM DEBT, less current portion
Bonds payable 212,260 214,713
Notes payable 17,292 20,750

Total long term debt 229,551 235,463
NET PENSION LIABILITY 21,666 21,226
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES 44,382 36,256

Total liabilities 440,090 439,574

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 51,675 66,112
Restricted 68,256 52,733
Unrestricted 359,819 323,192

Total net position 479,749 442,037

Total liabilities and net position $ 919,839 $ 881,611

365/465



Maturity Investment G/L
Board designated funds Date Yield Type Account Amount Total

LAIF 4.48 Various 42,218,951          
CAMP 4.42 CAMP 29,195,939          
Allspring 31846V203 3.91 Money market 96,001                 
PFM 31846V203 3.91 Money market 892,898           
Allspring 9 23-Jan-25 5.20 MTN-C Wells Fargo co 500,000           
PFM 3 25-Jan-25 0.00 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 205,000
PFM 9 31-Mar-25 4.00 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 700,000
PFM 8 24-Apr-25 4.76 MTN-C State Street Corp 140,000           
Allspring 9 28-Apr-25 4.35 MTN-C Walmart Inc 500,000           
PFM 9 28-Apr-25 4.30 MTN-C Walmart Inc 160,000
PFM 1-May-25 4.20 MTN-C Colgate Palmolive 180,000           
Allspring 2 1-Jun-25 0.92 Municipal Connecticut ST 400,000               
Allspring 3 17-Jun-25 0.50 U.S. Govt Agency FNMA 2,000,000            
Allspring 9 30-Jun-25 0.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 350,000               
Allspring 3 21-Jul-25 0.38 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 1,500,000
Allspring 8 1-Aug-25 2.17 Municipal Santa Cruz Ca 400,000               
PFM 1-Aug-25 0.85 Municipal San Juan Ca 190,000           
Allspring 3 25-Aug-25 0.38 U.S. Govt Agency FNMA 1,500,000            
PFM 3 25-Aug-25 3.75 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 235,601
Allspring 3 4-Sep-25 0.38 U.S. Govt Agency FHLB 525,000               
Allspring 3 23-Sep-25 0.38 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 750,000               
Allspring 29-Oct-25 0.55 MTN-C Procter Gamble Co 1,300,000            
Allspring 9 31-Oct-25 0.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 770,000
Allspring 9 30-Nov-25 0.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 2,550,000            
PFM 9 28-Feb-26 0.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 250,000           
Allspring 9 31-Mar-26 0.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 675,000               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD First Heritage Bank 236,500               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD Farmers & Merchants Bank 13,500                 
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD Citizens Bank & Trust 22,454                 
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD American Plus Bank, N.A. 236,500               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD BOKF, National Association 236,500               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD CalPrivate Bank 236,500               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD Centreville Bak 236,500               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD Citizens Bank & Trust 214,047               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD City Natl Bank of Sulphur Springs 236,500               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD Farmer & Merchants Bank 175,677               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD First Oklahoma Bank 199,759               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD Homeland Federal Savings Bank 15,912                 
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD Locus Bank 236,500               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD Old National Bank 236,500               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD River City Bank 236,500               
Western Alliance - CDARS 2-Apr-26 4.01 CD Solera National Bank 236,500               
PFM 0 19-Apr-26 3.50 MTN-C Bank of America 295,000               
Allspring 6 21-Apr-26 4.75 MTN-C Morgan Stanley 1,000,000        
PFM 4 15-May-26 3.30 MTN-C IBM Corp 410,000           
PFM 0 28-May-26 1.20 MTN-C Astrazeneca LP 265,000           
PFM 9 31-May-26 0.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000        
PFM 9 31-May-26 2.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,200,000        
Allspring 8 18-Jun-26 1.13 MTN-C Toyota Motor 1,400,000            
Allspring 9 30-Jun-26 0.88 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,850,000        
PFM 9 30-Jun-26 0.88 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 990,000               
Allspring 0 1-Jul-26 1.89 Municipal Anaheim Ca Pub 1,000,000            
PFM 5 1-Jul-26 1.46 Municipal Los Angeles Ca 270,000           
PFM 0 7-Jul-26 5.25 MTN-C American Honda Mtn 145,000               
PFM 2 17-Jul-26 5.08 MTN-C Cooperatieve CD 400,000               
PFM 4 20-Jul-26 3.73 ABS Honda Auto Rec Own 31,691                 
PFM 9 31-Jul-26 0.63 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 880,000               
PFM 9 31-Aug-26 0.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 800,000               
PFM 14-Sep-26 1.15 MTN-C Caterpillar Finl Mtn 220,000               
PFM 6 18-Sep-26 5.61 MTN-C Natixis Ny 405,000               
Allspring 9 30-Sep-26 0.88 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 2,210,000            
PFM 9 30-Sep-26 0.88 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000
Allspring 9 31-Oct-26 1.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 800,000               
PFM 1-Nov-26 4.76 Municipal California St Univ 125,000               
PFM 0 4-Nov-26 1.65 MTN-C American Express Co 445,000               
PFM 6 13-Nov-26 5.60 MTN-C National Rural Mtn 160,000
Allspring 9 30-Nov-26 1.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 2,000,000            
Allspring 4-Dec-26 5.49 MTN-C Citibank N A 1,000,000        
PFM 2 11-Jan-27 1.70 MTN-C Deere John Mtn 220,000               
Allspring 8 15-Jan-27 1.95 MTN-C Target Corp 900,000               
PFM 26-Feb-27 4.80 MTN-C Cisco Sys Inc 260,000               
PFM 2 15-Mar-27 5.90 ABS Daimler Trucks 248,738               
PFM 8 18-Mar-27 4.99 MTN-C State Street Corp 335,000               
PFM 3 25-Mar-27 3.22 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 575,000               
PFM 4 30-Mar-27 5.39 MTN-C Hormel Food Corp 115,000               
PFM 4 15-Apr-27 2.50 MTN-C Home Depot Inc 220,000               
PFM 15-Apr-27 3.97 ABS Carmax Auto Owner 223,719               
Allspring 9 30-Apr-27 2.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 970,000               
PFM 9 30-Apr-27 0.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 250,000               
PFM 9 30-Apr-27 2.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 800,000               
PFM 3 1-May-27 5.41 MTN-C Goldman Sachs 220,000               
PFM 6 13-May-27 5.00 MTN-C Paccar Financial Mtn 95,000                 
PFM 9 15-May-27 3.70 MTN-C Unitedhealth Group 85,000                 
PFM 9 15-May-27 2.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 925,000               
PFM 17-May-27 3.66 ABS Capital One Prime 114,360               
Allspring 3 21-May-27 5.41 MTN-C Goldman Sachs 1,100,000        
Allspring 5 15-Jul-27 3.68 Municipal Massachusetts St 1,000,000            
PFM 0 26-Jul-27 4.60 MTN-C Blackrock Funding 185,000               
PFM 9 31-Jul-27 2.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 185,000               
Allspring 1-Aug-27 3.23 Municipal San Jose Ca Redev 400,000           
Allspring 0 1-Aug-27 3.46 Municipal Alameda Cnty Ca 500,000               
Allspring 6 6-Aug-27 4.45 MTN-C Paccar Financial Mtn 900,000           
PFM 9 15-Aug-27 2.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 190,000               
PFM 9 31-Aug-27 0.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,140,000            
Allspring 0 15-Sep-27 5.93 MTN-C Bank of America 1,100,000        
Allspring 1-Oct-27 4.66 Municipal San Francisco Ca 1,000,000        
PFM 8 8-Oct-27 4.35 MTN-C Toyota Motor 130,000               
Allspring 8 22-Oct-27 4.33 MTN-C State Street Corp 1,000,000        
PFM 9 31-Oct-27 0.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,500,000            
Allspring 6 15-Nov-27 5.49 ABS Nissan Auto Lease 500,000           
Allspring 15-Nov-27 4.60 MTN-C Caterpillar Finl Mtn 1,000,000        
PFM 5 15-Nov-27 4.51 ABS Mercedes Benz Auto 109,866               
PFM 17-Nov-27 5.02 MTN-C Bp Cap Mkts Amer 310,000               
PFM 5 15-Jan-28 4.10 MTN-C Mastercard 130,000               
Allspring 5 18-Jan-28 5.66 ABS Mercedes Benz Auto 1,000,000        

KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF FUNDS

May 31, 2025

366/465



KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF FUNDS

May 31, 2025

PFM 9 24-Jan-28 4.90 MTN-C Wells Fargo MTN 145,000
PFM 0 7-Feb-28 3.44 MTN-C Bank New York Mellon Mtn 300,000               
Allspring 5 12-Feb-28 4.55 MTN-C Eli Lilly Co 300,000           
Allspring 3 16-Feb-28 4.47 ABS GM Finl Consumer 770,774
PFM 4 18-Feb-28 5.41 ABS Honda Auto 326,398
PFM 24-Feb-28 4.55 MTN-C Cisco Sys Inc 70,000                 
PFM 4 24-Feb-28 4.55 MTN-C Hershey Co 80,000                 
PFM 0 25-Feb-28 5.47 ABS BMW Vehicle Owner 77,329                 
PFM 26-Feb-28 4.48 MTN-C Chevron USA Inc 340,000               
PFM 9 29-Feb-28 1.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,500,000            
PFM 4 1-Mar-28 4.55 MTN-C Johnson Johnson Sr 80,000                 
PFM 4 17-Apr-28 5.48 ABS Hyundai Auto 107,069               
Allspring 4 22-Apr-28 5.57 MTN-C JP Morgan 1,100,000
PFM 3 23-Apr-28 4.89 MTN-C Goldman Sachs 155,000           
PFM 9 30-Apr-28 3.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 750,000               
PFM 9 30-Apr-28 1.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 600,000               
PFM 2 9-May-28 4.25 MTN-C Cummins INC 20,000
PFM 0 15-May-28 4.87 ABS American Express Co 150,000
PFM 3 15-May-28 5.23 ABS Ford CR Auto Owner 157,708               
PFM 0 15-May-28 4.79 ABS Bank of America 180,000               
PFM 0 15-May-28 5.46 ABS Ally Auto Rec 177,213
PFM 6 26-May-28 5.50 MTN-C Morgan Stanley 280,000
PFM 9 31-May-28 3.63 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,280,000
PFM 3 16-Jun-28 5.45 ABS GM Finl con Auto Rec 105,021               
PFM 3 25-Jun-28 4.82 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 530,000               
PFM 3 25-Jun-28 4.78 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 433,504               
PFM 9 30-Jun-28 4.00 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,300,000
PFM 5 1-Jul-28 4.42 Municipal Los Angeles Ca 140,000           
Allspring 2 14-Jul-28 4.95 MTN-C John Deere Mtn 700,000               
PFM 2 14-Jul-28 4.95 MTN-C John Deere Mtn 120,000               
PFM 3 25-Jul-28 4.18 U.S. Govt Agency FNMA 515,805               
Allspring 1-Aug-28 5.75 Municipal San Diego County 1,000,000        
PFM 3 15-Aug-28 5.53 ABS Fifth Third Auto 377,774               
PFM 4 15-Aug-28 5.69 ABS Harley Davidson 500,000               
PFM 3 25-Aug-28 4.74 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 545,000               
PFM 3 25-Aug-28 4.65 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 545,000               
PFM 15-Sep-28 5.16 ABS Chase Issuance Trust 435,000               
PFM 0 15-Sep-28 5.23 ABS American Express 445,000               
PFM 3 25-Sep-28 4.85 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 410,000               
PFM 3 25-Sep-28 4.80 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 535,000               
PFM 29-Sep-28 5.80 MTN-C Citibank N A 535,000               
PFM 9 30-Sep-28 4.63 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 500,000               
Allspring 0 25-Oct-28 5.80 MTN-C Bank New York Mtn 1,000,000        
PFM 3 25-Oct-28 5.07 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 200,000               
PFM 3 25-Oct-28 4.86 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 300,000               
PFM 9 31-Oct-28 1.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,500,000            
PFM 9 31-Oct-28 1.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 775,000               
Allspring 0 15-Nov-28 4.98 ABS Bank of America 394,000           
PFM 3 25-Nov-28 5.00 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 280,000               
PFM 3 25-Dec-28 4.57 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 325,000               
PFM 3 25-Dec-28 4.72 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 315,000               
PFM 9 31-Dec-28 3.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,200,000            
PFM 9 31-Dec-28 1.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 500,000               
PFM 6 12-Jan-29 5.02 MTN-C Morgan Stanley 250,000               
PFM 16-Jan-29 4.60 ABS Chase Issuance Trust 490,000               
PFM 4 24-Jan-29 4.92 MTN-C JP Morgan 140,000               
PFM 6 31-Jan-29 4.60 MTN-C Paccar Financial Mtn 160,000               
PFM 0 8-Feb-29 4.60 MTN-C Air products 295,000               
PFM 8 8-Feb-29 4.60 MTN-C Texas Instrs 370,000               
PFM 9 15-Feb-29 4.94 ABS Wells Fargo Card 560,000               
PFM 2 20-Feb-29 4.90 MTN-C Cummins INC 195,000               
PFM 22-Feb-29 4.90 MTN-C Bristol Myers Squibb 200,000               
Allspring 0 26-Feb-29 5.18 ABS BMW Vehicle Owner 1,100,000        
PFM 26-Feb-29 4.85 MTN-C Cisco Sys Inc 225,000               
PFM 0 26-Feb-29 4.85 MTN-C Astrazeneca 165,000
PFM 9 28-Feb-29 4.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 750,000               
PFM 0 14-Mar-29 4.70 MTN-C Blackrock Funding 50,000
PFM 0 14-Mar-29 4.70 MTN-C Blackrock Funding 220,000               
Allspring 4 15-Mar-29 5.20 ABS John Deere Owner 1,000,000
Allspring 4 15-Mar-29 5.38 ABS Hyundai Auto Rec 1,000,000        
PFM 3 25-Mar-29 5.18 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 315,000
Allspring 9 31-Mar-29 4.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000        
PFM 9 31-Mar-29 4.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 225,000               
PFM 0 4-Apr-29 4.80 MTN-C Adobe Inc 225,000               
Allspring 3 15-Apr-29 5.10 ABS Ford CR Auto Owner 1,000,000        
PFM 3 15-Apr-29 5.10 ABS Ford CR Auto Owner 415,000               
PFM 9 23-Apr-29 4.91 MTN-C Wells Fargo co 205,000           
PFM 0 25-Apr-29 4.73 MTN-C American Express 245,000           
PFM 0 9-May-29 4.62 MTN-C Bank America Mtn 290,000           
PFM 4 15-May-29 4.42 ABS Hyundai Auto Rec 195,000               
PFM 3 25-May-29 4.72 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 460,000               
Allspring 9 31-May-29 4.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000        
Allspring 6 15-Jun-29 5.15 MTN-C National Rural Mtn 850,000           
Allspring 9 20-Jun-29 5.98 ABS Verizon Master Trust 1,000,000        
Allspring 4 25-Jun-29 4.75 MTN-C Home Depot Inc 500,000           
PFM 4 25-Jun-29 4.75 MTN-C Home Depot Inc 95,000                 
PFM 3 25-Jun-29 4.64 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 200,000               
PFM 9 30-Jun-29 3.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 2,030,000            
PFM 3 15-Jul-29 4.76 ABS Ford CR Auto Owner 360,000               
Allspring 0 16-Jul-29 4.65 ABS American Express 1,025,000        
PFM 17-Jul-29 4.50 MTN-C Pepsico inc 280,000               
PFM 3 25-Jul-29 4.54 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 515,000               
PFM 3 25-Jul-29 4.62 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 410,000               
Allspring 9 31-Jul-29 4.00 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 500,000           
PFM 9 31-Jul-29 4.00 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 600,000               
PFM 8 9-Aug-29 4.55 MTN-C Toyota Motor 195,000               
PFM 5 14-Aug-29 4.20 MTN-C Eli Lilly Co 65,000                 
PFM 3 16-Aug-29 4.27 ABS GM Finl con Auto Rec 155,000               
PFM 8 18-Aug-29 4.64 ABS Toyota Auto 260,000               
PFM 9 20-Aug-29 4.92 ABS Volkswagen Auto Ln 365,000           
PFM 9 31-Aug-29 3.63 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 750,000               
PFM 6 18-Sep-29 3.80 MTN-C Novartis Capital 365,000               
PFM 4 21-Sep-29 4.57 ABS Honda Auto 205,000               
PFM 0 25-Sep-29 4.85 ABS BMW Vehicle Owner 140,000               
PFM 3 25-Sep-29 4.79 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 345,000               
Allspring 9 30-Sep-29 3.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 950,000           
PFM 0 4-Oct-29 4.05 MTN-C Accenture Capital 195,000               

367/465



KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF FUNDS

May 31, 2025

PFM 4 15-Oct-29 4.15 ABS Honda Auto 125,000
PFM 3 15-Oct-29 4.45 ABS Ford Credit Auto 445,000               
Allspring 9 31-Oct-29 4.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000        
PFM 9 31-Oct-29 4.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000
PFM 8 15-Nov-29 4.77 ABS Toyota Auto 220,000
Allspring 9 30-Nov-29 4.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,700,000        
Allspring 6 15-Dec-29 4.49 ABS Nissan Auto Rec 500,000           
PFM 5 17-Dec-29 4.78 ABS Mercedes Benz Auto 255,000               
Allspring 9 31-Dec-29 4.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000
Allspring 9 31-Dec-29 4.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000        
Allspring 0 17-Jan-30 4.95 MTN-C Adobe Inc 900,000           
PFM 0 17-Jan-30 4.95 MTN-C Adobe Inc 285,000               
PFM 9 31-Jan-30 4.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 295,000
PFM 24-Feb-30 4.75 MTN-C Cisco Sys Inc 290,000               
PFM 9 28-Feb-30 4.00 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 160,000               
PFM 9 20-Mar-30 4.51 ABS Verizon Master Trust 440,000           
PFM 0 15-Apr-30 4.28 ABS American Express 410,000
PFM 3 16-Apr-30 4.66 ABS GM Finl Consumer 95,000
Allspring 9 30-Apr-30 3.88 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000        
PFM 8 15-May-30 4.80 MTN-C Toyota Motor 200,000           
PFM 29-May-30 4.91 MTN-C Citibank N A 250,000           

193,506,707$       

Maturity Investment G/L  
Date Yield Type Account Amount Total

Self-insurance trust

Wells Fargo Bank Money  market 110900 967,173               
Wells Fargo Bank Fixed income - L/T 152300 757,009               

1,724,181             
2015A revenue bonds
US Bank Principal/Interest payment fund 142110 2,000,937            

2,000,937             
2015B revenue bonds
US Bank Principal/Interest payment fund 142110 2,091,560            

2,091,560             
2017C revenue bonds
US Bank Principal/Interest payment fund 142110 5,838,610            

5,838,610             
2020 revenue bonds
US Bank Principal/Interest payment fund 142110 1,079,971            

1,079,971             
2022 revenue bonds
US Bank Principal/Interest payment fund 142110 2,734,381            

2,734,381             
2014 general obligation bonds

CAMP Interest Payment fund 152440 3,779,512            
3,779,512             

Master Reserve fund
US Bank 142102 (570,402)             
US Bank 142103 23,311,189          

22,740,787           
Operations

Wells Fargo Bank (Checking) 0.38 Checking 100100 100100 (2,630,669)           
Wells Fargo Bank (Savings) 0.38 Checking 100500 100500 6,120,149            

3,489,481            
Payroll

Wells Fargo Bank (Checking) 0.38 Checking 100200 (247,914)             
Wells Fargo Bank (Checking) 0.38 Checking Flexible Spending 100300 1,067,884            
Wells Fargo Bank (Checking) 0.38 Checking Benefits 100300 10,370                 
Wells Fargo Bank (Checking) 0.00 Checking HSA 100300 15,905                 
Bancorp (Checking) Checking Bancorp 100300 -                      

846,245               

4,335,725             

Total investments 239,832,371$       

368/465



KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF FUNDS

May 31, 2025

Kaweah Delta Medical Foundation

Wells Fargo Bank Checking 100100 (5,772)$                

Sequoia Regional Cancer Center

Wells Fargo Bank (Medical) Checking 100500 (6,223)
(6,223)$                

Kaweah Delta Hospital Foundation

Central Valley Community Checking Investments 100100 428,723               
Various S/T Investments 142200 5,258,500            
Various L/T Investments 142300 13,826,013          
Various Unrealized G/L 142400 2,209,753            

21,722,989$         

Summary of board designated funds:

Plant fund:

Uncommitted plant funds 133,925,074$                             142100
Committed for capital 21,617,789                                 142100

155,542,862

GO Bond reserve - L/T 1,992,658 142100

401k Matching 14,792,892 142100

Cost report settlement - curre 2,135,384       142104
Cost report settlement - L/T 1,312,727       142100

3,448,111

Development fund/Memorial fund 104,184 112300

Workers compensation - cur 5,180,000       112900
Workers compensation - L/T 12,446,000     113900

17,626,000

193,506,707$                             

Total Trust Surplus                                
Investments     % Accounts Funds %    

Investment summary by institution:

Bancorp -$                                           0.0% -                      0.0%
Cal Trust -                                             0.0% -                      0.0%
CAMP 29,195,939                                 12.2% 29,195,939          14.8%
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)            42,218,951                                 17.6% 42,218,951          21.3%
CAMP -  GOB Tax Rev 3,779,512                                  1.6% 3,779,512       -                      0.0%
Allspring 59,735,775                                 24.9% 1,724,181       58,011,594          29.3%
PFM 59,349,693                                 24.7% 59,349,693          30.0%
Western Alliance - CDARS 3,006,348                                  3,006,348            1.5%
American Business Bank -                                             -                      0.0%
CalPrivate Bank -                                             -                      0.0%
Citizens National Bank of Texas -                                             -                      0.0%
Community Bank of the Day -                                             -                      0.0%
East West Bank -                                             -                      0.0%
Farmers Bank and Trust Company -                                             -                      0.0%
Frontier Bank of Texas -                                             -                      0.0%
Optus Bank -                                             -                      0.0%
Poppy Bank -                                             -                      0.0%
Republic Bank -                                             -                      0.0%
St. Louis Bank -                                             -                      0.0%
Willamette Valley Bank -                                             -                      0.0%
Wells Fargo Bank 6,059,907                                  2.5% 6,059,907            3.1%
Signature Bank -                                             0.0% -                  -                      0.0%
US Bank 36,486,246                                 15.2% 36,486,246     -                      0.0%

                 Total investments 239,832,371$                             100.0% 41,989,939$   197,842,432        100.0%

369/465



KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF FUNDS

May 31, 2025

Investment
Investment summary of surplus funds by type: Limitations

Negotiable and other certificates of deposit 3,006,348$                                 59,353,000             (30%)
Checking accounts 4,335,725                                  
Local Agency Investment Fund   (LAIF) 42,218,951                                 75,000,000          
Cal Trust -                                             
CAMP 29,195,939                                 
Medium-term notes  (corporate)   (MTN-C) 30,160,000                                 59,353,000             (30%)
U.S. government agency 63,319,910                                 
Municipal securities 6,425,000                                  
Money market accounts 988,898                                     39,568,000             (20%)
Commercial paper -                                             49,461,000             (25%)
Asset Backed Securties 18,191,660                                 39,568,000             (20%)
Supra-National Agency -                                             59,353,000             (30%)

197,842,432$                             

Return on investment:

       Current month 3.84%

       Year-to-date 3.81%
 

       Prospective 3.69%

       LAIF  (year-to-date) 4.42%

       Budget 2.82%

Fair market value disclosure for the quarter ended March 31, 2025 (District only): Quarter-to-date Year-to-date

          Difference between fair value of investments and amortized cost  (balance sheet effect) N/A (260,645)             

          Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments  (income statement effect) 1,116,156$     3,634,731

Investment summary of CDs:
American Plus Bank, N.A. 236,500$                                   
BOKF, National Association 236,500
CalPrivate Bank 236,500
Centreville Bak 236,500
Citizens Bank & Trust 236,500
City Natl Bank of Sulphur Springs 236,500
Farmer & Merchants Bank 175,677
Farmers & Merchants Bank 13,500
First Heritage Bank 236,500
First Oklahoma Bank 199,759
Homeland Federal Savings Bank 15,912
Locus Bank 236,500
Old National Bank 236,500
River City Bank 236,500
Solera National Bank 236,500

3,006,348$                                 

Investment summary of asset backed securities:
Ally Auto Rec 177,213$                                   
American Express 1,880,000                                  
American Express Co 150,000                                     
Bank of America 574,000                                     
BMW Vehicle Owner 1,317,329                                  
Capital One Prime 114,360                                     
Carmax Auto Owner 223,719                                     
Chase Issuance Trust 925,000                                     
Daimler Trucks 248,738                                     
Fifth Third Auto 377,774                                     
Ford CR Auto Owner 1,932,708                                  
Ford Credit Auto 445,000                                     
GM Finl con Auto Rec 260,021                                     
GM Finl Consumer 865,774                                     
Harley Davidson 500,000                                     
Honda Auto 656,398                                     
Honda Auto Rec Own 31,691                                       
Hyundai Auto 107,069                                     
Hyundai Auto Rec 1,195,000                                  
John Deere Owner 1,000,000                                  
Mercedes Benz Auto 1,364,866                                  
Nissan Auto Lease 500,000                                     
Nissan Auto Rec 500,000                                     

Toyota Auto 480,000                                     

Verizon Master Trust 1,440,000                                  

Wells Fargo Card 560,000                                     

Volkswagen Auto Ln 365,000                                     
18,191,660$                               

370/465



KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF FUNDS

May 31, 2025

Investment summary of medium-term notes  (corporate):
Accenture Capital 195,000$                                   
Adobe Inc 1,410,000                                  
American Express 245,000                                     
American Express Co 445,000
American Honda Mtn 145,000
Air products 295,000
Astrazeneca 165,000
Astrazeneca LP 265,000
Bank America Mtn 290,000
Bank of America 1,395,000
Bank New York Mellon Mtn 300,000
Bank New York Mtn 1,000,000
Blackrock Funding 455,000
Bp Cap Mkts Amer 310,000
Bristol Myers Squibb 200,000
Chevron USA Inc 340,000
Caterpillar Finl Mtn 1,220,000
Cisco Sys Inc 845,000
Citibank N A 1,785,000
Colgate Palmolive 180,000
Cooperatieve CD 400,000
Cummins INC 215,000
Deere John Mtn 220,000
Eli Lilly Co 365,000
Goldman Sachs 1,475,000
Hershey Co 80,000
Home Depot Inc 815,000
Hormel Food Corp 115,000
IBM Corp 410,000
John Deere Mtn 820,000
Johnson Johnson Sr 80,000
JP Morgan 1,240,000
Mastercard 130,000
Morgan Stanley 1,530,000
National Rural Mtn 1,010,000
Natixis Ny 405,000
Novartis Capital 365,000
Paccar Financial Mtn 1,155,000
Pepsico inc 280,000
Procter Gamble Co 1,300,000
State Street Corp 1,475,000
Target Corp 900,000
Texas Instrs 370,000
Toyota Motor 1,925,000
Unitedhealth Group 85,000
Walmart Inc 660,000
Wells Fargo Mtn 145,000
Wells Fargo co 705,000

30,160,000$                               

Investment summary of U.S. government agency:
Federal National Mortgage Association  (FNMA) 4,015,805$                                 
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 525,000
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 9,929,105
US Treasury Bill 48,850,000

63,319,910$                               

Investment summary of municipal securities:
Alameda Cnty Ca 500,000$                                   
Anaheim Ca Pub 1,000,000                                  
California St Univ 125,000                                     
Connecticut ST 400,000                                     
Los Angeles Ca 410,000                                     
Massachusetts St 1,000,000                                  
San Diego County 1,000,000                                  
San Francisco Ca 1,000,000                                  
San Jose Ca Redev 400,000                                     
San Juan Ca 190,000                                     
Santa Cruz Ca 400,000                                     

6,425,000$                                 

371/465



Statistical Report
May 2025

372/465



373/465



374/465



375/465



376/465



377/465



378/465



379/465



380/465



381/465



382/465



383/465



384/465



385/465



386/465



387/465



388/465



389/465



390/465



391/465



392/465



393/465



394/465



395/465



396/465



397/465



398/465



399/465



400/465



401/465



402/465



403/465



404/465



405/465



406/465



407/465



350/407



351/407



352/407



353/407



354/407



355/407



356/407



357/407



358/407



359/407



360/407



361/407



362/407



363/407



364/407



365/407



366/407



367/407



368/407



369/407



370/407



371/407



372/407



373/407



374/407



375/407



376/407



377/407



378/407



379/407



380/407



381/407



382/407



383/407



384/407



385/407



386/407



387/407



388/407



389/407



390/407



391/407



392/407



393/407



394/407



395/407



396/407



397/407



398/407



399/407



400/407



401/407



402/407



403/407



404/407



405/407



406/407



407/407


